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INVESTOR RELATIONS 

SimCorp pursues an open dialogue with investors and analysts 

about the company’s business and financial performance. In 

order to ensure that all SimCorp’s stakeholders have equal 

access to corporate information, news is released to OMX 

Nordic Exchange Copenhagen, the media and on SimCorp’s 

website, where users can also subscribe to SimCorp’s news 

service.

SimCorp’s Investor Relations department handles all contact 

with investors and the press on issues relating to the 

company’s shares. Investor Relations can be reached on:

Telephone +45 35 44 88 00

Fax +45 35 44 87 89

E-mail investor @ simcorp.com

Website www.simcorp.com

This annual report can be downloaded in a Danish and an 

English version from SimCorp’s website.

DISCLAIMER

The forward-looking statements regarding the Group’s future 

financial situation involve factors of uncertainty and risk,  

which could cause actual developments to deviate from the 

expectations indicated. The principal factors of uncertainty  

and risk are dealt with in further detail under the heading  

‘Risk factors’ on page 22 and in note 29, ‘Financial instru-

ments and risks’, in this annual report.
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•	 	SimCorp	posted	EBIT	of	EUR	38.4m	(DKK	286m),	an	

improvement of 13% on the 2006 figure and the best- 

ever performance in SimCorp history. The EBIT margin  

was 24.5%. Profit after tax and discontinued operations 

was	EUR	39.0m,	and	the	Board	of	Directors	intends	to	

recommend to the shareholders at the annual general 

meeting that dividends be paid to shareholders at the  

rate	of	DKK	37.50	per	share.

•	 	In	July	2007,	SimCorp	divested	its	IT2	business	in	order	to	

focus the Group’s activities entirely on SimCorp Dimension.

 

•	 	SimCorp	generated	revenue	of	EUR	157m	(DKK	1.2bn)	in	

2007,	an	increase	of	EUR	30m	or	23%	compared	with	last	

year.

•	 	The	order	inflow	–	representing	the	licence	value	of	new	

orders plus the licence value of add-on licences to 

customers	–	amounted	to	EUR	59m,	or	approximately	 

EUR	6m	more	than	in	2006.

•	 	The	licence	order	book	at	1	January	2008	was	EUR	25m	

which	was	approximately	EUR	1m	higher	than	a	year	earlier.	

Income recognised from licences and add-on licences 

amounted	to	EUR	57m,	up	13%	on	2006.

•	 	SimCorp	sustained	the	high	level	of	sales	and	supply	of	

professional services throughout 2007. Professional service 

fees	were	EUR	51m,	a	34%	improvement	on	last	year.

•	 	Maintenance	income	continued	to	grow,	increasing	by	27%	

relative to 2006. 

•	 	Overall	business	growth	measured	as	total	revenue	growth	

plus net growth in the licence order book was 22% in 

2007.

•	 	SimCorp	continued	to	strengthen	its	position	in	the	

European markets, winning orders in Germany, Austria,  

the	Nordic	region,	the	UK	and	France.	

•	 	SimCorp	won	new	orders	in	Australia	and	Singapore,	

significantly enhancing its market position.  

•	 	SimCorp	won	two	new	licence	agreements	in	North	

America, increasing awareness of SimCorp and SimCorp 

Dimension.

•	 	Net	staff	growth	in	2007	was	137,	bringing	the	total	

number of employees to 863 at 31 December 2007. In 

addition, SimCorp expanded the offshore development 

agreements	signed	with	two	companies	in	the	Ukraine	 

in 2005.

•	 	SimCorp	received	EUR	12m	in	2007	in	connection	with	the	

divestment of the IT2 business and bought treasury shares 

for	EUR	27m.	Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	31	December	

2007	were	EUR	47m,	EUR	14m	lower	than	at	the	year-earlier 

date.

•	 	For	2008	SimCorp	expects	net	revenue	in	the	EUR	175m	to	

EUR	185m	range	with	an	EBIT	margin	of	between	22%	and	

25%.	At	1	January	2008,	the	Group	had	secured	contracts	

worth	EUR	84m	of	the	projected	2008	revenue.
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 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Profit, EUR’000
Revenue 69,242 82,046 102,254 127,127 156,780
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 11,409 18,104 24,123 36,813 41,606
and	amortisation	(EBITDA)	
Profit	from	operations	(EBIT)	 8,465	 15,589	 21,839	 34,100	 38,396
Financial items 1,391 798 1,089 1,318 2,027
Profit before tax, continuing operations 9,856 16,386 22,937 35,418 40,423
Profit for the year, continuing operations – – – 25,552 28,665
Profit for the year, discontinued operations – – – 1,057 10,334
Profit for the year 6,353 11,961 16,201 26,609 38,999
      
   
Balance sheet, EUR’000      
   
Share capital 6,460 6,520 6,605 6,616 6,616
Equity 60,687 72,653 77,818 88,271 73,525
Cash, bonds and cash equivalents 48,810 58,057 64,836 60,776 46,904
Total assets 76,046 96,968 104,811 121,386 109,652
      
   
Cash flows, EUR’000      
   
Cash flow from operating activities,  4,136 11,788 25,889 20,319 32,306
continuing operations
Cash	flow	from	investing	activities		 (2,399)	 (1,586)	 (6,060)	 (3,983)	 5,627
–	investing	in	intangible	assets	 (1,099)	 (743)	 (157)	 (2,143)	 (707)
–	investing	in	property,	plant	and	equipment	 (1,322)	 (781)	 (1,157)	 (588)	 (3,362)
Cash	flow	from	financing	activities		 (68)	 30	 (26,470)	 (20,247)	 (52,326)
Cash flow, discontinued operations – – –	 (18)	 626
Net	change	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	 1,668	 10,232	 (6,641)	 (3,929)	 (13,768)
      
   
Employees      
   
Average number of employees 526 519 595 646 771
Revenue	per	employee	(EUR‘000)		 131.6	 158.0	 171.9	 196.8	 203.3
Profit	from	operations	(EBIT)	per	employee		 16.1	 30.0	 36.7	 52.8	 49.8
(EUR’000)	
      
   
Profit, DKK‘000      
   
Revenue 515,481 610,264 762,864 947,859 1,169,047
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 84,932 141,045 179,968 274,478 310,236
and	amortisation	(EBITDA)
Profit	from	operations	(EBIT)	 63,021	 115,945	 162,931	 254,247	 286,307
Financial items 10,353 5,938 8,125 9,827 15,115
Profit before tax, continuing operations 73,374 121,883 171,118 264,074 301,421
Profit for the year, continuing operations – – – 190,513 213,745
Profit for the year, discontinued operations – – – 7,881 77,053
Profit for the year 47,297 88,965 120,866 198,397 290,798
      
   
Balance sheet, DKK’000      
   
Share capital 48,089 48,539 49,175 49,250 49,250
Equity 451,793 540,402 580,565 658,147 548,244
Cash, bonds and cash equivalents 363,371 431,833 483,706 453,145 349,745
Total assets 566,133 721,260 781,941 905,054 817,628
      
   
Cash flows, DKK’000      
   
Cash flow from operating activities, 30,787 87,678 193,143 151,495 240,890
continuing operations
Cash	flow	from	investing	activities	 (17,861)	 (11,795)	 (45,212)	 (29,700)	 41,957
–	investing	in	intangible	assets	 (8,184)	 (5,526)	 (1,171)	 (15,977)	 (5,272)
–	investing	in	property,	plant	and	equipment	 (9,843)	 (5,807)	 (8,635)	 (4,382)	 (25,071)
Cash	flow	from	financing	activities	 (505)	 225	 (197,481)	 (150,961)	 (390,176)
Cash flow, discontinued operations – – – (131)	 4,668
Net	change	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	 12,421	 76,108	 (49,542)	 (29,300)	 (102,662)
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 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Key ratios
EBIT	margin	(%)	 12.2	 19.0	 21.4	 26.5	 24.5
ROIC	(return	on	invested	capital)	(%)	 31.2	 47.1	 117.1	 134.8	 96.6
Debtor turnover rate 6.3 4.6 6.2 4.0 5.2
Equity	ratio	(%)	 79.8	 74.9	 74.2	 72.7	 67.7
Return	on	equity	(%)		 11.0	 17.8	 20.7	 30.2	 33.1
      
   
Per share data      
   
Basic earnings per share –	EPS	(EUR)		 1.3	 2.5	 3.4	 5.5	 8.2
Diluted earnings per share – EPS-D	(EUR)	 1.3	 2.5	 3.4	 5.4	 8.2
Basic earnings per share,   – – – 5.3 6.0
continuing operations – EPS	(EUR)
Diluted earnings per share,  – – – 5.2 6.0
continuing operations – EPS-D	(EUR)
Cash flow per share –	CFPS	(EUR)	 0.9	 2.5	 5.4	 4.2	 6.8
Book value per share at year-end –	BVPS	(EUR)	 12.8	 15.2	 16.2	 18.4	 15.8
Share	price	at	year	end	(EUR)	 25.97	 56.19	 93.93	 186.29	 135.45
Share	price	at	year	end	(DKK)	 193	 418	 701	 1,389	 1,010
Dividend	per	share	of	DKK	10	–	DPS	(EUR)			 0.34	 2.55	 3.22	 4.69	 5.03
Dividend	per	share	of	DKK	10	–	DPS	(DKK)	 2.50	 19.00	 24.00	 35.00	 37.50
Payout	ratio	(%)	 25.1	 102.1	 97.6	 86.9	 63.5
Price/book value per share –	P/BV	(EUR)	 2.0	 3.7	 5.8	 10.1	 8.6
Market capitalisation (EURm)	 124.9	 272.7	 461.9	 893.1	 629.2
Average number of shares 4,715,667 4,760,843 4,779,249 4,794,796 4,742,585

Note:	Key	figures	for	2003	have	not	been	adopted	to	the	new	accounting	policies.	Key	figures	2003	–	2005	have	not	been	adjusted	for	the	divestment	

of	the	IT2	business.	Financial	highlights	are	translated	into	DKK	as	supplementary	information	– the translation is based on the exchange rate 31 Decem- 

ber. Definition of ratios are set out on page 77. 
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SIMCORP

SimCorp develops, sells and delivers system solutions to the 

international financial sector. At 31 December 2007, SimCorp 

had a total of 863 employees based at the Copenhagen head- 

quarters and at subsidiaries in Europe, North America, Australia 

and Asia. SimCorp is listed on OMX Nordic Exchange Copen- 

hagen,	and	in	2007	the	company	reported	revenue	of	EUR	

157m	and	profit	after	tax	of	EUR	39.0m.

BUSINESS MODEL

SimCorp’s business model is based on three elements: sales  

of software licences, maintenance income and fees from 

professional services. Licence fees are generated from selling 

the right to use SimCorp’s software. Maintenance income 

derives from sales of the right to current system upgrades  

and user assistance, while sales of professional services on 

implementation, introduction and expansion of software 

installations generate professional service fees.

SIMCORP DIMENSION

SimCorp’s product, SimCorp Dimension, is an internationally 

recognised, comprehensive system solution for professional 

investment managers – a so-called enterprise solution 

supporting all the elements of the investment management 

process: analysis of investment opportunities, order placing, 

order management, risk monitoring and control, performance 

measurement, reconciliation, bookkeeping and reporting. 

SimCorp Dimension integrates the entire workflow on a single 

platform and allows the entire investment management 

organisation to access data that is continually updated in  

real time.

SimCorp Dimension is one of the most comprehensive 

standard solutions of its kind on the market. It comes with 

add-on services and can be configured to support the 

customer’s entire investment management process. The 

Group’s market units handle sales and supply of the system 

and provide professional services in connection with the 

implementation, use and integration of the solution in the 

customer’s business operations. Product development is  

based mainly in Copenhagen.

Over the past ten years, more than 150 financial institutions, 

mainly European, have chosen to base their investment 

management activities on the SimCorp Dimension software 

platform. In 2007, SimCorp divested its IT2 treasury manage-

ment product to focus activities entirely on selling, implemen-

ting, maintaining and developing SimCorp Dimension which 

already accounted for around 95% of the Group’s business. 

KNOW-HOW

SimCorp bases its company on financial expertise and software 

know-how. More than 80% of SimCorp’s employees hold an 

academic degree, most of them within financing, economics, 

IT or engineering. In-depth knowledge of financial theory and 

software development combined with thorough insight into 

customers’ business processes is crucial for SimCorp’s ability to 

continue to develop and offer customers competitive, high- 

quality products. This know-how also forms the strategic 

platform of SimCorp’s business activities, facilitating additional 

value to all SimCorp stakeholders.

GROWTH PLANS  

SimCorp’s	basic	management	objective	is	to	promote	the	

long-term interests of the company, and thus of all share-

holders.	A	key	element	of	the	objectives	for	2008	and	going	

forward therefore includes staying focused on sustained 

profitable growth. In the long term, SimCorp aims to generate 

annual profitable revenue growth in the 10 – 20% range. 
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The year 2007 was SimCorp’s best to date, and we fully met 

our full-year expectations and profit guidance. Generating 

revenue	growth	of	more	than	23%	to	EUR	157m	(DKK	1.2bn)	

and an EBIT margin of 24.5%, we successfully retained our  

focus on both growth and profit in 2007. During the last four 

years, our consolidated revenue has grown by an average of 

23% per year and our EBIT has improved by almost 50%  

per year.

Our strong financial performance reflects how important it is 

that we execute our business model consistently. This is a 

business model based on establishing long-term customer 

relations, local provision of customer-directed services, 

long-term investment in software development and ongoing 

development of employees and know-how. 

On behalf of the SimCorp Group, I would like to thank all our 

customers for a good and trustful cooperation in 2007. We 

invest substantial resources in research and development, so 

that we can continue to deliver software products that support 

our customers’ businesses. At the same time, it is important 

for us to base our continued market growth on carefully 

selected strategic markets, so that we can build a substantial 

market position through a dedicated effort. 

Clearly, our skilled employees continue to provide the bedrock 

for our impressive growth performance, and I am very pleased 

with and proud of my colleagues in SimCorp, who through 

their big efforts every day contribute to our company’s 

strong performance. 

In 2007, we decided to focus the SimCorp business even 

more, divesting our IT2 product. IT2 represented about 5% of 

our overall business, and we found that it would be in the best 

interest of SimCorp and of the IT2 business to divest the 

activities to a new owner that, like SimCorp, is focused on 

long-term strategic business development. Proceeds from the 

sale	contributed	about	EUR	10.3m	to	our	net	profit.		

The divestment shows that SimCorp is a one-product company 

developing, selling and delivering solutions to modern invest- 

ment managers worldwide. Our business success hinges first 

and foremost on our ability to continue to develop SimCorp 

Dimension and to provide quality services to the international 

investment management market. Our strategic ambition is to 

be recognised as the leading, innovative, global provider of 

advanced solutions to professional investment managers. 

SimCorp is a unique business, and it is remarkable that as a 

growth business we are capable of generating strong cash 

flows. Thanks to our strong financial results, we are in a 

position to continue to buy back own shares and to distribute 

dividends to our shareholders. The Board of Directors intends 

to propose to the shareholders at the annual general meeting 

to be held in March 2008 that dividend be paid at the rate of 

DKK	37.50	per	share,	which	would	equal	total	dividend	

payments	of	EUR	23m	(DKK	174m).

SimCorp stands well prepared for the future, and we look 

forward to the future cooperation with all of our stakeholders. 
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BUSINESS TARGETS FOR 2007

Focusing on sustained profitable growth, SimCorp defined the 

following operational targets for 2007 at the beginning of the 

year: 

•	 	Further	increasing	awareness	of	SimCorp	Dimension	in	the	

USA	and	winning	new	licence	agreements

•	 	Strengthening	SimCorp	Dimension’s	market	position	in	the	

UK	and	increasing	the	number	of	customers

•	 	Increasing	SimCorp	Dimension’s	market	shares	in	Germany,	

Switzerland, Benelux and Asia

•	 	Retaining	SimCorp	Dimension’s	solid	market	position	in	the	

Nordic region

•	 	Continuing	to	build	customer	relations

•	 	Expanding	the	distribution	capacity	for	SimCorp	Dimension

•	 	Expanding	the	development	capacity	for	SimCorp	

Dimension, including through additional offshore activities 

in	the	Ukraine	

•	 	Further	improving	SimCorp	Dimension’s	functionality	by	

developing a domain-based development organisation

•	 	Increasing	the	number	of	IT2	customers	and	further	

improving the positive contribution to profit from the  

IT2 activities

ACHIEVEMENT OF TARGETS

SimCorp saw strong demand for its solutions in 2007, achieving 

a	licence	order	inflow	worth	EUR	59m.

As in previous years, SimCorp also achieved good geographical 

diversification among customers in 2007, winning orders in 

Denmark,	Germany,	Austria,	France,	the	UK,	Australia,	Asia	

and North America. 

SimCorp concluded 15 new SimCorp Dimension agreements, 

equalling a satisfactory proportion of the overall number of 

new licence agreements won in SimCorp’s markets in 2007. 

SimCorp believes that the Group increased its market share  

in a number of markets.

SimCorp’s German subsidiary strengthened its market position 

further in 2007, winning licence agreements with Hamburger 

Pensionsverwaltung, DekaBank and Helaba in Germany and 

increasing its already stable business volume with a number 

of customers significantly. SimCorp also signed a licence 

agreement with Erste Bank Group of Austria and set up an 

independent Austrian subsidiary in 2007. 

SimCorp’s subsidiary in Brussels, SimCorp Benelux, won an 

agreement with French company SCOR, one of the world’s 

largest reinsurance groups. 

The positive development continued in Asia, where SimCorp 

signed licence agreements with QBE Australia, Vanguard 

Investments Australia and Victorian Funds Management 

Corporation in Australia and Schroders Asia Pacific in 

Singapore.

SimCorp	won	three	new	licence	agreements	in	the	UK	in	

2007,	including	with	Mitsubishi	UFJ	Asset	Management	and	

Ashmore Investment Management Limited, considerably 

consolidating	the	company’s	position	in	the	important	UK	

market, one of the world’s biggest financial markets.

Awareness of SimCorp and SimCorp Dimension increased 

significantly	in	North	America	in	2007	with	SimCorp’s	US	

subsidiary winning two important licence contracts with 

Macquarie	Holdings	Inc.	US	and	Canadian	Ontario	Teachers’	

Pension Plan. 

SimCorp Dimension retained its leading market position in the 

Nordic region in 2007. The business volume with customers 

developed favourably, and the company signed a licence 

agreement	with	Jyske	Invest,	the	third	Danish	mutual	fund	 

to use SimCorp Dimension.

The volume of business with customers overall developed very 

satisfactorily in 2007. Maintenance income as well as fees from 

professional services increased steeply, and the inflow of orders 

for	add-on	licences	amounting	to	EUR	29m,	equal	to	11.5%	

of	the	licence	base	at	1	January,	was	the	company’s	highest	ever. 

Add-on	licences	worth	EUR	26m	were	recognised	in	the	

financial year.

The development and distribution capacity was also enhanced 

during the year. SimCorp began setting up an independent 

company	in	the	Ukraine	to	expand	and	strengthen	the	offshore 

development agreements established in 2005 with two 

companies	in	Kiev.	The	Group	also	took	on	137	new	employees, 

mainly in customer and development related functions.

SimCorp divested the Group’s IT2 business, SimCorp Treasury 

Solutions Ltd., in the summer of 2007 in order to focus entirely 

on its enterprise solution SimCorp Dimension. Proceeds from 

the sale and result until disposal will constitute EUR	10.3m.	 

The divestment is presented as a separate non-recurring item 

under discontinued operations in the financial statement. 

Historical financial information from	2006	has	been	adjusted	

for the contribution from the IT2 business to allow comparison 

with historical financial information on a like-for-like basis. 

The 2006 annual report set out revenue and profit guidance 

for 2007. The guidance predicted annual revenue growth and 

overall order book growth in the range of 15 to 20% for 2007. 

The guidance also set out revenue growth of around 15%  

and an EBIT margin of around 20%. 
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M A N A G E M E N T  R E P O R T

In	the	interim	report	for	the	first	half-year	of	2007	(Announce-

ment	no.	13/2007	of	21	August	2007),	SimCorp	upgraded	

expectations	for	2007	to	revenue	in	the	range	of	EUR	150	to	

160m with an EBIT margin around 24%.

The actual performance was in line with these expectations 

with	revenue	growth	of	23%	to	EUR	157m	and	an	EBIT	

margin of approximately 24,5%, marginally higher than the 

most recent guidance for 2007.

INCOME

The very satisfactory results were, to a large extent, attribu-

table to SimCorp’s strengthened market position and the 

expansion of the business volume with existing customers. 

Over the past few years, SimCorp has increasingly based its 

revenue on relationships with existing customers. Thus, around 

82% of 2007 revenue was generated by companies that were 

already customers at the beginning of the year, compared with 

79% last year.

More than 50 customers have expanded their SimCorp 

Dimension installation significantly over the past four years, 

buying	add-on	licences	worth	EUR	1.2m	on	average	during	

that period. In 2007, those customers bought add-on licences 

worth	an	average	of	more	than	EUR	0.5m.

SimCorp customers made additional investments in SimCorp 

Dimension in 2007, and the proportion of customers with a 

licence	base	of	more	than	EUR	2m	increased	from	around	

30% at 31 December 2006 to around 40%, accounting for  

an overall 73% of the licence base. 

More than 25% of SimCorp’s total revenue was generated by 

the ten largest customers, but no single customer accounted 

for more than 4% of revenue. In 2005, the ten largest custom-

ers accounted for 36% of SimCorp’s total revenue.

SimCorp	generated	total	revenue	of	EUR	156.8m	in	2007,	

equal to an increase of 23% over 2006. 

Exchange	rate	fluctuations	had	a	negative	impact	of	EUR	0.8m	

on revenue, equal to 0.5%. 

SimCorp derives revenue from three sources: licence fees, fees 

from professional services and maintenance income.

SimCorp’s	total	licence	revenue	in	2007	was	EUR	57.3m,	which 

was 13% higher than last year, accounting for 37% of the 

Group’s total revenue in 2007. 

Licence fees were generated partly in connection with the com- 

pletion	of	a	number	of	implementation	projects,	and	part- 

ly in connection with the sale of 15 new SimCorp Dimension 

solutions,	representing	a	total	licence	value	of	EUR	29.9m.	
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Income recognised from add-on licences to customers account- 

ed	for	EUR	25.5m	compared	with	EUR	19.8m	last	year.

The	total	order	intake	was	EUR	59.0m.	The	order	book	was	up	

from	EUR	24.3m	at	1	January	2007	to	EUR	25.3m	at	1	January	

2008.

Fees	from	professional	services	at	EUR	51.1m	in	2007	were	

34% higher than in 2006, which again increased 32% over 

2005. Fees from professional services accounted for 33% of 

total revenue in 2007.

Maintenance income continues to improve with the completion 

and implementation of new customer installations, increasing 

by	27%	over	last	year	to	EUR	45.8m.	Maintenance	income	

accounted for 29% of consolidated revenue.

On full installation and implementation at customers’ premises, 

new licence agreements won in the year will increase current 

annual	maintenance	income	by	a	total	of	more	than	EUR	10m.

COSTS

SimCorp’s	total	operating	expenses	(including	amortisation	

and	depreciation)	increased	by	27%	relative	to	2006	to	stand	

at	EUR	118.3m	in	2007.	The	increase	in	costs	was	the	result	of	

the strong expansion of production and development capacity 

during the year and the expansion, which SimCorp implement-

ed in the latter half of 2006.

The Group increased its sales and distribution capacity during 

the year in order to enhance its presence in key markets and 

accommodate the stronger demands stemming from the 

higher level of activity. 

SimCorp’s total sales and distribution costs increased by 3%  

in	2007	to	stand	at	EUR	15.0m.	The	Group’s	costs	of	sales	

increased	by	33%	in	2007	to	stand	at	EUR	57.4m.	Develop-

ment costs are charged, and the intensified development 

effort directed at SimCorp Dimension increased research and 

development	costs	by	32%	to	stand	at	EUR	34.6m.	Admini-

strative expenses, including costs of enhancing business 

processes,	increased	by	22%	to	stand	at	EUR	11.3m.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

SimCorp	generated	EBIT	of	EUR	38.4m	in	2007,	a	13%	

increase	from	EUR	34.1m	in	2006.	The	EBIT	margin	was	

24.5% in 2007 against 26.8% in 2006. 

Adjusted	for	the	one-off	impact	in	2006	of	changed	contract	

terms, believed by the company to have improved the EBIT 

margin by around 3 – 4 percentage points in 2006, the EBIT 

margin improved by around 2 percentage points.

Foreign	exchange	adjustments	in	the	year	had	a	negative	

impact	of	0.2%,	or	EUR	0.3m,	on	EBIT.

The bond portfolio and cash holdings generated financial 

income	of	EUR	3.1m,	and	financial	expenses	amounted	to	EUR	

1.2m. Continuing operations thus generated a pre-tax profit 

for	the	year	of	EUR	40.4m	against	EUR	35.4m	in	2006.	After	

tax	provisions	totalling	EUR	11.7m,	the	consolidated	profit	on	

continuing	operations	for	the	period	was	EUR	28.7m	against	

EUR	25.6m	in	2006.	The	profit	for	the	year	of	discontinued	

operations, being the impact on profit of the sale of the IT2 

business,	was	EUR	10.3m	against	EUR	1.1m	in	2006.	Total	

profit	for	the	year	thus	amounted	to	EUR	39.0m	against	EUR	

26.6m in 2006.

Due	to	increased	activities	in	Australia,	the	UK	and	Germany	

the	effective	tax	rate	was	just	under	29%,	against	28%	in	

2006. This rate was higher than the Danish corporate tax rate 

of 25%.

BALANCE SHEET

SimCorp	had	total	assets	of	EUR	109.7m	at	31	December	

2007.	Securities	and	cash	amounted	to	EUR	46.9m,	or	EUR	

13.9m less than at 31 December 2006. Total receivables stood 

at	EUR	41.9m	at	31	December	2007	against	EUR	39.1m	at	 

31 December 2006. The increase was due in part to a strong 

increase in business activity in December 2007 and a related 

increase in receivables from customers.

The	Group’s	cash	holdings	had	increased	by	EUR	13.0m	on	 

31	January	2008.	

10

Revenue per market unit, 2006 and 2007
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Nordic region 29% 26% 

Benelux 11% 15% 

UK and Ireland 14% 12% 

Australia and Asia 8% 10% 
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The	Group	had	non-current	assets	of	EUR	8.2m	at	31	

December	2007,	which	was	EUR	4.1m	lower	than	the year 

before.	Goodwill	was	EUR	0.9m	at	31	December	2007. 

Software	decreased	marginally	from	EUR	5.7m	to	EUR	5.5m,	

while	deferred	tax	was	reduced	by	EUR	4.2m	to	EUR	4.7m.

CHANGES IN EQUITY

The	Group’s	equity	decreased	during	the	year	from	EUR	88.3m	

to	EUR	73.5m.	Increasing	equity	was	the	profit	for	the	year	of	

EUR	39.0m.	Reducing	equity	were	payments	to	shareholders	

totalling	EUR	49.5m	in	the	form	of	purchases	of	treasury	shares 

in	the	amount	of	EUR	26.9m,	and	dividend	payments	of	EUR	

22.6m. Further reducing equity were the net effect of share 

based	payment,	EUR	0.4m,	calculated	tax	on	changes	in	equity	

of	EUR	2.1m,	and	foreign	exchange	adjustments	of	EUR	1.7m.

CASH POSITION AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Operating	activities	generated	a	cash	inflow	of	EUR	32.3m	and	

there	was	a	cash	inflow	of	EUR	5.6m	from	investing	activities.	

SimCorp’s business activities thus generated a net cash inflow 

of	EUR	37.9m.

The Group’s investing activities comprised investment in 

subsidiaries	worth	EUR	2.0m,	purchase	of	intangible	assets	

worth	EUR	0.7m,	property,	plant	and	equipment,	including	

leasehold	improvements,	worth	EUR	1.4m,	computing	and	

communication	equipment	(technical	equipment)	worth	EUR	

1.0m,	and	office	and	other	equipment	worth	EUR	0.8m.

SimCorp	acquired	168,000	treasury	shares	of	DKK	10	each	

and	sold	14,088	treasury	shares	of	DKK	10	each	as	part	of	 

the year’s employee share programme, and delivered 4,700 

treasury	shares	of	DKK	10	each	in	connection	with	the	exercise	

of stock options.

At 31 December 2007, SimCorp held 280,114 treasury  

shares	of	DKK	10	each	(5.7%	of	the	total	share	capital)	at	an	

acquisition	value	of	some	EUR	35.5m	and	a	market	value	of	

EUR	37.9m	at	31	December	2007.

SIMCORP A/S

In	2007	the	parent	company	generated	revenue	of	EUR	61.3m, 

an	increase	of	EUR	9.5m	compared	with	2006.	In	2007	the	

parent	company	has	received	dividend	of	EUR	18.0m	from	

subsidiaries	against	EUR	18.2m	in	2006.	Profit	after	tax	and	

discontinued	operations	was	EUR	30.9m	against	EUR	25.9m	 

in	2006.	Equity	was	reduced	with	EUR	19.2m	to	EUR	64.2m.	

Share	capital	totals	EUR	6.6m	of	equity,	retained	earnings	 

EUR	34.3m	and	proposed	dividend	EUR	23.4m.	

PROFIT ALLOCATION

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the share-

holders at the annual general meeting of the parent company 

that,	out	of	the	profit	for	the	year	of	EUR	30.9m,	dividends	 

be	paid	to	shareholders	at	the	rate	of	DKK	37.50	per	share,	

equivalent	to	EUR	23.4m,	and	that	EUR	7.5m	be	transferred	 

to retained earnings.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE END OF 

THE FINANCIAL YEAR

No significant events have occurred after the balance sheet 

date that affect the 2007 annual report. 
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BUSINESS MODEL

SimCorp’s business model is based on three fundamental 

components: sales of software licences and the provision of 

maintenance and professional services. Licence fees are a 

major	contributor	to	business	growth	and	are	generated	 

from selling the right to use SimCorp’s software. Maintenance 

income derives from selling the right to current system 

upgrades and access to current user assistance, while sales  

of professional services on implementation, introduction and 

expansion of software installations generate professional 

service fees. 

GROWTH STRATEGY

The business model is further based on a number of overall 

objectives,	broken	down	by	management	into	specific	

strategies and measurable components facilitating follow-up 

on	the	achievement	of	the	overall	objectives.	The	overall	

objectives	are	categorised	within	the	individual	main	areas,	

linked primarily to growth, product development through 

innovation and quality assurance, and building of competen-

ces. These focus areas are intended to ensure sustained good 

financial performance through growth and an improved 

efficiency for the benefit of all the company’s stakeholders. 

SimCorp’s	fundamental	management	objective	is	to	promote	

the long-term interests of the company, and thus of all share- 

holders. Accordingly, long-term value creation is the primary 

criterion of success. SimCorp therefore builds growth on a 

strong market strategy, forward-looking product development 

strategies and consistent and proven knowledge strategies. 

Together with the strong business model, these elements 

enable SimCorp to generate sustained strong results.

MARKET STRATEGY

SimCorp’s business model is based on long-term, strategic 

partnerships with customers. Such long-standing relations 

enable SimCorp to achieve in-depth insight into the customer’s 

current business and to contribute ideas for the further 

development of the installation in order to enhance efficiency 

and flexibility. 

This provides SimCorp’s consultants with greater understand-

ing of the customer’s business, enabling them to offer high- 

quality assistance and support services. SimCorp’s customer 

base includes some of the financially strongest investment 

managers, and the partnership between SimCorp and its 

customers is based on mutual trust and respect.

SimCorp’s market strategy also provides for greater focus on 

setting up partnerships with third-party suppliers. SimCorp 

seeks a pro-active partnership with third-party suppliers that 

can add value to SimCorp or its customers, allowing SimCorp 

to benefit from a number of additional business opportunities 

and strengthen the company’s competitive position.

SimCorp pursues a structured market penetration strategy, 

aiming to implement expansion in a controlled process and 

striving to balance between profitability and investing for the 

future.	The	consistent	objective	is	to	position	the	Group	for	

further growth.

DOMAIN-BASED PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

SimCorp continuously allocates substantial resources to the 

further development of SimCorp Dimension in order to be able 

to meet existing and future customer requirements at all times. 

This applies to enhanced system functionality as well as to 

improved technical infrastructure.

SimCorp’s product development is based on the systematic 

collection and prioritising of customer and market require-

ments and demands, enabling SimCorp to provide a cutting-

edge product that drives market developments and to offer 

customers the solutions required by the financial markets and 

regulators, today and in the future. 

The product development strategy for SimCorp Dimension is 

furthermore based on a domain concept designed to enhance 

functionality, the implementation process and the strategic 

perspectives of SimCorp Dimension. 

The domains are based on the customers’ business processes. 

Focusing the product development strategy on these domains 
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Educational background

At 31 December 2007, SimCorp had 863 employees located at 14 offices 

on four continents. The average age of SimCorp staff was 36 years and the 

average length of service was five years at 31 December 2007. 

SimCorp is an international workplace with almost 30 different nationalities 

being represented among its staff. 

In 2007, more than 50 employees were on international assignment to 

other SimCorp companies.

Almost 300 people completed the certification programme, SimCorp 

Academy, in 2007 – one third was customers, the rest SimCorp employees. 

A total of roughly 900 SimCorp Dimension-certifications were completed 

in 2007. 
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allows SimCorp to achieve a better functional match between 

SimCorp Dimension and customer requirements and reduce 

time-to-market. This latter factor is a key parameter of success 

in future financial markets which see demands and terms 

changing at a growing pace.

Investment	managers	worldwide	are	subject	to	ever	intensify-

ing competition and thus pressure in the market to make their 

in-house work processes more efficient and reduce operating 

costs. SimCorp therefore intends to continue to devote a large 

part of its development resources to making customers’ work 

processes more efficient. Furthermore, parts of the system are 

being further modularised in order to increasingly improve 

SimCorp Dimension’s availability as an independent partial 

solution integratable with other systems. This provides new 

business opportunities in a competitive market.

KNOWLEDGE STRATEGY

Highly qualified employees remain essential to developing, 

selling and implementing world-class software. So as to 

strengthen SimCorp’s market position, the company relies  

on continually developing its financial expertise and software 

know-how. In order to offer customers added value when  

they choose a SimCorp system solution, it is essential that 

SimCorp’s employees have updated knowledge of financial 

instruments and investment management processes, including 

international and national standards, as well as legislation and 

requirements.

With the intention of ensuring that the employees continually 

develop their skills SimCorp continuously focuses on recruit-

ment and ongoing training of competent employees and on 

strengthening knowledge sharing. 

SimCorp promotes knowledge sharing by way of, among 

other	things,	job	rotation,	secondment	and	implementation	 

of information technology to support the business processes. 

SimCorp dedicates substantial resources to providing such 

technology. This has, among other things, resulted in SimCorp 

being awarded the prize for Denmark’s best intranet in 2007 

for its work with developing a centralised platform for 

knowledge sharing. The platform is used by all the Group’s 

employees. 

SimCorp makes a sustained, targeted effort to continue to 

attract and retain highly qualified employees. These efforts 

include focused management and measurement of employee 

performance and development of skills to ensure that 

competent employees are rewarded and motivated to 

continuous learning in line with the development of SimCorp’s 

business. All employees participate in employee performance 

reviews several times a year, defining specific individual targets 

in	relation	to	the	company’s	overall	objectives.	This	allows	the	

individual employee to see and understand his or her own 

contribution to the company’s performance, and it allows 

management	to	monitor	objective	achievement	regularly	and	

to	adjust	efforts	if	required.

To	achieve	its	ambitious	objectives,	SimCorp	has	a	comprehen-

sive training programme, which aims to efficiently translate 

general knowledge into specialised skills and ensure that the 

qualifications of all employees are currently upgraded and 

developed. It is important for SimCorp that employees are able 

to translate theoretical knowledge into practice in order to 

exploit competences to the full for the benefit of customers 

and employees alike. 

An important feature of this programme is the SimCorp 

Academy certification programme which is mandatory for all 

new SimCorp Dimension consultants. SimCorp Academy aims 

to build competences in and around the use and implementa-

tion of SimCorp Dimension and thus to give all SimCorp 

consultants the very best qualifications for offering customers 

high-quality service and sparring. SimCorp Academy consists 

of three levels that end with a test, and employees have to 

build practical experience of working with SimCorp Dimension 

to qualify for continued certification.

SimCorp Academy courses are also available to SimCorp 

customers, enabling them to maximise the benefits of their 

system solution.
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MARKET DEVELOPMENTS

The change and volatility characterising the financial markets 

in 2007 is expected to continue for some time. At present, it is 

uncertain whether this unrest will delay or accelerate the 

structural changes driving recent years’ trends in institutional 

investment management. Structural changes are in any case 

expected to continue to influence the market. 

The Group expects that for several years to come a number  

of diversified factors will dominate the market for investment 

management and determine the market trends that will drive 

SimCorp’s business development.

The principal trends in the investment management market are 

expected to be:

•	 	Sustained	growth	in	assets	under	management

•	 	Increased	globalisation	and	harmonisation	of	the	financial	

markets

•	 	Stronger	competition	among	investment	managers	on	their	

ability to generate added returns

The Group therefore expects continued consolidation among 

investment managers, also across national borders. Interna-

tionalisation among investment managers results in continu-

ously growing demands on the scalability of investment 

management systems, and system solutions are required to 

offer simultaneous handling of different financial instruments 

in	different	jurisdictions	with	different	financial	reporting	rules	

and standards.

General requirements on investment management systems are 

expected to increase and become more complex as systems 

will be required to handle several sophisticated financial 

strategies and increasingly complex instruments. The volatility 

in the financial markets must also be anticipated to increase 

focus on integration of risk management into the investment 

management process.

SimCorp believes that the above factors will cause continued 

consolidation of the number of investment management 

systems and stronger demand for enterprise solutions  

comprising software, professional services and other  

services.

The structural changes which the market is undergoing do not 

point in any one single direction, and SimCorp sees significant 

variations across markets. SimCorp believes, however, that 

institutional investment managers will increasingly seek to 

focus on their core business, which in many cases they do not 

consider to include maintenance and updating of proprietary 

software systems. Accordingly, in line with trends observed in 

other industries, SimCorp expects sustained demand for 

standard enterprise software solutions. Over time, such 

comprehensive standard solutions are expected to replace 

proprietary systems or system complexes consisting of many 

different components from a variety of providers.

SimCorp believes that the Group is well positioned structurally 

for the future market developments, supported by the function- 

ality provided by its existing software solutions and the con- 

tinued substantial investments in developing new and improved 

functionality in future product versions.

OPERATIONAL TARGETS FOR 2008

SimCorp’s business development in 2008 will remain focused 

on maintaining profitable growth.

The operational business targets for the year include:

•	 	Further	increasing	awareness	of	SimCorp	Dimension	in	

North America and winning new licence agreements

•	 	Strengthening	SimCorp	Dimension’s	market	position	in	the	

UK	and	increasing	the	number	of	customers

•	 	Increasing	SimCorp	Dimension’s	market	shares	in	Germany,	

Austria, Switzerland, Benelux, Australia and Asia

•	 	Retaining	SimCorp	Dimension’s	solid	market	position	in	the	

Nordic region

•	 	Continuing	to	build	customer	relations

•	 	Expanding	the	distribution	capacity	for	SimCorp	Dimension

•	 	Expanding	the	development	capacity	for	SimCorp	

Dimension, including through additional activities in the 

Group’s	subsidiary	in	the	Ukraine

•	 	Further	developing	SimCorp	Dimension’s	functionality	 

by increased focus on a domain-based development 

organisation

REVENUE AND PROFIT OUTLOOK FOR 2008

Based	on	the	operational	targets	for	2008,	SimCorp	projects	

the total value of licence orders to be in line with 2007. The 

company expects the licence base to grow organically at an 

annual rate of 8% in the form of add-on licences. The licence 

base, which is the aggregate value of installed software 

licences,	stood	at	EUR	302m	at	31	December	2007.

TARGETS AN D OUTLOOK
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The	quality	of	SimCorp’s	pipeline	of	sales	projects	in	all	markets 

supports the expectations of sustained growth in new orders. 

Against this background, the Group expects overall business 

growth	of	just	under	15%	in	2008.	Overall	business	growth	is	

measured as revenue growth plus net growth in the licence 

order book.

SimCorp’s long-term target is to generate annual revenue 

growth in the range of 10 to 20%. Although the revenue 

impact of individual orders is decreasing, the Group’s revenue 

will continue to be impacted by relatively few, but large system 

orders, and such orders are expected to be won at relatively 

irregular intervals. Accordingly, income will vary considerably 

from one reporting period to the next. For 2008 SimCorp 

expects	total	revenue	in	the	EUR	175	to	185m	range.	

The	projected	breakdown	of	revenue	for	2008	is	as	follows:	

licence fees at least 35%, fees from professional services close 

on 35% and maintenance income around 30%.

Customers who already had business relations with SimCorp 

at	1	January	2008	are	expected	to	account	for	more	than	80%	

of total revenue in 2008. Sales to existing customers are 

generally less dependent on general economic conditions in 

the short term and mainly consist of recurring maintenance 

income.

Fees from professional services and income from the sale of 

add-on licences also contribute to revenue. Revenue from 

customers in the process of implementing a SimCorp system 

solution consists mainly of professional service fees and licence 

income	from	existing	licence	agreements	(order	book)	as	and	

when	such	implementation	projects	are	completed.

Maintenance income is stable and can be reliably predicted. 

Fees from professional services are primarily based on hourly- 

paid services, and in particular revenue based on regularly 

customer relationships has proven to be relatively stable  

over time.

SimCorp’s business structure has resulted in more robust 

earnings over the years and has reduced the company’s depen- 

dence on winning new licence agreements in individual years.

Staff costs are expected to account for around two thirds of 

the company’s expenses in 2008. R&D is expected to account 

for around 28% of total expenses, with the remainder relating 

to sales and distribution costs and administrative expenses. 

The higher cost level will be impacted by three principal factors: 

general pay increases in the market triggered by competition 

for qualified employees, the influence of the company’s expan- 

sion in 2007, and additional planned expansion in 2008. Costs 

in 2008 will also reflect the move of all SimCorp staff located 

in Denmark to new headquarters.  

The overall EBIT margin for 2008 is expected to be in the  

22 to 25% range.

SimCorp believes that the SimCorp Dimension enterprise 

solution and a stronger sales, service and development 

organisation make the company well positioned to meet 

market demands and that the Group holds a strong com- 

petitive edge. Overall, SimCorp thus has positive expectations 

for long-term business developments.
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SIMCORP SHARES

SimCorp	shares	(ISIN	code	DK0016026164)	are	listed	on	OMX	

Nordic Exchange Copenhagen and classified under sector code 

45103010. The official price of the share at 31 December 2007 

was	DKK	1,010	after	a	fall	of	DKK	379	or	27%	relative	to	the	

price at 31 December 2006. The OMXC20 index, the OMX 

Nordic Exchange Copenhagen blue chip index, rose by 3.7%, 

while	the	index	for	medium-sized	companies	(MidCap+),	of	

which the SimCorp share is a component, fell by 11.6% in 2007. 

The average daily turnover of SimCorp shares on OMX Nordic 

Exchange	Copenhagen	rose	by	51%	to	DKK	26.2m	in	2007.

The annualised share price volatility in 2007, that is, the average 

daily	price	variation	(standard	deviation),	was	34.6%,	as	com- 

pared with 17.5% for the OMXC20 index in the same period.

The company’s share capital amounts to a nominal value of 

DKK	49,250,000	divided	into	4,925,000	shares	of	DKK	10	

each. There were no changes to the share capital in 2007.  

All shares confer equal rights on their holders.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

At 31 December 2007, SimCorp had more than 7,400 register- 

ed shareholders representing approximately 80% of the com- 

pany’s	share	capital,	a	small	increase	relative	to	2006.	Just	over	

60% of the company’s share capital was held in Danish securities 

accounts, and Danish shareholders accounted for more than 

90% of total shareholders. Almost 50% of the share capital is 

held or managed by SimCorp’s 20 largest shareholders.

Around 11% of the company’s share capital is held by the 

company’s management and employees. Furthermore, SimCorp 

estimates that Danish and foreign institutional investors held 

some 51% of the company’s shares. The company held 5.7% 

of the shares as treasury shares. In addition, the following 

shareholders have notified the company, as required by section 

28 a of the Danish Public Companies Act, that they hold more 

than 5% of the company’s share capital:

•	 	The	Danish	Labour	Market	Supplementary	Pension	Fund	

(ATP)	11.4%

•	 	Stichting	Pensioenfonds	voor	de	Gezondheid	Geestelijke	 

en	Maatschapelijke	Belangen	(PGGM)	5.1%

EMPLOYEE SHARE PROGRAMME

In March 2005, the shareholders at SimCorp’s annual general 

meeting authorised the company to increase the share capital 

during	the	period	until	2009	by	up	to	90,000	shares	of	DKK	

10	each,	equivalent	to	a	nominal	value	of	DKK	900,000,	for	

the purpose of employee share programmes.

The employee share programme for 2007 was implemented 

by	the	company	using	14,088	treasury	shares	of	DKK	10	each,	

equivalent	to	DKK	140,880,	and	accordingly,	the	above	

authority was not utilised in 2007. The proceeds from the sale 

amounted	to	EUR	0.9m,	for	an	average	price	of	DKK	457	per	

share	of	DKK	10.	As	part	of	the	employee	share	programme,	

members of the Executive Management Board bought 1,021 

shares and members of the Board of Directors who are also 

employees bought 114 shares.

The Group plans to continue the employee share programme 

in 2008 and, as in 2007, treasury shares will be used to cover 

the programme.

STOCK OPTION PROGRAMME

In 2003, SimCorp introduced a stock option programme for the 

Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board, senior 

managers and key employees. The stock option programme is 

intended to provide the company’s management and selected 

key employees with a special incentive to contribute to the 

company’s positive long-term performance and thus to the 

positive development in the price of the company’s shares.

In 2007, the Board of Directors continued the stock option 

programme	and	awarded	65,000	stock	options	worth	EUR	

1.7m, entitling the holders to purchase 65,000 shares to the 

Executive Management Board, senior managers and other key 

employees. The exercise price has been fixed at 5, 10 and 

15% above the price of the shares at the time of issue of 

options with a term of 1, 2 and 3 years, respectively. Further-

more, the Board of Directors has obtained approval from the 

shareholders to receive up to 4,200 stock options in respect of 

the 2007 financial year. The Board of Directors received 3,000 

stock options in 2007 as the value of such stock options at the 

time of grant was restricted to 50% of a Board member’s cash 

Share price performance, 2007
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remuneration. All obligations under the stock option programme 

will be covered by the Group’s holding of treasury shares. 

SimCorp’s stock option programme is described in greater 

detail in note 5 to the financial statement.

The Board of Directors plans to continue to have the stock 

option programme for 2008 include the company’s top per- 

formers. The stock option programme for 2008 will be 

extended by some 15% relative to the allotment in 2007 and 

will comprise a maximum of 75,000 stock options of an 

estimated	value	of	around	EUR	2.2m.	As	in	2007,	treasury	

shares will be acquired to cover the programme obligations.

As provided in the remuneration policy submitted to the annual 

general meeting, Board members will in future receive shares 

as part of their total remuneration instead of stock options.

SHARES AND STOCK OPTIONS HELD BY  

RELATED PARTIES

At 31 December 2007, the six members of the company’s 

Board of Directors held a total of 13,869 SimCorp shares. The 

three members of the Group’s Executive Management Board 

held a total of 39,908 SimCorp shares. Pursuant to the Danish 

Securities Trading Act, SimCorp has reported changes in related 

party shareholdings to OMX Nordic Exchange Copenhagen. 

These reports are available at the company’s website.

Additional information on the holdings of shares and stock 

options in SimCorp by members of the Board of Directors,  

the Executive Management Board and other related parties is 

disclosed in note 28 to the financial statement.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of SimCorp A/S will be held at 

3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 26 March 2008, at ‘Den Sorte 

Diamant’	(the	Royal	Danish	Library),	Søren	Kierkegaards	Plads	

1,	1221	Copenhagen	K,	Denmark.

As announced at the 2007 annual general meeting, Steen 

Rasborg does not offer himself for re-election, and the Board 

of Directors intends to propose that Hervé Couturier be 

elected as new member of the Board of Directors.

Hervé Couturier, born 1958, is a French citizen. He holds an 

M.Sc. in Industrial Engineering from École Centrale de Paris.  

As Senior Vice President of SAP, Mr Couturier is responsible  

for Business Intelligence. During his career, which includes 

positions	with	Business	Objects,	IBM	and	Xrt-Cerg,	Mr	Couturier 

has built international experience in software development for 

the financial sector as well as general management skills.

The Board of Directors intends to propose that the total 

remuneration to the Board of Directors for the 2008 financial 

year	be	composed	of	cash	remuneration	totalling	DKK	1.6m,	

representing two thirds of the total remuneration, and 

SimCorp shares at market value representing one third of the 

remuneration,	amounting	to	a	total	remuneration	of	DKK	

2.4m,	against	a	remuneration	of	DKK	2.1m	in	2007.	‘Guide- 

lines for incentive remuneration’ on page 20 describes the 

Board’s proposed remuneration structure of the Board and  

the Executive Management Board. These guidelines are  

subject	to	approval	by	the	annual	general	meeting.	

Furthermore, the Board of Directors intends to propose that 

the shareholders authorise the company to acquire treasury 

shares in the period until the next annual general meeting of  

a total nominal value of up to 10% of the company’s share 

capital, see section 48 of the Danish Public Companies Act. 

The Board also intends to ask the shareholders to authorise a 

change in the denomination of SimCorp shares.

In addition, the Board of Directors intends to ask the share- 

holders at the annual general meeting for an authorisation to 

pay extraordinary dividends pursuant to section 109 a of the 

Danish Public Companies Act.

DIVIDENDS

A balance sheet composition that does not raise questions 

about the company’s financial stability is vital to SimCorp’s 

continued international expansion. Management believes this 

objective	is	achieved	if	cash	holdings	amount	to	at	least	10%	

of	the	coming	year’s	projected	revenue.

On this assumption, the company intends to pay dividends of 

around 75% of the profit on ordinary activities after tax. 

Further generated cash flow will be used to buy treasury shares, 

provided it does not anticipate specific cash requirements.

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the share-

holders	at	the	annual	general	meeting	that	dividends	of	EUR	

23.4m be distributed in respect of the 2007 financial year, 

equal	to	DKK	37.50	per	share	of	DKK	10	nominal	value.	The	

company	intends	to	buy	treasury	shares	for	around	EUR	20m	

in 2008. 

In order to be eligible for dividends, shares must be registered 

in the custody account on or before 26 March 2008. The ex- 

dividend date is 27 March 2008. Dividends are expected to be 

available on 1 April 2008.
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SimCorp’s Board of Directors has examined each of the 

recommendations for corporate governance issued by OMX 

Nordic Exchange Copenhagen and has assessed that SimCorp 

operates in accordance with the recommendations. 

Principles for the overall management of SimCorp are 

embodied in the company’s ‘Corporate Governance Guidelines’ 

(‘Retningslinjer	for	den	overordnede	ledelse	af	SimCorp’).	

These guidelines are available at the company’s website.

THE BOARD’S WORK WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

GUIDELINES FOR SIMCORP

The guidelines are the key tool for SimCorp’s management 

when defining working procedures and principles. The guide- 

lines are intended to ensure the efficient and adequate manage- 

ment of SimCorp within the framework defined by applicable 

legislation and rules for Danish listed companies and by 

SimCorp’s Articles of Association, mission, corporate vision  

and basic values.

SIMCORP’S RELATIONSHIP WITH ITS STAKEHOLDERS

SimCorp’s	management	objective	is,	in	all	respects,	to	promote	

the long-term interests of the company, and thus of all share- 

holders.	The	objective	of	creating	long-term	value	assumes,	

among other things, that SimCorp sets up durable and con- 

structive relationships with the Group’s primary stakeholders: 

shareholders, customers, employees and suppliers. Such relations 

are based on the Group’s mission and on professional and 

commercial relations.

SimCorp’s information policy plays a key role in this connec-

tion. The policy is designed to ensure that stakeholders receive 

timely, relevant, accurate and full information on the Group’s 

activities to the extent such disclosure would not be detrimen-

tal or potentially detrimental to SimCorp’s existing or future 

competitive position. In order to enable shareholders and 

equity market participants to make an independent, profes-

sional evaluation and analysis of SimCorp’s commercial and 

financial position and future prospects, SimCorp publishes 

material information on the company’s financial results, 

business activities and strategic goals. 

Part of this disclosure is a regular part of SimCorp’s interim 

reports.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate	Social	Responsibility	(CSR)	in	SimCorp	is	firmly	

based on the Group’s core values and SimCorp’s ‘Corporate 

Governance Guidelines’ as adopted by the Board of Directors. 

Our commitment to sustainable development of SimCorp is 

based on combining financial performance with socially 

responsible behavior and environmental awareness.

Overall, SimCorp aims at maintaining and enhancing our 

professional relations with internal and external stakeholders 

based on mutual respect. We abide by the law in all our doings, 

locally as well as internationally, and in the conduct of business 

we will maintain a high ethical standard and always perform 

our activities with integrity and responsibility.

SimCorp is greatly committed to proper and diligent conduct 

in respect of the services and products we provide to our 

clients, and we commit ourselves to long-term and mutually 

value adding relationships with all our customers with respect 

for each individual client’s business and social environment. 

We expect all our existing and potential clients to share our 

standards for sound and responsible behavior and trust them 

to operate in a legal and ethical manner. 

We respect the individuality of all our employees and offer 

each equal opportunity for learning and growing in accord-

ance with their individual needs and capabilities as well as  

the company’s situation. 

Our communication policy ensures all our shareholders equal, 

adequate and timely access to information on our business. 

We pursue an open dialogue with all investors and analysts 

about the company’s activities and financial performance. 

We aim to reduce our environmental impact and act with 

sustained reliability and respect for our surroundings. 

THE WORK OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE 

ExECUTIVE MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Board of Directors is a collective body for promoting the 

long-term interests of the company in all respects. The Board 

of Directors is responsible for the overall strategic manage-

ment and the financial and managerial control of the company 

being conducted adequately in all respects. Thus, the Board of 

Directors acts as a sparring partner to the Executive Manage-

ment Board in relation to strategic initiatives and monitors the 

Group’s financial position, risk management and business 

activities on an ongoing basis.

SimCorp’s Board of Directors held six meetings in 2007.  

At these meetings, the Board discussed the Group’s current 

business and financial performance and the Group’s overall 

strategy. In addition, the Board of Directors held a two-day 

strategy seminar in 2007 to discuss the Group’s long-term 

strategy.

COMPOSITION AND QUALIFICATIONS OF  

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors should ensure its 

independence of any special interests. The Board of Directors 

COR PORATE GOVER NANC E
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should consist of a number of members that is sufficient to 

enable an appropriate distribution of tasks among the members 

as well as an efficient and rapid decision-making process. It is 

essential that the Board of Directors acts as an efficient, 

visionary and result-oriented dialogue partner for SimCorp’s 

Executive Management Board. The Board of Directors has 

therefore drawn up the ideal profile for the Board’s aggregate 

competences to ensure that its members between them 

represent the required professional breadth and knowledge of 

the industry as well as the required business and financial com-

petences. These competences have been identified within the 

areas of strategy, finance and operations, as well as organisa-

tion and management, and the ideal profile is updated regularly 

taking into account SimCorp’s strategic position.

SimCorp’s Board of Directors consists of between three and six 

members elected by the company’s shareholders and members 

elected by the company’s employees. Members of SimCorp’s 

Board	of	Directors	are	elected	for	one	year	at	a	time	(employee	

elected	members	for	four	years).	The	chairman	shall	ensure	

that new Board members are being thoroughly introduced to 

the Board’s work. The shareholders in general meeting elect 

new members to the Board of Directors. The retiring Board 

nominates candidates and explains the reasons for their 

nomination. If a Board member elected by the employees 

leaves SimCorp or is otherwise absent for a prolonged period 

of time, the alternate elected by the employees will replace 

such member.

SELF-ASSESSMENT

Again in 2007, SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Executive 

Management Board performed a self-assessment process 

headed by the Chairman of the Board based on contributions 

from the individual members. The self-assessment is performed 

each year, focusing on different themes within two principal 

areas: the quality and efficiency of the Board’s work and the 

collaboration between the Board of Directors and the 

Executive Management Board.
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OVERALL PRINCIPLES

SimCorp’s Board of Directors has adopted an overall policy for 

the remuneration and incentive programmes in SimCorp, the 

overall	objective	being	to	promote	the	employees’	and	manage- 

ment’s awareness of profitable growth and SimCorp’s long- 

term goals. The remuneration principles for management take 

effect when the shareholders have approved the remuneration 

principles at the annual general meeting in March 2008. 

The most important elements of this policy are:

•	 	The	policy	is	based	on	local	conditions	in	the	markets	where	

SimCorp operates

•	 	Remuneration	principles	and	structure	apply	equally	to	all	

managers irrespective of their geographic location, but the 

actual remuneration depends on local market conditions 

and may therefore vary

•	 	To	ensure	transparency	in	performance-related	pay,	only	 

a few milestones are used, primarily growth and the 

profitable development of SimCorp’s business

•	 	Senior	management	will	have	a	higher	proportion	of	

incentive related pay relative to overall salary

•	 	A	portion	of	the	total	remuneration	received	by	all	

employees is linked to the profitable growth of SimCorp’s 

business 

•	 	To	enhance	the	focus	of	all	staff	in	SimCorp	on	the	long- 

term interests of the shareholders share-based incentive 

plans are based on business or share price performance

INCENTIVE REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE PROGRAMME

The short-term incentive programme consists of a cash bonus 

which is linked to the achievement of a number of pre-defined 

company, unit and/or individual targets for an employee. The 

business	targets	on	Group	level	(the	corporate	bonus	scheme)	

will typically be related to growth in business and EBIT margin 

for the SimCorp Group. The Board of Directors sets the targets 

for corporate bonuses prior to each financial year and the 

targets are the same for all employees in the Group – including 

management.

An employee may decide to use his or her corporate bonuses 

as an investment in the long-term incentive programme.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PROGRAMME

The long-term incentive programme is first and foremost 

related to the absolute development of the share price of 

SimCorp. The company’s long-term incentive programme is 

designed so as to enhance the Group’s focus on shareholders’ 

long-term interests.

SimCorp applies two instruments: employee shares and stock 

options.

The Board of Directors plans for the company to continue to 

offer employee shares. The employee share programme is 

closely linked to the corporate bonus scheme – and hence the 

value of the corporate bonus scheme is increased as well as 

the employees’ attention to the share price. 

Based on the results for the SimCorp Group, the corporate 

bonus is calculated for each employee, who subsequently  

may choose to have the bonus amount paid out in cash or, 

alternatively, have it paid in SimCorp shares with a discount 

(currently	60%)	to	current	market	price.	Such	shares	are	

locked up for a period of five years.

Stock option programmes are revolving with options being 

granted and vesting over a number of years. The exercise price 

is to be higher than the market price of SimCorp shares at the 

time the options are granted, and options have a term up to 

five years.

Stock options are granted to members of management  

(see	paragraph	‘Remuneration	of	the	Executive	Management	

Board’)	and	selected	key	employees.	Stock	options	are	used	 

as an incentive to retain key employees, who are considered 

crucial for SimCorp’s long-term development. Typically stock 

options are granted to 5 to 10% of the employees in the 

Group.	Up	to	2%	of	the	outstanding	shares	can	be	used	for	

stock option programmes every year.

REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The shareholders approve the remuneration of the Board of 

Directors for the coming year at the annual general meeting. 

The Chairmanship prepares a proposal regarding Board remune- 

ration that is passed by the Board for presentation at the annual 

general meeting. 

To comply with the recommendations of OMX Nordic Exchange 

Copenhagen, the Board intends to propose to the annual 

general meeting in March 2008 that going forward a part of 

the total compensation will be paid in SimCorp shares rather 

than stock options. The value of the total remuneration is not 

suggested to change significantly, though. 

The level of the total remuneration for the Board of Directors 

proposed to the annual general meeting is in line with con- 

ventional compensation for Board of Directors of comparable, 

Danish companies. The remuneration is equal to all Board 

members. However, the chairman and the vice chairman 

receive 150 and 50%, respectively, more than the other 

members. The annual cash compensation constitutes two 

thirds of the total remuneration, and the value of SimCorp 

shares constitutes one third of the remuneration.

One third of the total remuneration is converted into a number 

of SimCorp shares by applying an average share price. The 

GU I DELI N ES FOR I NC ENTIVE R EMU N ERATION

To CONTENTS



M A N A G E M E N T  R E P O R T

21

applied average share price for SimCorp shares is defined as 

the average share price in the 3-day-period following the release 

of the annual report. The calculated numbers of shares are 

transferred to the Board members’ custody accounts with 25% 

of the number of shares per quarter. The cash compensation is 

also paid on a quarterly basis. 

The shares must be held in custody by the Board members for 

a minimum period of one year after the shares are transferred 

to the Board members. This condition only applies to Board 

members continuing as members of the Board of Directors 

after the annual general meeting.

The Board participates neither in the short-term nor in the long-

term incentive programmes. SimCorp reimburses Board members 

for relevant expenses such as travel and accommodation in rela-

tion to Board meetings. In case a Board member is spending sig- 

nificant time for travelling to and from Board meetings the Board 

member is entitled to a minor travel day fee per attended meet-

ing. The size of the travel day fee is determined by the Board. 

REMUNERATION OF THE ExECUTIVE  

MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Board of Directors approves the remuneration of the Exe- 

cutive Management Board for the coming financial year based 

on a proposal from the Chairmanship. At the annual general 

meeting the Chairman of the Board of Directors informs about 

the remuneration of the Executive Management Board. 

The aggregate remuneration of the Executive Management 

Board consists of a fixed salary and participation in the short- 

term and the long-term incentive programmes. The aggre-

gated remuneration is evaluated against remuneration for 

Danish and international companies similar in size and with 

comparable business activities. The target salary constitutes 

the remuneration if all the predefined short term incentive 

related targets are fully met. 

Below the remuneration structure for the Executive Manage-

ment Board is summarised:

 In percentage of base salary

Base	salary	(cash	and	pension	contribution)	 100

Short	term	incentive	(if	targets	are	met	100%)	 40

Value of discount on employee shares 6

Long-term option based incentive scheme 40

Total 186

In addition to the above table, there are other benefits such  

as company car whose value will typically be around 8% of 

the base salary.

The structure for remuneration of the Executive Management 

Board consists of a base salary including pension contribution, 

short term incentive programme with a target value of 40% of 

the base salary, the possibility to invest in employee shares of 

which the value of discount is 6% of the base salary and an 

option scheme of which the value of the options at the time  

of grant is 40% of the base salary. 

The Executive Management Board participates in the short 

term incentive programme with an annual cash bonus scheme 

of which the target value is 40% of the base salary. Typically 

the cash bonus is split equally on two measures: profitability 

(EBIT	margin)	and	business	growth,	however	other	measures	

might be applied. As part of the approval of the short term 

incentive programme the Board of Directors decides every year 

the target values for each measure for the coming year. If the 

target	values	for	the	measures	are	exceeded	(above	100%	

achievement	of	targets)	the	Board	of	Directors	may	decide	to	

apply an incentive for ‘over-performance’, in that case the 

actual total compensation for the Executive Management 

Board may exceed the target salary. The Board of Directors sets 

the short-term incentive targets at demanding levels and if the 

Group’s business performance should exceed all the ambitious 

targets by 10% the over-performance incentive would typically 

be around 2% of the base salary.

The incentive to long-term value creation is based on partici- 

pation in the employee shares and granting of stock options. 

The members of the Executive Management Board are offered 

to participate in the company’s employee share programme if 

certain minimum criteria for the short term incentive programme 

are	achieved.	Up	to	10%	of	the	Executive	Management	Board	

member’s annual base salary can be used to acquire employee 

shares with a discount of currently 60% to the market price. 

Such employee shares are locked up for a period of five years. 

Members of the Executive Management Board participate in 

stock option programmes and are allocated stock options 

whose value (Black-Scholes) at the time of grant is 40% of the 

base salary. 20% of the allocated options are vesting after one 

year, 30% after two years and 50% after three years and the 

exercise price is 5, 10 and 15%, respectively, higher than the 

market price at the time of grant. The maturity of the options 

is	five	years.	The	value	of	the	options	(Black-Scholes)	is	deter- 

mined at the time of grant and the number of allocated options 

is calculated using 40% of the base salary. In the past typically 

4,000 stock options have been allocated to each member of 

the Executive Management Board. 

Unless	the	Executive	Management	Board	member	already	

holds SimCorp shares with a market value that exceeds the 

member’s fixed cash salary it is furthermore a requirement that 

shares acquired by the individual on the exercise of options 

shall be held in trust for at least three years. 
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SimCorp operates in a dynamic and complex business environ- 

ment, and its performance depends on the ongoing achieve-

ment of a number of success criteria. The section below contains 

a brief description of the most important general risk factors and 

the risk prevention measures observed in day-to-day operations. 

Management believes the company stands well prepared to 

meet these challenges and regularly monitors factors that are 

subject	to	uncertainty	and	therefore	represent	a	potential	risk.

CUSTOMERS AND MARKETS

There is a risk that competitors anticipate trends in the finan- 

cial markets earlier than SimCorp does and make a more 

structured expansion of their international distribution networks. 

Management is aware of the risk factor involving the potential 

for increased competition from the ERP market in particular. 

Furthermore, macroeconomic factors will continuously impact 

both	existing	and	new	customers’	incentive	to	invest,	just	as	

any legislative requirements in local markets may influence 

their current interest for SimCorp’s product. 

RISK PREVENTION – CUSTOMERS AND MARKETS

Close and longstanding relationships with customers provide 

SimCorp with in-depth knowledge of existing and potential 

markets. The company’s international distribution network is 

expanded and extended in a controlled process, aiming to 

balance between profitability and investing for the future, 

partly by setting up new subsidiaries and partly by collab-

orating with external partners. 

CORPORATE CULTURE AND KNOW-HOW

Failure to continue to attract, retain and develop the best 

employees and failure to identify and incentivise the best 

management talent is a very real risk. Likewise, failure in 

connection with acquisitions and expansion of new business 

areas to integrate new employees into the organisation and 

failure to maintain, protect and continue SimCorp’s strong 

corporate values as a fundamental element of business 

development constitute a potential risk.

RISK PREVENTION – CORPORATE CULTURE  

AND KNOW-HOW

SimCorp allocates substantial resources each year to training 

and developing the professional and personal skills of its 

employees. An extensive in-house management development 

programme aims to ensure that SimCorp always has manage-

ment resources among the best in the industry with an ability 

to develop, challenge and strengthen both employee 

competences and corporate culture on an ongoing basis.  

ExECUTION

There is a risk of inadequate execution of business processes 

as and when the capacity and the ability for continued market 

growth is expanded.

RISK PREVENTION – ExECUTION 

Over a period of time, SimCorp has set up and developed an 

infrastructure and in-house systems that allow it to monitor 

individual components of the business processes. This creates 

a strong overview, providing constant focus, prevention and 

foundation for continued efficiency enhancements. 

PRODUCTS

It is a risk to the company if competitors’ product innovation is 

better able to meet actual market requirements. Inadequate 

quality control and testing of the Group’s products prior to the 

release of new software versions is also a risk factor. 

RISK PREVENTION – PRODUCTS

SimCorp offers updated product versions every six months. 

Updates	are	based	on	the	systematic	collection	and	prioritising	

of customer and market requirements and provide enhanced 

system functionality as well as improved technical infrastruc-

ture. Due to the SimCorp product’s high configurability and 

flexibility, among other factors, a key element of the product 

development strategy is extensive quality assurance and 

consecutive testing prior to the release of new software 

versions. SimCorp continuously raises and follows up on its 

quality targets. 

R ISK FACTORS
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IT RESOURCES

There is a risk of breakdown or temporary interruption of  

IT systems not adequately backed by technical infrastructure.  

RISK PREVENTION – IT RESOURCES

SimCorp continuously monitors its technical infrastructure, 

aiming to predict and minimise the risk of prolonged inter- 

ruption of critical business IT services and works on providing 

solutions for restoring critical business IT services immediately. 

CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISK

There is a risk of failure to hedge the Group’s currency 

exposure as and when SimCorp accelerates its expansion 

outside the euro area. Inadequately structured financial 

management of cash and funding to hedge losses due to 

potential changes in interest rates is also a risk factor.

RISK PREVENTION – CURRENCY AND INTEREST  

RATE RISK

Over a period of time, SimCorp has developed the Group’s 

financial management, enhancing the transparency of the 

individual activities and providing a better overview of financial 

exposure. See note 29, ‘Financial instruments and risk’. 

CONTRACT RISK

There is a risk that the Group’s customer contracts or other 

agreements impose abnormal obligations on SimCorp. This is 

the risk of failure to draft customer contracts and other agree- 

ments in a balanced way taking into account local business 

practices, customers’ legitimate requirements as well as 

protection of the Group’s material business interests.

RISK PREVENTION – CONTRACT RISK

Although the individual contracts are very important to the 

consolidated licence income, revenue from the largest 

customers represents only a small part of the overall revenue. 

It is crucial that we continue to protect the copyright to our 

products. SimCorp’s legal experts review the specific wording 

of all contracts signed by the Group.
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GENERAL

The annual report of the parent company SimCorp A/S and  

the Group is presented in accordance with the International 

Financial	Reporting	Standards	(IFRS)	as	adopted	by	the	EU	 

and additional Danish disclosure requirements for the annual 

reports of listed companies, see OMX Nordic Exchange 

Copenhagen’s disclosure requirements for annual reports of 

listed companies and the Danish Statutory Order on Adoption 

of IFRS issued under the Danish Financial Statements Act. The 

annual report also complies with the International Financial 

Reporting Standards issued by the IASB.

The	functional	currency	for	SimCorp	A/S	is	DKK.

The	annual	report	is	presented	in	EUR	as	most	of	the	Group’s	

transactions are in this currency, which is also the Group’s 

presentation	currency,	rounded	off	to	the	nearest	EUR	1,000.

NEW FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised IAS/IFRS standards and inter- 

pretations came into force in 2007: IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 32 and 

IFRIC 7-10. 

The new financial reporting standards and interpretations do 

not affect recognition or measurement and, consequently, the 

accounting policies are consistent with those applied last year. 

The new standards only result in changes to disclosures in the 

notes to the financial statements.

Management has reassessed the distribution of cost by function 

to better reflect the parent company’s and the Group’s use of 

these functions. The comparative figures for 2006 have been 

adjusted	in	accordance	with	this	reassessment.

DESCRIPTION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements comprise SimCorp A/S 

(the	parent	company)	and	subsidiaries	in	which	the	parent	

company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of the 

votes or otherwise exercises a controlling influence.

Companies in which the group holds between 20% and 50% 

of the voting rights and/or otherwise exercises a significant but 

not a controlling influence are considered associates.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by 

aggregating the financial statements of the parent company 

and the subsidiaries, which have all been prepared in accordance 

with the Group’s accounting policies. On consolidation, intra- 

group income and expenses, shareholdings, balances, dividends 

and unrealised intra-group gains and losses are eliminated. 

Unrealised	gains	on	transactions	with	associates	are	eliminated	

in	proportion	to	the	Group’s	share	in	the	enterprise.	Unrealised	

losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, to 

the extent that no impairment has occurred.

Investments in subsidiaries are eliminated at the proportionate 

share of the subsidiaries’ fair value of identifiable net assets 

and recognised contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Newly acquired or newly established enterprises are recognised 

in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acqui- 

sition. Companies divested or wound up are consolidated in 

the income statement until the date divested or wound up.  

The	comparative	figures	are	not	adjusted	to	reflect	acquisi-

tions. Discontinued operations are presented as a separate 

item.

The takeover method is applied on acquisitions if the parent 

company gains control of the company acquired. Identifiable 

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities in companies acquired 

are measured at the fair value at the date of acquisition. Identi- 

fiable intangible assets are recognised if they can be separated 

or arise from a contractual right and the fair value can be reliably 

measured. Deferred tax on revaluations made is recognised.

For	business	combinations	effected	on	or	after	1	January	2004, 

any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the 

acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 

is recognised as goodwill under intangible assets. Goodwill is 

not amortised, but is tested for impairment annually.

The first impairment test is performed before the end of the 

year of acquisition. On acquisition, goodwill is transferred to 

the cash-generating units which will subsequently form the 

basis for future impairment tests. Any goodwill arising and any 

fair	value	adjustments	made	on	the	acquisition	of	a	foreign	

entity whose functional currency is not the same as the 

SimCorp A/S Group’s presentation currency are treated as 

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated to the 

foreign entity’s functional currency at the exchange rate at the 

transaction date. Any excess of the fair value over the cost of 

acquisition	(negative	goodwill)	is	recognised	in	the	income	

statement at the acquisition date.

For	business	combinations	made	before	1	January	2004,	the	

classification under the previous accounting policy is main-

tained. Goodwill is recognised based on the cost recognised 

under the previous accounting policy less amortisation and 

impairment up to 31 December 2003. Goodwill is not 

amortised	after	1	January	2004,	but	tested	for	impairment	

annually. The accounting treatment of business combinations 

before	1	January	2004	has	not	been	adjusted	in	connection	

with	the	opening	balance	sheet	at	1	January	2004.	Goodwill	

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC I ES
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recognised in the opening balance sheet has been tested for 

impairment	at	1	January	2004.

Any gains or losses on the disposal of subsidiaries and associates 

are stated as the difference between the sales amount and the 

carrying amount of net assets, including goodwill, at the date 

of disposal plus anticipated disposal costs.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

For each of the reporting enterprises in the Group, a functional 

currency is determined. The functional currency is the currency 

in the primary economic environment in which the individual 

reporting entity operates. Transactions in currencies other than 

the functional currency are transactions denominated in 

foreign	currencies.	The	Group’s	presentation	currency	is	EUR.

On initial recognition, transactions denominated in foreign  

currencies are translated into the functional currency at the ex- 

change rate ruling at the transaction date. The average rate of 

exchange for the month is used to reflect the transaction date’s 

exchange rate. Exchange differences arising between the 

exchange rate at the transaction date and the exchange rate 

at the date of actual payment are recognised in the income 

statement under financial income or financial expenses.

Receivables, payables and other monetary items denominated 

in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates 

ruling at the balance sheet date. The difference between  

the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date and the 

exchange rate ruling at the date when the receivable or 

payable arose or the exchange rate applied in the most recent 

annual report is recognised in the income statement under 

financial income and financial expenses.

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	of	intra-group	accounts	between	

SimCorp A/S and subsidiaries that are considered as part of the 

net investment in the enterprise in question are in the consoli- 

dated financial statements recognised directly in equity. Corre- 

sponding	foreign	exchange	adjustments	are	in	SimCorp	A/S’	

financial statements recognised in the income statement. On 

repayment of loans classified as additions to the net investment, 

the	part	of	the	accumulated	foreign	exchange	adjustment	rela- 

ting to the repayment is recognised in the income statement.

On consolidation of foreign subsidiaries and associates with 

functional currencies differing from SimCorp A/S’ presentation 

currency, the income statements are translated at the exchange 

rates ruling at the transaction date and the balance sheets are 

translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet 

date. The average exchange rate for each individual month is 

used as the transaction date exchange rate. Exchange diffe- 

rences arising on the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ 

opening equity at the exchange rates ruling at the balance 

sheet date and on the translation of the income statements 

from the exchange rates ruling at the transaction date to the 

exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date are taken 

directly	to	equity	in	a	separate	exchange	adjustment	reserve.

INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue from sales of standard software licences is recognised 

at the time of delivery if the delivery of standard software does 

not depend on acceptance of delivery of functionality. If there 

is demand for customer acceptance of delivery of functionality, 

the licence revenue is recognised at the time of acceptance.

The total contract sum is allocated to the individual compo-

nents in connection with contracts to deliver standard 

software comprising several components. The individual 

components are recognised according to the principles 

described above.

In case of sales through distributors, the company’s portion of 

the licence revenue is recognised on delivery to the end-user.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term from the time of the 

customer’s acceptance of delivery, see above.
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Professional service fees are recognised as and when the work 

is performed.

Revenue from maintenance agreements is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the contract period.

Other revenue, such as revenue from the sale of hardware  

and training course activities, is recognised in the income 

statement when the products and services have been 

delivered.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises costs defrayed to achieve the year’s 

revenue, including costs of delivering and implementing 

systems, training courses, support etc. Cost of sales primarily 

comprises salaries, share-based payment, other staff-related 

costs, depreciation, amortisation etc. and indirect costs such 

as rent, technological infrastructure etc.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise costs, salaries, 

share-based payment, depreciation and amortisation directly 

or indirectly attributable to the Group’s research and develop-

ment activities.

Research and development costs are expensed in the year in 

which they are incurred, where they do not qualify for 

capitalisation, see the section ‘Capitalisation of software 

development costs’.

Sales and distribution costs

Sales and distribution costs primarily comprise salaries, share- 

based payment and other staff-related costs to sales staff, 

travel and meeting expenses, marketing expenses, deprecia-

tion, amortisation etc. and indirect costs such as rent, 

technological infrastructure etc.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses comprise expenses related to 

management, administrative staff, office costs, depreciation, 

amortisation etc. and indirect costs such as rent, technological 

infrastructure etc.

Other operating income

Other operating income comprises income of a secondary 

nature relative to the activities of the Group, including gains 

on the sale of intangible assets and property, plant and 

equipment, rental income, and, for the parent company, 

re-invoicing to subsidiaries of costs incurred.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise expenses of a secondary 

nature relative to the activities of the Group, including losses 

on the sale of intangible assets and property, plant and 

equipment.

Results of investments in associates

The proportionate share of the profit or loss of associates after 

tax and elimination of the proportionate share of intra-group 

gains or losses is recognised in the consolidated income 

statement.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses include interest income and 

expenses in respect of the financial year and realised and 

unrealised capital gains and losses on securities and realised 

and unrealised exchange gains and losses on foreign currency.

Dividend on investments in subsidiaries and associates is 

recognised in the parent company’s income statement in the 

financial year in which the dividend is declared. However, to 

the extent that the dividend distributed exceeds accumulated 

earnings after the acquisition date dividend is recognised as a 

reduction of the cost of the investment rather than being 

recognised in the income statement.

Tax on profit for the year

In	2005	and	subsequent	years,	SimCorp	A/S	is	jointly	taxed	with 

the Danish subsidiary only. The estimated current tax on the 

income	of	the	jointly	taxed	companies	is	allocated	to	the	

jointly	taxed	Danish	companies	included	in	the	on-account	 

tax scheme.

The tax charge on taxable income for the year is recognised  

in	the	income	statement,	adjusted	for	the	year’s	change	in	

deferred tax provisions and any changes in prior-year taxable 

income. The recognised tax is allocated to the profit for the 

year and to equity for the part relating to changes recognised 

directly in equity.

BALANCE SHEET

Intangible assets

Goodwill

On initial recognition, goodwill is recognised in the balance 

sheet at cost as described under the heading ‘Business 

combinations’. Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost  

less accumulated impairment. Goodwill is not amortised.

To CONTENTS



27

F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T

The carrying amount of goodwill is tested for impairment at 

least annually. Any impairment losses are recognised directly in 

the profit for the year and are not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill	on	acquisitions	effected	before	1	January	2004	is	

recognised	at	the	carrying	amount	at	1	January	2004.

The treatment of the takeover and disposal of enterprises or 

assets to which goodwill relates is described in a paragraph 

under consolidation.

Intangible assets with limited economic lives

Intangible assets with limited economic lives are measured at 

cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 

Intangible assets include proprietary and acquired software.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows:

Software up to 5 years

Capitalisation of software development costs

Proprietary software for the company’s own use

Costs	of	development	projects	for	software	for	the	company’s	

own use are recognised as intangible assets where they are 

clearly defined and identifiable, where there are sufficient re- 

sources	to	implement	the	project,	and	where	it	is	certain	that	

the capital value of identifiable future income or cost reduc- 

tions	will	cover	the	project	costs	and	future	operating	costs.

Capitalised development costs comprise direct payroll costs 

plus overheads. Overheads comprise staff costs, rent, IT, 

communication etc. Any financing expenses in the develop-

ment period are not included.

Development costs comprise costs attributable to the Group’s 

development functions, including salaries, wages and other 

staff costs, amortisation and other indirect costs. The uncapital- 

ised portion of development costs is expensed in the relevant 

item.

Proprietary software for resale

Costs of developing software for resale are recognised as in- 

tangible	assets	subject	to	fulfilment	of	criteria	similar	to	those	

applicable to software for the company’s own use. Capitalised 

development costs are recognised using similar principles as 

those applicable to software for the company’s own use.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at acquisition cost 

or historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impair-

ment losses. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on  

a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the 

assets, which are as follows:

Leasehold improvements up to  10 years

Technical equipment  3 years

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment  5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the expected 

remaining term of the lease up to a maximum of 10 years.

The basis of depreciation is calculated with due consideration 

to the asset’s scrap value, reduced by any impairment write- 

downs. The scrap value is determined at the date of acquisition 

and assessed annually. Where the scrap value exceeds the carry- 

ing amount of the asset, the asset ceases to be depreciated.

If the depreciation period or the scrap value are changed, the 

effect on depreciation going forward is recognised as a change 

in accounting estimates.
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Depreciation is recognised in the income statement as pro- 

duction costs, research and development costs, selling costs  

or administrative expenses.

Impairment of non-current assets

Goodwill, intangible assets with unlimited economic lives and 

development	projects	in	progress	are	tested	for	impairment	

annually by comparing the carrying amounts of the assets with 

their recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of other non-current assets, except for 

tax assets, are reviewed on an ongoing basis to determine any 

indications of impairment in excess of what is expressed in the 

normal depreciation of assets. If there is an indication that an 

asset may be impaired, it is tested for impairment.

If the carrying amount of a non-current asset exceeds its re- 

coverable amount, the carrying amount of the asset is written 

down to the recoverable amount.

Investments in associates in the consolidated  

financial statements

Investments in associates are recognised according to the equity 

method and measured in the balance sheet at the proportion-

ate share of the enterprises’ net asset values calculated in 

accordance with the Group’s accounting policies less or plus 

the proportionate share of any unrealised intra-group gains 

and losses and plus the carrying amount of goodwill.

Associates with a negative equity value are measured at nil.  

A provision is made if SimCorp A/S has a legal or constructive 

obligation to cover the associate’s negative balance.

Investments in subsidaries and associates in the  

parent company’s financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are measured at  

cost in the parent company’s financial statements. Where the 

recoverable amount is lower than cost, the investment is 

written down to the lower value.

The cost is reduced to the extent that dividend distributed 

exceeds the accumulated earnings after the takeover date.

Contracts in progress

Contracts in progress relating to professional services are 

measured at the estimated sales value of the proportion of  

the contract completed at the balance sheet date.

Amounts invoiced on account in excess of work completed are 

included in prepayments under short-term liabilities.

Receivables

Receivables are measured at amortised cost. If a receivable is 

deemed to be impaired, it is written down. Write-downs are 

made individually and on a portfolio level. The write-down is 

recognised in the income statement under administrative 

expenses.

Securities

Listed securities included in the Group’s trading portfolio are 

recognised at cost under current assets at the trade date and 

are subsequently measured at fair value, corresponding to the 

share price of listed securities at the balance sheet date. 

Realised and unrealised capital gains and losses are recognised 

in the income statement under financial income and expenses.

Equity

Dividends are recognised as a liability at the time of adoption 

by the shareholders in general meeting. Dividends recommen- 

ded to be paid for the year are stated as a separate line item 

under equity.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares acquired by the parent company or subsidiaries 

are recognised at cost directly in equity under retained earnings. 

Gains on the sale of treasury shares are recognised directly in 

equity. Dividends in respect of treasury shares are recognised in 

equity under retained earnings.

Proceeds from the sale of treasury shares or the issue of shares 

in SimCorp A/S in connection with the exercise of warrants or 

employee shares are taken directly to equity.

Exchange adjustment reserve

The	exchange	adjustment	reserve	in	the	consolidated	financial	

statements comprises foreign exchange differences arising on 

the translation of the financial statements of enterprises from 

their functional currencies to the SimCorp Group’s presenta-

tion	currency	(EUR).

On full or partial realisation of a net investment, foreign ex- 

change	adjustments	are	recognised	in	the	income	statement.

The	exchange	adjustment	reserve	was	reset	to	nil	at	1	January 

2004 in accordance with IFRS 1.

Incentive schemes

The Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and 

the employees are covered by one or more incentive schemes.  

The most important terms and conditions of the schemes are 

disclosed in the notes.
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Stock options and warrants

For equity-settled stock options and warrants, the fair value is 

measured at the grant date and recognised in the income 

statement under staff costs over the vesting period. The 

balancing item is recognised directly in equity.

On initial recognition of stock options and warrants, the num- 

ber of options and warrants expected to vest is estimated. Sub- 

sequently,	adjustment	is	made	only	for	changes	in	the	number	

of employees estimated to become entitled to options or 

warrants.

The fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes model with 

the parameters indicated in note 5 to the financial statements.

Employee shares

When the SimCorp Group’s employees are given the opportu-

nity to acquire or subscribe for shares at a price below the 

market price, the discount is recognised as an expense in staff 

costs. The balancing item is recognised directly in equity. The 

discount is calculated at the subscription date as the difference 

between fair value and the subscription price of the shares 

acquired or subscribed.

Pension obligations

The Group has entered into pension agreements and similar 

agreements with most of the Group’s employees.

Obligations relating to defined contribution plans are recog- 

nised in the income statement in the period in which they are 

earned, and payments due are recognised in the balance sheet 

under other payables.

For defined benefit plans, annual actuarial calculations are 

made of the net present value of future benefits to be paid 

under the plan. The net present value is calculated based on 

assumptions of the future developments of salary, interest, 

inflation and mortality rates. The net present value is only 

calculated for those benefits earned by the employees through 

their employment with the Group until the present. The 

actuarial calculation of the net present value less the fair value 

of any assets related to the plan is included in the balance 

sheet as pension obligations.

Differences between the expected development of pension 

assets, liabilities and the realised values are termed actuarial 

gains and losses. If the accumulated actuarial gains or losses at 

the beginning of a financial year exceed the higher numerical 

value of 10% of pension liabilities or 10% of the fair value of 

pension assets, the excess amount is recognised in the income 

statement over the expected average working lives of the cov- 

ered employees in the company. Actuarial gains and losses that 

do not exceed the above limits are not recognised in the income 

statement or the balance sheet, but are disclosed in the notes.

In connection with a change in benefits regarding the em- 

ployees’ employment in the enterprise up to now, there is a 

change in the actuarial calculation of the net present value, 

which is termed historical costs. Historical costs are expensed 

immediately if the employees have already earned the right to 

the changed benefits. Otherwise, they are recognised in the 

income statement over the period during which the employees 

earn the right to the benefits.

If a pension plan represents a net asset, the asset is recognised 

only to the extent that it offsets unrecognised actuarial losses, 

future repayments from plans, or will not lead to any future 

payments to the plan.

Corporation tax and deferred tax

Current tax liabilities and current tax receivables are recognised 

in the balance sheet as estimated tax on the taxable income 

for	the	year,	adjusted	for	tax	on	prior	years’	taxable	income	

and for tax paid under the on-account tax scheme.
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Deferred tax is measured according to the balance sheet liability 

method on all temporary differences between the carrying 

amount and tax base of assets and liabilities, apart from tempo- 

rary differences relating to goodwill which is not amortisable 

for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax value of tax losses carried 

forward, are recognised in other non-current assets and 

measured at the amount at which they are expected to be 

used, either by setting off tax on future earnings or by setting 

off deferred tax liabilities within the same legal tax entity.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rules and rates in 

the respective countries that will apply under the legislation in 

force on the balance sheet date when the deferred tax asset is 

expected to crystallise as current tax. Changes in deferred tax 

resulting from changes in tax rates are recognised in the 

income statement.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a legal or a con- 

structive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable 

that an outflow of the Group’s resources will be required to 

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the amount of the obligation.

The minority shareholders’ right to sell their part of the equity 

of partially owned subsidiaries to SimCorp is recognised as a 

liability. This liability is measured at the present value of 

expected future payments and treated as contingent  

purchase consideration.

Obligations to re-establish and refurbish leased offices when 

the premises are vacated are recognised at the estimated 

future costs at the time of vacation.

Liabilities

Other liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where the sale is expected to be effected within one year, 

assets held for sale are presented separately in the balance 

sheet in the items assets held for sale and liabilities regarding 

assets held for sale, respectively. The main items are specified 

in the notes to the financial statements.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying 

amount at the date when the assets were classified as held for 

sale and fair value less costs to sell. Depreciation and amorti- 

sation of assets held for sale cease at the date when the  

assets are classified as held for sale. Certain assets held for 

sale, including deferred tax assets and financial assets, are 

measured according to the usual principles.

Profit after tax of discontinued operations is presented in a 

separate line item in the income statement and specificed in 

the	notes	to	the	financial	statements.	Value	adjustment	and	

gains or losses after tax resulting from the discontinuance of 

operations are recognised in the same separate line item in  

the	income	statement.	Value	adjustment,	gains	and	losses	 

are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities 

for discontinued operations are presented in one line in the 

cash flow statements and disclosed in the notes to the 

financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement shows the parent company’s and  

the Group’s cash flows divided into operating, investing and 

financing activities as well as cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning and end of the year. Cash flows from operating 

activities are calculated as the profit for the year before tax 

adjusted	for	non-cash	operating	items,	changes	in	working	

capital, interest paid and income taxes paid.

Cash flows for investing activities comprise payments in 

connection with acquisitions and disposals of intangible assets 

and property, plant and equipment as well as other non- 

current assets.

Cash flows from financing activities comprise changes in the 

size or composition of share capital and costs incurred in this 

respect and receipts from or repayments of long-term 

liabilities, purchase or sale of bonds and treasury shares and 

distribution of dividends to shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank deposits.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

It	has	been	assessed	that	the	company	has	just	one	primary	

segment, as it sells only standard software licences and related 

services. Information on the primary segment is disclosed in 

the income statement, the balance sheet and the cash flow 

statement. The secondary segment is the Group’s geographical 

markets. Information on these is disclosed in note 2 to the 

financial statements.

Segment information is based on the Group’s management 

and reporting structure and prepared in accordance with the 

Group’s accounting policies.
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND  

THE ExECUTIVE MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board 

of SimCorp A/S have today presented the annual report for 

2007.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 

EU	and	additional	Danish	disclosure	requirements	for	the	

annual reports of listed companies.

We consider the accounting policies to be appropriate to the 

effect that the annual report gives a true and fair view of the 

Group’s and the parent company’s assets, liabilities and 

financial position at 31 December 2007 and of the results of 

the Group’s and the parent company’s operations and cash 

flows	for	the	financial	year	1	January	to	31	December	2007.

We recommend that the annual report be adopted by the 

shareholders at the annual general meeting.

Copenhagen, 28 February 2008

ExECUTIVE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Peter L. Ravn 

Chief Executive Officer

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Steen Rasborg 

Chairman

Carl Christian Ægidius

Peter Theill

Jesper	Brandgaard

Vice Chairman

Kim	S.	Andreasen

Torben Munch

Susan Hakki-Haroun

 

Jacob	Goltermann	

SIGNATU R ES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of SimCorp A/S

We have audited the annual report of SimCorp A/S for the 

financial	1	January	to	31	December	2007,	comprising	a	

statement by the Board of Directors and the Executive 

Management Board, management’s review, accounting 

policies, income statement, balance sheet, statement of 

changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to the 

financial statement for the Group as well as the parent 

company. The annual report has been prepared in accordance 

with the International Financial Reporting Standards as 

adopted	by	the	EU	and	additional	Danish	disclosure	require-

ments for the annual reports of listed companies.

Management’s responsibility for the annual report

The company’s Board of Directors and Executive Management 

Board are responsible for preparing and presenting an annual 

report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 

EU	and	additional	Danish	disclosure	requirements	for	the	

annual reports of listed companies. This responsibility includes: 

designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of an annual 

report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 

policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable 

in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility and basis of opinion

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual report 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with Danish auditing standards. Those standards require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the annual 

report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual 

report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment,	including	the	assessment	of	the	risk	of	material	

misstatement of the annual report, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presen-

tation of the annual report in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appro- 

priateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors and 

the Executive Management Board, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the annual report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit  

opinion.

Our audit did not result in any qualification.

Opinion

In our opinion, the annual report gives a true and fair view  

of the Group’s and the parent company’s assets, liabilities and 

financial position at 31 December 2007 and the results of the 

Group’s and the parent company’s operations and cash flows 

for	the	financial	year	1	January	to	31	December	2007	in	accord- 

ance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as 

adopted	by	the	EU	and	additional	Danish	disclosure	require-

ments for the annual reports of listed companies.

 

Copenhagen, 28 February 2008 

Grant Thornton

Incorporated State Authorised Public Accountants 

Henrik Aslund Pedersen Mikkel Sthyr

State Authorised State Authorised

Public Accountant Public Accountant

KPMG C. Jespersen

State Authorised Public Accountants

Lars Andersen Michael Sten Larsen 

State Authorised State Authorised

Public Accountant Public Accountant
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

 
2006

 
2007

   
2006

 
2007

 
EUR’000	 EUR’000	 Note	 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000	

     Income
 51,798 61,327 2, 3 Revenue 127,127 156,780
 10,673 14,239 4, 5, 6 Cost of sales 43,062 57,436

 41,125 47,088  Gross profit 84,065 99,344

 6,295 10,602  Other operating income 130 112
 22,264 29,838 4, 5, 6 Research and development costs 26,189 34,608
 2,469 3,299 4, 5, 6 Sales and distribution costs 14,558 14,958
 12,791 13,848 4, 5, 6, 7 Administrative expenses 9,313 11,300
 26 166  Other operating expenses 35 194

 9,870 10,539  Profit from operations (EBIT) 34,100 38,396

 0 0 8 Share of profit after tax in associates  152  103
 21,381 26,224 9 Financial income  2,447  3,099
 2,547 2,749 10 Financial expenses  1,281  1,175

 28,704 34,014  Profit before tax, continuing operations 35,418 40,423

 2,815 3,135 11 Tax on the profit for the year, continuing operations 9,866 11,758

 25,889 30,879  Profit for the year, continuing operations 25,552 28,665

 0 0 30 Profit for the year, discontinued operations 1,057 10,334

 25,889 30,879  Profit for the year 26,609 38,999

    which is distributed as follows:
    SimCorp A/S shareholders 26,609 38,999

    Earnings per share
	 	 	 12	 Basic	earnings	per	share	–	EPS	(EUR)	 5.55	 8.22
   12 Diluted earnings per share – EPS-D	(EUR)	 5.44	 8.20
   12 Basic earnings per share, continuing operations –  5.33 6.04
	 	 	 	 EPS	(EUR)
   12 Diluted earnings per share, continuing operations –  5.22 6.03
    EPS-D	(EUR) 

    Proposed distribution of net profit
 22,505 23,360  Proposed dividend
 3,384 7,519  Transferred to retained earnings

 25,889 30,879

€

I NCOME STATEMENT Year ended 31 December
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

 
2006

 
2007

   
2006

 
2007

 
EUR’000	 EUR’000	 Note	 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000	

    
    ASSETS
    Non-current assets
   13 Intangible assets
 0 0  Goodwill 954 872
 2,005 2,362  Acquired software 5,613 5,517
 94 11  Proprietary software 94 11

 2,099 2,373  Total intangible assets 6,661 6,400
    
   14 Property, plant and equipment
 179 79  Leasehold improvements 443 1,421
 336 996  Technical equipment 615 1,066
 195 172  Other equipment, fixtures and fittings 420 913
 0 101  Prepayment, assets under construction 0 101

 710 1,348  Total property, plant and equipment 1,478 3,501

    Other non-current assets
  25,714 16,850 15 Investments in subsidiaries – –
 893 893 8 Investments in associates 1,065 1,146
 11,754 13,616 15 Receivables from subsidiaries – –
 406 371 8 Receivables from associates 406 371
 1,745 1,817 16 Deposits 1,931 1,987
 1,841 302 17 Deferred tax 8,910 4,740

 42,353 33,849   Total other non-current assets 12,312 8,244

 45,162 37,570   Total non-current assets  20,451 18,145

    Current assets
 13,787 13,829 18, 21 Receivables 39,074 41,903
 267 1,718  Prepayments 1,085 2,700
 26,824 26,822 19 Bonds 26,824 26,822
 27,365 14,382  Cash and cash equivalents 33,952 20,082

 68,243 56,751   Total current assets  100,935 91,507

 113,405 94,321   Total assets  121,386 109,652

BALANC E SH EET as at  31 December
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

 
2006

 
2007

   
2006

 
2007

 
EUR’000	 EUR’000	 Note	 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000	

    LIABILITIES
   20  Equity
 6,616 6,616  Share capital 6,616 6,616
	 0	 0	 	 Exchange	adjustment	reserve	 386	 (1,350)
 56,230 34,272  Retained earnings 58,764 44,899
 22,505 23,360  Proposed dividend 22,505 23,360

 85,351 64,248  Total equity  88,271 73,525

    Liabilities
 
    Non-current liabilities
 0 0 17 Deferred tax 428 438
 1,760 244 22 Provisions 2,141 823

 1,760 244  Total non-current liabilities 2,569 1,261

    Current liabilities
 256 195  Prepayments from customers 4,628 2,026
 25,787 28,260 23 Trade payables and other payables 20,867 25,806
 0 701 24 Income tax 4,626 6,338
 244 673 22 Provisions 418 696
 7 0  Deferred income 7 0

 26,294 29,829  Total current liabilities 30,546 34,866

 28,054 30,073  Total liabilities 33,115 36,127

 113,405 94,321  Total liabilities and equity 121,386 109,652
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 PARENT COMPANY

 

EUR’000
   

Equity	at	1	January	2006	 6,605	 53,550	 15,418	 75,573
Changes in equity in 2006:    
Tax on changes in equity 0 2,598 0 2,598
Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 47	 0	 47

Net gains taken directly to equity 0 2,645 0 2,645
Profit for the year 0 25,889 0 25,889

Comprehensive income 0 28,534 0 28,534
Dividend	paid	to	shareholders	 0	 (33)	 (15,418)	 (15,451)
Additions during the year, with exercise of warrants 11 365 0 376
Share-based payment, employee shares 0 1,051 0 1,051
Share-based	payment,	options	 0	 (1,471)	 0	 (1,471)
Treasury	shares	 0	 (3,261)	 0	 (3,261)
Proposed	dividend	to	shareholders	 0	 (22,505)	 22,505	 0

Equity at 31 December 2006 6,616 56,230 22,505 85,351

Equity	at	1	January	2007	 6,616	 56,230	 22,505	 85,351
Changes in equity in 2007:    
Tax	on	changes	in	equity	 0	 (2,097)	 0	 (2,097)
Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 27	 0	 27

Net	loss	taken	directly	to	equity	 0	 (2,070)	 0	 (2,070)
Profit for the year 0 30,879 0 30,879

Comprehensive income 0 28,809 0 28,809
Dividend	paid	to	shareholders	 0	 (109)	 (22,505)	 (22,614)
Share-based payment, employee shares 0 865 0 865
Share-based	payment,	options	 0	 (1,224)	 0	 (1,224)
Treasury shares 0 (26,939)	 0	 (26,939)
Proposed	dividend	to	shareholders	 0	 (23,360)	 23,360	 0

Equity at 31 December 2007 6,616 34,272 23,360 64,248

Total

Proposed
dividend 

for the year
Retained 
earnings

Share
capital

STATEMENT OF C HANGES I N EQU ITY
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GROUP

 

EUR’000
   

Equity	at	1	January	2006	 6,605	 384	 55,411	 15,418	 77,818
Changes in equity in 2006:
     
Tax on changes in equity 0 0 2,598 0 2,598
Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 2	 0	 0	 2

Net gains taken directly to equity 0 2 2,598 0 2,600
Profit for the year 0 0 26,609 0 26,609

Comprehensive income 0 2 29,207 0 29,209
Dividend	paid	to	shareholders	 0	 0	 (33)	 (15,418)	 (15,451)
Additions during the year, with exercise of warrants 11 0 365 0 376
Share-based payment, employee shares 0 0 1,051 0 1,051
Share-based	payment,	options	 0	 0	 (1,471)	 0	 (1,471)
Treasury	shares	 0	 0	 (3,261)	 0	 (3,261)
Proposed	dividend	to	shareholders	 0	 0	 (22,505)	 22,505	 0

Equity at 31 December 2006 6,616 386 58,764 22,505 88,271
      
   
Equity	at	1	January	2007	 6,616	 386	 58,764	 22,505	 88,271
Changes in equity in 2007:      
  
Tax	on	changes	in	equity	 0	 0	 (2,097)	 0	 (2,097)
Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 (1,736)	 0	 0	 (1,736)

Net	loss	taken	directly	to	equity	 0	 (1,736)	 (2,097)	 0	 (3,833)
Profit for the year 0 0 38,999 0 38,999

Comprehensive	income	 0	 (1,736)	 36,902	 0	 35,166
Dividend	paid	to	shareholders	 0	 0	 (109)	 (22,505)	 (22,614)
Share-based payment, employee shares 0 0 865 0 865
Share-based	payment,	options	 0	 0	 (1,224)	 0	 (1,224)
Treasury	shares	 0	 0	 (26,939)	 0	 (26,939)
Proposed	dividend	to	shareholders	 0	 0	 (23,360)	 23,360	 0

Equity at 31 December 2007	 6,616	 (1,350)	 44,899	 23,360	 73,525

At	31	December	2007,	the	share	capital	amounted	to	DKK	49,250,000	divided	into	4,925,000	shares	of	DKK	10	each,	consistent	
with	last	year.	No	shares	shall	confer	any	special	rights	upon	any	shareholder.	Costs	of	capital	increases	amounted	to	EUR	2.6	
thousand in 2006.       
  
        
	Dividend	is	distributed	with	DKK	35	per	share	nominal	value	DKK	10	in	2007	and	DKK	24	per	share	nominal	value	DKK	10	in	2006.		
        
        
 
     

Total

Proposed
dividend 

for the year
Retained 
earnings

Exchange
adjustment

reserve
Share

capital
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

 
2006

 
2007

   
2006

 
2007

 
EUR’000	 EUR’000	 Note	 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000	

 25,889 30,879  Profit for the year, continuing operations 25,552 28,665
	 (13,569)	 (17,072)	 33	 Adjustments	 13,353	 14,067
    Changes in working capital:   
 
	 (8,657)	 (2,137)	 	 – Changes	in	receivables	 (16,142)	 (7,409)
 5,482 3,150  – Changes in liabilities 7,824 5,481

 9,145 14,820  Cash from operating activities before financial items 30,587 40,804

 3,177 2,399  Financial income received 2,695 1,633
	 (2,547)	 (857)	 	 Financial	expenses	paid	 (2,033)	 (161)
	 (5,331)	 (2,765)	 	 Income	tax	paid	 (10,930)	 (9,970)
 
 4,444 13,597  Net cash from operating activities 20,319 32,306
       
	 0	 (2,036)	 15	 Acquisition	of	subsidiaries	 0	 (2,009)
 2 0 8 Proceeds from sale of associates 2 0
	 (1,742)	 (773)	 	 Purchase	of	intangible	fixed	assets	 (2,143)	 (707)
 640 0  Proceeds from sale of intangible fixed assets 0 0
	 (267)	 (1,218)	 	 Purchase	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 (588)	 (3,362)
 116 36  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 127 58
	 (1,378)	 (77)	 	 Purchase	of	financial	assets	 (1,408)	 (104)
 10 5  Proceeds from sale of financial assets 26 70
 0 11,681  Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 0 11,681
 20,396 18,111  Dividends from subsidiaries – –

 17,777 25,729  Net cash from/used in investment activities	 (3,984)	 5,627

 22,221 39,326  Net cash from operating and investment activities 16,335 37,933
       
 1,413 865  Sale of shares to employees 1,413 865
	 (3,265)	 (3,662)	 	 Exercise	of	options	and	warrants	 (3,265)	 (3,662)
	 (15,451)	 (22,614)	 	 Dividends	paid	 (15,451)	 (22,614)
	 (3,261)	 (26,939)	 	 Acquisition	of	treasury	shares	 (3,261)	 (26,939)
 19,436 26,843  Proceeds from sale of bonds 26,925 26,843
	 (26,608)	 (26,819)	 	 Purchase	of	bonds	 (26,608)	 (26,819)

	 (27,737)	 (52,326)	 	 Net cash used in financing activities	 (20,247)	 (52,326)
       
 0 0  Net cash, operating activities, 	 (18)	 626
    discontinued operations
       
	 (5,516)	 (13,000)	 	 Change in cash and cash equivalents	 (3,930)	 (13,767)
       
  
    Total cash flows for the year   
 
	 32,861	 27,365	 	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	1	January	 37,911	 33,952
	 20	 17	 	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	of	cash	and	 (29)	 (103)
    cash equivalents

 27,365 14,382  Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 33,952 20,082

The	Group	has	unused	credit	facilities	with	banks	for	EUR	5.4m	

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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ACCOUNTING	ESTIMATES	AND	ASSESSMENTS	 	 	 	

Estimation uncertainty       
The calculation of the future value of certain assets and liabilities requires an estimate of how future events will affect the value of such 

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet date. Estimations of significance to the financial statement are made in a calculation of, inter alia, 

depreciation and impairment losses, sales value of contracts in progress relating to professional services, pensions, provisions and contingent 

liabilities.       

       

The estimates applied are based on assumptions which management believes to be reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and 

unpredictable. Such assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate, and unexpected events or circumstances may arise. In addition, the 

company	is	subject	to	risks	and	uncertainties	encountered	in	the	ordinary	course	of	business	that	may	cause	actual	results	to	deviate	from	the	

estimates. Risk factors specific to the SimCorp Group are described in the management report on page 22 and the financial risks in note 29. 

      

The notes to the financial statement contain information about the assumptions of future events and other sources of estimation uncertainty 

at	the	balance	sheet	date	involving	the	risk	of	changes	that	could	lead	to	an	adjustment	of	the	carrying	amount	of	assets	or	liabilities	within	

the upcoming financial year.       

       

For the SimCorp Group, the measurement of intangible assets, including goodwill, could be affected by significant changes in estimates and 

assumptions underlying their calculation. See note 13 for a more detailed description of impairment tests for intangible assets.  

     

Accounting policies       
In	applying	the	Group’s	accounting	policies,	in	addition	to	estimations,	management	makes	other	judgments	that	may	impact	the	amounts	

recognised in the annual report.       

       

Such	judgments	include,	inter	alia,	the	timing	of	income	recognition	and	whether	leases	should	be	treated	as	operating	or	finance	leases.	

      

Note

1

NOTES
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GEOGRAPHICAL	SEGMENT	DATA	 EUR’000

GROUP

2006
Nordic region  36,154 25,197 2,467

Germany and Austria  36,546 12,845 0

Switzerland  7,180 3,475 0
 
UK	and	Ireland	 	 11,968	 16,625	 140

Benelux   15,435 8,364 12

Asia and Australia  9,597 7,008 22

North America  3,131 4,366 152

Other markets  7,116 0 0

Not allocated  0 43,506 0

Total   127,127 121,386 2,793

2007
Nordic region  42,039 18,394 1,992

Germany and Austria  39,230 13,438 781

Switzerland  7,303 2,786 0
 
UK	and	Ireland	 	 17,978	 14,075	 1,756

Benelux   22,724 11,493 396

Asia and Australia  15,781 5,274 375

North America  7,932 6,472 81

Other markets  3,793 0 0

Not allocated  0 37,720 0

Total   156,780 109,652 5,381

Note

2

Total

Investments

Total

AssetsRevenue

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

    REVENUE	BY	TYPE	OF	SERVICE

    
  22,511 25,582 Licences 50,720 57,333

  8,792 10,390 Professional services 38,147 51,067

  20,190 25,121 Maintenance 36,126 45,825

  305 234 Training activities etc. 2,134 2,555

  51,798 61,327 Total 127,127 156,780

3    FUTURE	REVENUE,	OPERATING	LEASES

        Rental of software
  588 1,113 Future revenue within 1 year 1,344 2,226

  1,871 2,166 Future revenue within 2 – 5 years 4,318 4,331

  222 420 Future revenue after 5 years 444 840

  2,681 3,699 Total operating leases 6,106 7,397

Revenue from rental of software is based on agreements giving customers the right to use SimCorp’s standard software over a limited period 

of time. The term of these agreements is typically five years, however may be up to eight years. Customers subsequently have an option to 

extend the lease period.       

       

Revenue	from	rental	of	software	is	recognised	at	EUR	0.8m	(2006:	EUR	0.4m)	for	the	parent	company	and	EUR	1.5m	(2006:	EUR	1.0m)	for	

the Group.       
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

4    PERSONNEL EXPENSES

    Staff costs:

  28,501 34,896 Wages and salaries 55,041 67,621

  0 0 Defined contribution plans 533 687

  0 0 Defined benefit plans 110 180

  1,807 2,441 Share-based payment 1,807 2,441

  138 166 Social security costs 3,502 4,304

  30,446 37,503 Total personnel expenses 60,993 75,233

    Of which remuneration to parent company management:

    Board of Directors:

  177 202 Remuneration 177 202

  88 67 Share-based payment 88 67

  265 269 Total remuneration to the Board of Directors 265 269

    Remuneration to members of the Executive Management Board:

    Peter L. Ravn:

  363 381 Salary and other benefits 363 381

  194 226 Performance-related bonus 194 226

  84 117 Share-based payment 84 117

 
  641 724 Total 641 724

 
    Peter Theill:

  292 306 Salary and other benefits 292 306

  155 191 Performance-related bonus 155 191

  84 117 Share-based payment 84 117

  531 614 Total 531 614

    Torben Munch:

  288 304 Salary and other benefits 288 304

  155 191 Performance-related bonus 155 191

  85 117 Share-based payment 85 117

  528 612 Total 528 612

  340 395 Average number of employees, continuing operations 646 771

  Options Options Stock options awarded to parent company management: Options Options

  3,700 3,000 Board of Directors 3,700 3,000

  12,000 12,000 Executive Management Board 12,000 12,000

  15,700 15,000 Total stock options awarded to parent company 15,700 15,000 
    management
 

    Employee shares acquired by parent company management:

  197 114 Board of Directors* 197 114

  600 1,021 Executive Management Board 600 1,021

  797 1,135 Total number of employee shares acquired by  797 1,135

    parent company management

* Employee shares acquired in capacity as employees of SimCorp A/S.       

Executive Management Board remuneration policy       
The	aggregate	remuneration	of	the	Executive	Management	Board	consists	of	a	fixed	salary	and	a	bonus	component	subject	to	the	financial	

results achieved in a given financial year, as well as eligibility for the stock option programme. The bonus component will generally make up 

about 40% of the fixed remuneration. The value of the stock option programme, defined as the aggregate theoretical value at the time of 

grant, will represent up to around 40% of the fixed salary and the value of the employee shares will make up about 6% of the fixed salary. 

Each year, the Board of Directors determines the fixed remuneration and the size of the performance-related bonus for the Executive Manage-

ment Board and the specific targets that will trigger a bonus.        

Members of the Executive Management Board can terminate their service contracts giving six months’ notice. The company can terminate 

the	service	contracts	giving	12	months’	notice.	Termination	on	the	part	of	the	company	triggers	a	severance	pay	of	6-9	months’	salary	subject	

to the term of employment. In case of very material changes to the company’s ownership, the company’s term of notice to members of the 

Executive Management Board is prolonged for a two-year period up to 24 months.

NOTES

To CONTENTS, Notes



43
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SHARE-BASED	REMUNERATION

SimCorp’s	Board	of	Directors	has	adopted	an	overall	policy	for	incentive	programmes,	the	overall	objective	being	to	promote	awareness	of	profitable	
growth and the Group’s long-term goals. The Board of Directors wishes the company to offer employee shares. The Board of Directors also believes 
that it is a natural decision for a growth company such as SimCorp to offer stocks to its Board members as a minor part of their overall remunera-
tion.	Stocks	are	granted	to	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	subject	to	approval	by	the	company	in	general	meeting.	The	value	of	such	grants	
cannot exceed one third of the total Board remuneration at the time of grant.      
  
Since 2000, the company has operated incentive programmes for members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the 
employees. Such incentive programme comprised warrants in 2000-2002 and stock options as from 2003. Since 2002, the company has also issued 
employee shares or sold shares to the employees.  
       
Warrants granted in 2002        
A total of 50,000 warrants were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in 2002. The 
subscription	price	was	fixed	at	DKK	373,	equal	to	the	market	price	at	the	time	of	the	grant	plus	30%,	and	the	term	was	fixed	at	about	3	years.	No	
cost has been recognised, because the warrants were issued before 7 November 2002. Exercise of the warrants in 2005 resulted in a share capital 
increase	corresponding	to	0.8%	of	the	share	capital.	The	average	market	price	at	the	time	of	exercise	was	DKK	590.59	per	share.	Exercise	of	the	
remaining warrants in 2006 resulted in a share capital increase corresponding to 0.2% of the share capital. The average market price at the time of 
exercise	was	DKK	819.82	per	share.	
       
Stock options granted in 2003        
A total of 37,000 stock options were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in 2003. 
The	subscription	price	was	fixed	at	DKK	221,	equal	to	the	market	price	at	the	time	of	issue	plus	30%,	and	the	term	was	fixed	at	about	3	years.	This	
program	was	fully	charged	in	previous	years	(2006:	EUR	33	thousand).	All	obligations	under	the	programme	will	be	met	by	the	Group’s	holding	of	
treasury shares. 
       
Stock options granted in 2004        
A total of 35,200 stock options were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in 2004. 
The	subscription	price	was	fixed	at	DKK	327,	equal	to	the	market	price	at	the	time	of	issuance	plus	30%,	and	the	term	was	fixed	at	about	3	years.	
EUR	45	thousand	(2006:	EUR	72	thousand)	was	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	respect	of	this	programme	in	the	2007	financial	year.	All	
obligations under the programme will be met by the Group’s holding of treasury shares.      
  
Stock options granted in 2005        
A total of 38,200 options were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in May 2005. 
When	issued,	the	stock	options	had	terms	of	between	one	and	three	years.	The	subscription	price	was	fixed	subject	to	the	term	of	the	stock	options	
at	a	minimum	of	5,	10	or	15%,	respectively,	above	the	market	price	at	the	time	of	issue	for	options	with	terms	of	1,	2	and	3	years,	respectively.	EUR	
92	thousand	(2006:	EUR	168	thousand)	was	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	respect	of	this	programme	in	the	2007	financial	year.	All	
obligations under the programme will be met by the Group’s holding of treasury shares.      
  
Stock options granted in 2006        
A total of 37,200 options were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in May 2006. 
When	issued,	the	stock	options	had	terms	of	between	one	and	three	years.	The	subscription	price	was	fixed	subject	to	the	term	of	the	stock	options	
at	a	minimum	of	5,	10	or	15%,	respectively,	above	the	market	price	at	the	time	of	issue	for	options	with	terms	of	1,	2	and	3	years,	respectively.	EUR	
632	thousand	(2006:	EUR	484	thousand)	was	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	respect	of	this	programme	in	the	2007	financial	year.	All	
obligations under the programme will be met by the Group’s holding of treasury shares.
        
Stock options granted in 2007
A total of 68,000 options were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in May 2007. 
When	issued,	the	stock	options	had	terms	of	between	one	and	five	years.	The	subscription	price	was	fixed	subject	to	the	term	of	the	stock	options	
at a minimum of 5, 10 or 15%, respectively, above the market price at the time of issue for options with minimum terms of 1, 2 and 3 years, 
respectively.	EUR	459	thousand	was	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	respect	of	this	programme	in	the	2007	financial	year.	All	obligations	under	
the programme will be met by the Group’s holding of treasury shares.

Employee shares awarded in 2006        
The	company	sold	20,578	treasury	shares	of	DKK	10	each	to	employees	of	the	parent	company	and	all	foreign	subsidiaries	who	had	a	minimum	of	
12	months’	seniority	with	the	company	when	the	programme	was	adopted	on	11	May	2006.	The	price	was	DKK	512	per	share,	corresponding	to	
50%	of	the	market	price	from	1	May	to	5	May	2006.	236	employees	subscribed	shares	as	part	of	the	programme.	EUR	1.4m	was	charged	to	the	
income statement in connection with the programme in the financial year 2006.      
  
Employee shares awarded in 2007        
The	company	sold	on	13	March	2007	14,088	treasury	shares	of	DKK	10	each	to	employees	of	the	parent	company	and	all	foreign	subsidiaries.	The	
price	was	DKK	457	per	share,	corresponding	to	40%	of	the	market	price	from	28	February	to	6	March	2007.	408	employees	subscribed	shares	as	
part	of	the	programme.	EUR	1.2m	was	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	connection	with	the	programme	in	the	financial	year.	 	
      
As provided of Danish law, the employee shares are held in restricted accounts until the end of the fifth calendar year after the purchase for Danish 
employees.	For	foreign	employees,	the	shares	are	subject	to	selling	restrictions	for	two	years	for	purchase	made	in	2006	and	five	years	for	purchase	
made	in	2007.	Employees	cannot	sell	or	otherwise	dispose	of	the	shares	during	the	period	they	are	subject	to	selling	restrictions.

Note

5
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No. of warrants issued, 1 January 2006
Subscription price 373, exercise period Aug. 05 – Aug. 06  500 6,000 1,000 0 7,500  0.3   0.63 

Total	number	of	warrants	issued	at	1	January	2006	 	 500	 6,000	 1,000	 0	 7,500	 	0.3		 	0.63	

Exercised
Subscription	price	373,	exercise	period	Aug.	05	–	Aug.	06	 	 	(500)	 	(6,000)	 	(1,000)	 0	 	(7,500)

Total	number	of	warrants	exercised	 	 	(500)	 	(6,000)	 	(1,000)	 0	 	(7,500)

Total number of warrants issued at 31 December 2006  0 0 0 0 0

Total

Avg.

remain-

ing

term

Other 

employ-

ees

Senior

manage-

ment

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board

Board of

Directors

Theoretical

market

value at

31 Dec.

(EURm)

The	average	market	price	at	the	time	of	exercise	was	DKK	820	per	share	of	DKK	10.		

Total number of stock options issued, 
1 January 2006
Purchase price 221, exercise period Aug. 06 – Aug. 07 2,200 12,000 16,800 4,900 35,900   5.2   1.63 

Purchase price 327, exercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 08 3,200 12,000 16,000 3,000 34,200   4.6   2.63 

Purchase price 494, exercise period Aug. 06 – Aug. 09 740 2,400 3,600 400 7,140   0.8   3.63 

Purchase price 517, exercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 09 1,110 3,600 5,400 600 10,710   1.2   3.63 

Purchase price 541, exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 09 1,850 6,000 9,000 1,000 17,850   1.9   3.63 

Purchase price 530, exercise period Mar. 07 – Aug. 08 0 0 1,000 0 1,000   0.1   2.63 

Total	number	of	stock	options	issued,	1	January	2006	 9,100	 36,000	 51,800	 9,900	 106,800	 	 	13.8		 	2.40	

Awarded in 2006
Purchase price 1076, exercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 10 740 2,400 3,900 400 7,440 0.4

Purchase price 1128, exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 10 1,110 3,600 5,850 600 11,160 0.5

Purchase price 1179, exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 10 1,850 6,000 9,750 1,000 18,600 0.8

Total number of stock options awarded 3,700 12,000 19,500 2,000 37,200 1.7

Cancelled
Purchase	price	530,	exercise	period	Mar.	07	–	Aug.	08	 0	 0	 (1,000)	 0	 (1,000)

Purchase	price	517,	exercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	09	 0	 0	 (450)	 0	 (450)

Purchase	price	541,	exercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	09	 0	 0	 (750)	 0	 (750)

Purchase	price	1076,	exercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	10	 0	 0	 (300)	 0	 (300)

Purchase	price	1128,	exercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	10	 0	 0	 (450)	 0	 (450)

Purchase	price	1179,	exercise	period	Aug.	09	–	Aug.	10	 0	 0	 (750)	 0	 (750)

Total	number	of	stock	options	cancelled	 0	 0	 (3,700)	 0	 (3,700)

Exercised
Purchase	price	221,	exercise	period	Aug.	06	–	Aug.	07	 (1,500)	 (12,000)	 (16,800)	 (4,900)	 (35,200)

Purchase	price	494,	exercise	period	Aug.	06	–	Aug.	09	 (600)	 0	 (3,300)	 (400)	 (4,300)

Total	number	of	stock	options	exercised	 (2,100)	 (12,000)	 (20,100)	 (5,300)	 (39,500)

Total number of stock options issued, 
1 January 2007 

Purchase price 221, exercise period Aug. 06 – Aug. 07 700 0 0 0 700  0.1 0.63

Purchase price 327, exercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 08 3,200 12,000 16,000 3,000 34,200  5.0 1.63

Purchase price 494, exercise period Aug. 06 – Aug. 09 140 2,400 300 0 2,840  0.4 2.63

Purchase price 517, exercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 09 1,110 3,600 4,950 600 10,260  1.3 2.63

Purchase price 541, exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 09 1,850 6,000 8,250 1,000 17,100  2.2 2.63

Purchase price 1076, exercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 10 740 2,400 3,600 400 7,140  0.5 3.63

Purchase price 1128, exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 10 1,110 3,600 5,400 600 10,710  0.8 3.63

Purchase price 1179, exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 10 1,850 6,000 9,000 1,000 17,850  1.2 3.63

Total	number	of	stock	options	issued,	1	January	2007	 10,700	 36,000	 47,500	 6,600	 100,800	 	 	11.5		 2.63

Fair value

at time

of grant

(EURm)

Avg.

remain-

ing

term

Theoretical

market

value at

31 Dec.

(EURm)Total

Other 

employ-

ees

Senior

manage-

ment

Board of

Directors

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board
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Awarded in 2007
Purchase price 1200, excercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 12 600 2,400 3,800 6,800 13,600 0.2

Purchase price 1258, excercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 12 900 3,600 5,700 10,200 20,400 0.5

Purchase price 1315, excercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 12 1,500 6,000 9,500 17,000 34,000 1.0

Total number of stock options awarded 3,000 12,000 19,000 34,000 68,000 1.7

Cancelled
Purchase	price	517,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	09	 0	 0	 0	 (300)	 (300)

Purchase	price	541,	excercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	09	 0	 0	 0	 (500)	 (500)

Purchase	price	1076,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	10	 0	 0	 0	 (200)	 (200)

Purchase	price	1128,	excercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	10	 0	 0	 0	 (300)	 (300)

Purchase	price	1179,	excercise	period	Aug.	09	–	Aug.	10	 0	 0	 0	 (500)	 (500)

Purchase	price	1200,	excercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	12	 0	 0	 0	 (460)	 (460)

Purchase	price	1258,	excercise	period	Aug.	09	–	Aug.	12	 0	 0	 0	 (690)	 (690)

Purchase	price	1315,	excercise	period	Aug.	10	–	Aug.	12	 0	 0	 0	 (1,150)	 (1,150)

Total	number	of	stock	options	cancelled	 0	 0	 0	 (4,100)	 (4,100)

Exercised
Purchase	price	221,	excercise	period	Aug.	06	–	Aug.	07	 (700)	 0	 0	 0	 (700)

Purchase	price	327,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	08	 (2,500)	 (12,000)	 (11,500)	 (4,700)	 (30,700)

Purchase	price	494,	excercise	period	Aug.	06	–	Aug.	09	 0	 (1,600)	 (300)	 (140)	 (2,040)

Purchase	price	517,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	09	 (600)	 (2,400)	 (3,600)	 (660)	 (7,260)

Purchase	price	1076,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	10	 (300)	 0	 (900)	 (140)	 (1,340)

Total	number	of	stock	options	exercised	 (4,100)	 (16,000)	 (16,300)	 (5,640)	 (42,040)

Transferred between categories 

Purchase	price	327,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	08	 (700)	 0	 (1,000)	 1,700	 0

Purchase	price	494,	excercise	period	Aug.	06	–	Aug.	09	 (140)	 0	 0	 140	 0

Purchase	price	517,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	09	 (360)	 0	 0	 360	 0

Purchase	price	541,	excercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	09	 (600)	 0	 0	 600	 0

Purchase	price	1076,	excercise	period	Aug.	07	–	Aug.	10	 (240)	 0	 0	 240	 0

Purchase	price	1128,	excercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	10	 (360)	 0	 0	 360	 0

Purchase	price	1179,	excercise	period	Aug.	09	–	Aug.	10	 (600)	 0	 0	 600	 0

Purchase	price	1200,	excercise	period	Aug.	08	–	Aug.	12	 20	 0	 0	 (20)	 0

Purchase	price	1258,	excercise	period	Aug.	09	–	Aug.	12	 30	 0	 0	 (30)	 0

Purchase	price	1315,	excercise	period	Aug.	10	–	Aug.	12	 50	 0	 0	 (50)	 0

Total	number	of	transferred	stock	options	 (2,900)	 0	 (1,000)	 3,900	 0

Total number of stock options issued,
31 December 2007
Purchase price 327, excercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 08 0 0 3,500 0 3,500  0.3 0.63

Purchase price 494, excercise period Aug. 06 – Aug. 09 0 800 0 0 800  0.1 1.63

Purchase price 517, excercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 09 150 1,200 1,350 0 2,700  0.2 1.63

Purchase price 541, excercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 09 1,250 6,000 8,250 1,100 16,600  1.1 1.63

Purchase price 1076, excercise period Aug. 07 – Aug. 10 200 2,400 2,700 300 5,600  0.2 2.63

Purchase price 1128, excercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 10 750 3,600 5,400 660 10,410  0.3 2.63

Purchase price 1179, excercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 10 1,250 6,000 9,000 1,100 17,350  0.5 2.63

Purchase price 1200, excercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 12 620 2,400 3,800 6,320 13,140  0.5 4.63

Purchase price 1258, excercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 12 930 3,600 5,700 9,480 19,710  0.7 4.63

Purchase price 1315, excercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 12 1,550 6,000 9,500 15,800 32,850  1.1 4.63

Total number of stock options issued,  6,700 32,000 49,200 34,760 122,660  5.1 3.48

31 December 2007 

Fair value

at time

of grant

(EURm)

Avg.

remain-

ing

term

Theoretical

market

value at

31 Dec.

(EURm)Total

Other 

employ-

ees

Senior

manage-

ment

Board of

Directors

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board

The table shows the number of shares, exercise prices, the fair value at the time of award and the theoretical market value applying the Black-

Scholes formula.        

        

Fair values at the time of grant are calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing formula. The model applies the following assumptions: 

the	market	price	of	SimCorp	shares	at	the	time	of	award	1,143	(2007)	and	1,071	(2006),	the	subscription	price,	remaining	term,	volatilities	

of	30.0%	(2007)	and	37.5%	(2006)	and	an	interest	rate	of	4.3%	(2007)	and	3.7%	(2006)	per	annum.	The	Group’s	‘senior	management’	is	

defined as management of subsidiaries and department managers at SimCorp A/S. The volatility value applied equals the volatility of SimCorp 

shares during the preceding 12 months.
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The	model	applies	the	following	assumptions	for	the	theoretical	market	value:	volatility	34.6%	(2007)	and	32.0%	(2006),	dividend	DKK	37.50	

(2008)	and	DKK	35	(2007)	per	share,	interest	rate	4.3%	(2007)	and	4.0%	(2006).	The	estimated	time	of	exercise	is	assumed	to	be	at	the	end	

of the period. The volatility value applied equals the volatility of SimCorp shares during the preceding 12 months.   

     

EUR	2.4m	(2006:	EUR	1.8m)	was	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	respect	of	share-based	payment	in	the	financial	year.	 	

      

The	average	market	price	at	the	time	of	exercise	was	DKK	1,070	(2006:	DKK	985)	per	share	of	DKK	10.

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

6    AMORTISATION

    Amortisation for the year is recognised

    in the income statement as follows:

  172 114 Cost of sales 785 642

  499 600 Research and development costs 1,050 1,479

  23 26 Sales and distribution costs 308 151

  184 126 Administrative expenses 546 743

  0 0 Profit for the year, discontinued operations 22 12

  878 866 Total amortisation 2,711 3,027

    Of which amortisation of intangible assets:

  88 85 Cost of sales 176 86

  146 351 Research and development costs 745 1,267

  24 19 Sales and distribution costs 110 19

  38 33 Administrative expenses 405 620

  296 488 Total amortisation 1,436 1,992

7	 	 	 	 FEES	TO	INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS

    Audit fees  

  160 160 Grant Thornton 293 366

	 	 40	 30	 KPMG	C.	Jespersen	 40	 30

  200 190 Total audit fees 333 396

    Non-audit fees
  30 11 Grant Thornton 65 124

  30 11 Total non-audit fees 65 124

NOTES
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

8    INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES  

 
	 	 895	 893	 Cost	at	1	January	 895	 893

	 	 (2)	 0	 Disposals	 (2)	 0

  893 893 Cost at 31 December 893 893

	 	 0	 0	 Adjustments	at	1	January 20 172

	 	 0	 0	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 (22)

  0 0 Share of profit for the year 152 103

	 	 0	 0	 Adjustments	at	31	December	 172	 253

  893 893 Carrying amount at 31 December 1,065 1,146

    RECEIVABLES FROM ASSOCIATES  

	 	 409	 406	 Cost	at	1	January	 409	 406

	 	 10	 (35)	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 10	 (35)

	 	 (13)	 0	 Disposals	 (13)	 0

  406 371 Cost at 31 December 406 371

  406 371 Carrying amount at 31 December 406 371

Name

2006
Dyalog	Ltd.	 UK	 35%	 1,802	 413	 2,709	 2,126	 204	 144

Equipos	Ltd.	 UK	 20%	 1,074	 39	 576	 321	 51	 8

       255 152

Goodwill at 31 December 2006      810 0

       1,065 152

2007
Dyalog	Ltd.	 UK	 35%	 1,720	 235	 2,140	 1,365	 271	 82

Equipos	Ltd.	 UK	 20%	 1,520	 105	 783	 456	 65	 21

       336 103

Goodwill at 31 December 2007      810 0

       1,146 103

Profit for

the yearEquityLiabilities

Total

assets

Profit for

the period

Country of

incorporation Revenue

Ownership

interest

EUR’000

Share attributable to the

SimCorp Group

Investments in associates are measured in the consolidated balance sheet according to the equity method. Investments in associates are  

measured at cost in the parent company’s balance sheet.         

    

With effect from 31 December 2006 Dyalog Ltd. has transferred all assets and liabilities to Dyalog Holding Ltd. and Dyalog Holding Ltd. 

changed name to Dyalog Ltd.           

  

The disposal in 2006 relates to Dyalog Ltd. where sale of shares to a key employee has taken place. Sales price equals cost.  
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

9    FINANCIAL INCOME

  12,890 17,709 Dividend from subsidiaries – –

  5,299 250 Revaluation, subsidiaries – –

  0 4,324 Profit, disposal of subsidiary – –

  864 957 Interest income, subsidiaries – –

  1,372 1,988 Interest income, cash etc.  1,471 2,195

  20 25 Interest income, associates 20 25

	 	 216	 24	 Fair	value	adjustments,	bonds	 216	 24

	 	 720	 947	 Foreign	exchange	adjustments	 740	 855

  21,381 26,224 Total financial income 2,447 3,099

10    FINANCIAL EXPENSES

  543 808 Interest expenses, subsidiaries – –

  114 17 Interest expenses, on financial assets carried at amortised cost 114 33

  50 48 Other financial expenses  150 161

	 	 1,840	 1,876	 Foreign	exchange	adjustments	 1,017	 981

  2,547 2,749 Total financial expenses 1,281 1,175

11    TAX

    Tax for the period:

  2,815 3,135 Tax for the period, continuing operations 9,866 11,758

	 	 (635)	 (359)	 Tax	on	equity		 (635)	 (359)

  0 0 Tax for the period, discontinued operations 281 80

  2,180 2,776 Total tax 9,512 11,479

    Tax on profit for the year, continuing operations, 

    breaks down as follows:

  4,586 3,962 Current tax 11,804 12,227

	 	 (1,728)	 (914)	 Deferred	tax	 (1,743)	 (525)

	 	 (43)	 74	 Prior-year	adjustment	 (195)	 80

	 	 0	 13	 Adjustment	of	tax	rate	 0	 (24)

  2,815 3,135 Total tax on profit for the year, continuing operations 9,866 11,758

  5,331 2,765 Tax paid during the year 10,930 9,970

    Tax on profit for the year breaks down as follows:

	 	 8,034	 7,415	 Tax	calculated	on	the	year’s	pre-tax	profit,	25%	(2006:	28%)	 9,918	 11,236
 
	 	 0	 0	 Difference	in	tax	in	subsidiaries	relative	to	25%	(2006:	28%)	 8	 4

	 	 0	 13	 Change	in	tax	rate	 0	 (24)

	 	 (5,092)	 (4,481)	 Dividend	and	value	adjustment,	subsidiaries	 – –

  8 6 Non-taxable income and non-deductable expenses 64 39

  0 0 Share of profit after tax in associates 43 26

	 	 (135)	 182	 Other,	including	prior-year	adjustments	 (167)	 477

  2,815 3,135 Total tax on profit for the year 9,866 11,758

  10% 11% Effective tax rate 28% 29%

The Danish tax rate has been reduced from 28% in 2006 to 25% in 2007.
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     GROUP

Note     2006 2007
 
12   EARNINGS PER SHARE

  Profit	for	the	year	(EUR’000)	 	 26,609	 38,999
 

  Average number of shares  4,923,747 4,925,000

  Average number of treasury shares  (128,951)	 (182,415)

  Average number of shares in circulation 4,794,796 4,742,585

  Average dilutive impact of outstanding stock options 96,158 13,472

  Average number of diluted shares in circulation 4,890,954 4,756,057

	 	 	Basic	earnings	per	share	–	EPS	(EUR)		 5.55	 8.22

	 	 Diluted	earnings	per	share	–	EPS-D	(EUR)	 5.44	 8.20

  The calculation of the earnings per share for continuing operations and for discontinued operations 

  is based on the same basis as the key figures for earnings per share.    

  
	 	 Profit	for	discontinued	operations	(EUR’000)	 1,057	 10,334

	 	 Profit	for	continuing	operations	(EUR’000)	 25,552	 28,665

  Profit for the year (EUR’000)  26,609 38,999

	 	 Basic	earnings	per	share,	continuing	operations	–	EPS	(EUR)		 5.33	 6.04
  
	 	 Diluted	earnings	per	share,	continuing	operations	–	EPS-D	(EUR)	 5.22	 6.03

At 31 December 2007 99,060 stock options are out-of the-money, these can potentially dilute the earnings per share in the future. For further 

details on share-based remuneration please refer to the management report regarding incentive remuneration on page 20.  
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PARENT COMPANY

Cost	at	1	January	2006	 	 2,496	 564	 3,060

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	 1	 0	 1

Addition   1,742 0 1,742

Disposals		 	 (695)	 0	 (695)
 

Cost at 31 December 2006    3,544  564  4,108

Depreciation	at	1	January	2006	 	 1,411	 354	 1,765	

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	 1	 1	 2

Depreciation  181 115 296

Disposals		 	 (54)	 0	 (54)
 

Depreciation at 31 December 2006  1,539 470 2,009 

Carrying amount at 31 December 2006  2,005 94 2,099 

Cost	at	1	January	2007	 	 3,544	 564	 4,108	

Addition   773 0 773 

Disposals		 	 (40)	 0	 (40)

Cost at 31 December 2007  4,277 564 4,841 

Depreciation	at	1	January	2007	 	 1,539	 470	 2,009

Depreciation  405 83 488 

Disposals		 	 (29)	 0	 (29)

Depreciation at 31 December 2007  1,915 553 2,468

Carrying amount at 31 December 2007  2,362 11 2,373

Note

13

Total

Proprietary

software

Acquired

software

NOTES
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GROUP

Cost	at	1	January	2006	 941	 6,921	 564	 8,426

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 13	 81	 0	 94

Addition  0 2,814 0 2,814

Disposals		 0	 (695)	 0	 (695)
 

Cost at 31 December 2006  954  9,121  564  10,639

Depreciation	at	1	January	2006	 0	 2,225	 354	 2,579	

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 5	 1	 6

Depreciation 0 1,332 115 1,447

Disposals		 0	 (54)	 0	 (54)

Depreciation at 31 December 2006 0 3,508 470 3,978 

Carrying amount at 31 December 2006 954 5,613 94 6,661 

Cost	at	1	January	2007	 954	 9,121	 564	 10,639	

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (82)	 (341)	 0	 (423)	

Addition  0 2,019 0 2,019 

Disposals		 0	 (43)	 0	 (43)

Cost at 31 December 2007 872 10,756 564 12,192 

Depreciation	at	1	January	2007	 0	 3,508	 470	 3,978	

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 (146)	 0	 (146)	

Depreciation 0 1,909 83 1,992 

Disposals		 0	 (32)	 0	 (32)

Depreciation at 31 December 2007 0 5,239 553 5,792

Carrying amount at 31 December 2007 872 5,517 11 6,400

Amortised over  up to 5 years up to 5 years

Total

Proprietary

software

Acquired

softwareGoodwill

All intangible assets apart from goodwill are considered to have limited useful economic lives.    

Goodwill    

As	at	31	December	2007,	management	performed	an	impairment	test	of	the	carrying	amount	of	goodwill	in	SimCorp	Asia	Pty.	Ltd.	of	EUR	0.2m 

(2006:	EUR	0.2m)	and	Solutionforge	Limited	of	EUR	0.7m	(2006:	EUR	0.8m).			 	 	 	

    

The recoverable amount, calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows based on the companies’ plans for 2008 as approved 

by management, the expected revenue and cost performance for the next eight years related to SimCorp Dimension for Simcorp Asia Pty. Ltd. 

and FIX:Net for Solutionforge Limited, is assessed to be adequate to offset the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2007. Determina-

tion of the cash flow period is based upon experience with other allied companies. A discount rate of 8.7% p.a. consisting of a risk free interest 

rate of 4.3% p.a., a risk premium of 4.0% p.a. and a Beta of 1.1 is used according to market evaluation of comparable companies.   

  

Additional software investments were made in 2007 through Solutionforge Limited. Like previously acquired software, such software will be 

fully amortised during 2010.    
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PROPERTY,	PLANT	AND	EQUIPMENT

PARENT COMPANY

Cost	at	1	January	2006	 726	 3,127	 575	 0	 4,428

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 1	 0	 0	 1

Additions 64 146 57 0 267

Disposals		 (28)	 (1,943)	 (181)	 0	 (2,152)

Cost at 31 December 2006 762 1,331 451 0 2,544
     

Depreciation	at	1	January	2006	 514	 2,523	 311	 0	 3,348

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (1)	 0	 0	 0	 (1)

Depreciation 98 397 87 0 582

Disposals		 (28)	 (1,925)	 (142)	 0	 (2,095)

Depreciation at 31 December 2006 583 995 256 0 1,834
     

Carrying amount at 31 December 2006 179 336 195 0 710
     

Cost	at	1	January	2007	 762	 1,331	 451	 0	 2,544

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0

Additions 0 1,037 80 101 1,218

Disposals		 0	 (712)	 (56)	 0	 (768)

Cost at 31 December 2007 762 1,656 475 101 2,994
     

Depreciation	at	1	January	2007	 583	 995	 256	 0	 1,834

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0

Depreciation 100 221 57 0 378

Disposals		 0	 (556)	 (10)	 0	 (566)

Depreciation at 31 December 2007 683 660 303 0 1,646
     

Carrying amount at 31 December 2007 79 996 172 101 1,348

Note

14

Total

Under	

construction

Other 

equipment,

fixtures and 

fittings

Technical

equipment

Leasehold

improvements

NOTES
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PROPERTY,	PLANT	AND	EQUIPMENT

GROUP

Cost	at	1	January	2006	 2,237	 6,266	 1,610	 0	 10,113

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (13)	 (4)	 (1)	 0	 (18)

Additions 276 196 148 0 620

Disposals		 (75)	 (2,029)	 (303)	 0	 (2,407)

Cost at 31 December 2006 2,425 4,429 1,454 0 8,308
     

Depreciation	at	1	January	2006	 1,771	 5,064	 1,086	 0	 7,921

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (12)	 (2)	 0	 0	 (14)

Depreciation 298 754 211 0 1,263

Disposals		 (75)	 (2,002)	 (263)	 0	 (2,340)

Depreciation at 31 December 2006 1,982 3,814 1,034 0 6,830
     

Carrying amount at 31 December 2006 443 615 420 0 1,478
     

Cost	at	1	January	2007	 2,425	 4,429	 1,454	 0	 8,308

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (75)	 (68)	 (19)	 0	 (162)

Additions 1,416 1,045 800 101 3,362

Disposals		 (706)	 (2,243)	 (504)	 0	 (3,453)

Disposal,	discontinued	operations	 (167)	 (349)	 (35)	 0	 (551)

Cost at 31 December 2007 2,893 2,814 1,696 101 7,504
     

Depreciation	at	1	January	2007	 1,982	 3,814	 1,034	 0	 6,830

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (53)	 (88)	 (13)	 0	 (154)

Depreciation 391 438 205 0 1,034

Disposals		 (706)	 (2,086)	 (409)	 0	 (3,201)

Disposal,	discontinued	operations	 (142)	 (330)	 (34)	 0	 (506)

Depreciation at 31 December 2007 1,472 1,748 783 0 4,003
     

Carrying amount at 31 December 2007 1,421 1,066 913 101 3,501

Depreciated over up to 10 years 3 years 5 years

Total

Under	

construction

Other 

equipment,

fixtures and 

fittings

Technical

equipment

Significant estimates for property, plant and equipment have not been changed.     

     

The SimCorp Group does not hold assets under finance leases and has not provided assets as security. In connection with relocation  

to	new	headquarters	at	the	end	of	2008,	SimCorp	A/S	has	entered	into	leasehold	improvement	contracts	for	EUR	1.0m.	The	total	in-

vestment	related	to	relocation	to	new	headquarters	is	expected	to	amount	to	close	to	EUR	6.0m	for	leasehold	improvements,	technical	

equipment, fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment, which will be depreciated over periods ranging from 3 to 10 years.   

   

Leasehold

improvements
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PARENT COMPANY    
Note  2006 2007   
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 	

15    INVESTMENTS	IN	SUBSIDIARIES

 
	 	 33,519	 26,028	 Cost	at	1	January

	 	 15	 (1)	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	

  0 989 Additions

	 	 0	 (9,699)	 Disposal

	 	 (7,506)	 (402)	 Paid	out	as	dividend	 	

  26,028 16,915 Cost at 31 December  

	 	 5,609	 314	 Impairment	at	1	January	 	

	 	 3	 1	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment

	 	 (5,298)	 (250)	 Revaluations	

  314 65 Impairment at 31 December  

  25,714 16,850 Carrying amount at 31 December  

  12,890 17,709 Dividends paid 

	 	 	 	 RECEIVABLES	FROM	SUBSIDIARIES	 	

	 	 11,709	 11,754	 Cost	at	1	January	 	

	 	 (941)	 (958)	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment

  1,901 5,586 Additions

	 	 (915)	 (2,766)	 Disposal

  11,754 13,616 Cost at 31 December  

  11,754 13,616 Carrying amount at 31 December  

The	addition	in	2007	relates	to	the	establishment	of	subsidiaries	in	Austria	and	the	Ukraine	and	to	SimCorp	A/S’	acquisition	of	the	remaining 

shares in Solutionforge Limited. The value of the option to purchase the shares in Solutionforge Limited was recognised in the parent company’s 

and the Group’s balance sheets as a provision regarding contingent consideration. The paid excess price over the Group’s relative net asset 

values in Solutionforge Limited is allocated to software and deferred tax, based on specific evaluation.      

        

Reversed impairment losses in 2007 relate to investments in SimCorp Financial Training A/S and in 2006 to SimCorp Financial Training A/S and 

SimCorp Treasury Solutions Ltd. and are based on the subsidiaries’ very positive development in revenue and profit after tax.  

          

As	part	of	the	divestment	of	the	IT2	business	SimCorp	A/S	sold	all	shares	in	SimCorp	Treasury	Solutions	Ltd.	in	July	2007.		 	

         

The Boards of Directors of SimCorp A/S and SimCorp Financial Training A/S have decided to merge the companies with SimCorp A/S as the 

continuing	company.	The	merger	is	planned	to	take	place	with	effect	from	1	January	2008.	The	merger	does	not	affect	the	Group’s	operations.

Name

SimCorp	Financial	Training	A/S	 Copenhagen,	Denmark	 100%	 550	T	DKK	 889	 251	 1,425

SimCorp Ltd. London, Great Britain 100% 100 T GBP  19,228 2,004 10,677

SimCorp	GmbH	 Bad	Homburg,	Germany	 100%	 102	T	EUR	 39,822	 4,762	 12,091

SimCorp	Österreich	GmbH	 Vienna,	Austria	 100%	 18	T	EUR	 2,211	 579	 1,347

SimCorp	Norge	AS	 Oslo,	Norway	 100%	 1,000	T	NOK	 8,456	 1,468	 3,755

SimCorp	Sverige	AB	 Stockholm,	Sweden	 100%	 100	T	SEK		 12,433	 1,577	 2,552

SimCorp	Benelux	SA/NV	 Brussels,	Belgium	 100%	 62	T	EUR	 26,611	 4,999	 11,493

SimCorp	USA	Inc.	 New	York,	USA	 100%	 10	T	USD	 8,176	 (720)	 6,472

SimCorp Schweiz AG Zurich, Switzerland 100% 100 T CHF 7,340 1,568 2,786

SimCorp	Asia	Pty.	Ltd.	 Sydney,	Australia	 100%	 1,000	T	AUD	 12,959	 3,185	 2,779

SimCorp Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Singapore 100% 1 SGD 3,899 1,511 2,496

Solutionforge	Limited	 Shenfield,	England	 100%	 200	GBP	 1,961	 (1,820)	 3,398

SimCorp	Ukraine	 Kiev,	Ukraine	 100%	 71	T	UAH	 0	 0	 10

Equity

(EUR’000)

Profit for 

the year

(EUR’000)

Total 

revenue

(EUR’000)

Share

capital

Ownership

interest in

2007

Registered

office

The Group’s subsidiaries are:
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

16    DEPOSITS

 
	 	 377	 1,745	 Cost	at	1	January	2006	 555	 1,931

	 	 0	 0	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (6)	 22

  1,378 77 Additions 1,408 104

	 	 (10)	 (5)	 Disposals	 (26)	 (70)

  1,745 1,817 Carrying amount at 31 December 1,931 1,987

17    DEFERRED TAX

	 	 1,850	 (1,841)	 Deferred	tax	at	1	January	 (5,078)	 (8,482)

	 	 71	 (64)	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 113	 98

	 	 11	 64	 Prior-year	adjustment,	profit	 5	 210

	 	 (1,728)	 (913)	 Adjustment	of	deferred	tax,	profit	for	the	year	 (1,477)	 (525)

	 	 (2,045)	 2,439	 Adjustment	of	deferred	tax,	equity	 (2,045)	 2,439

	 	 0	 0	 Adjustment	of	deferred	tax,	aquired	assets	 0	 374

	 	 0	 13	 Adjustment	of	tax	rate	 0	 (24)

  0 0 Discontinued operations 0 1,608

	 	 (1,841)	 (302)	 Deferred tax at 31 December	 (8,482)	 (4,302)

      
    Deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet as follows:   

	 	 1,841	 302	 Deferred	tax	(asset)	 8,910	 4,740

	 	 0	 0	 Deferred	tax	(liability)	 428	 438

 
	 	 (1,841)	 (302)	 Net deferred tax at 31 December	 (8,482)	 (4,302)

       
	 	 	 	 Deferred	tax	(asset)	 	 	

	 	 (588)	 (593)	 Intangible	assets		 (616)	 (567)

  294 334 Property, plant and equipment 665 472

	 	 (60)	 (6)	 Current	assets	 374	 455

  194 229 Long-term liabilities 203 278

	 	 58	 (12)	 Short-term	liabilities	 172	 246

  2,954 350 Share-based payment 2,954 350

	 	 (1,011)	 0	 Retaxation	balances	relating	to	foreign	subsidiaries	 (1,011)	 0

  0 0 Tax losses 6,169 3,506
       

  1,841 302 Deferred tax (asset) at 31 December 8,910 4,740
       

	 	 	 	 Deferred	tax	(liability)	 	 	

  0 0 Intangible assets 888 866

	 	 0	 0	 Property,	plant	and	equipment	 (44)	 (33)
  
	 	 0	 0	 Current	assets	 (122)	 460

	 	 0	 0	 Short-term	liabilities	 0	 (21)

	 	 0	 0	 Tax	losses	 (294)	 (834)

      
  0 0 Deferred tax (liability) at 31 December 428 438

Based on the improved profit in 2007 with expected further continuous improvement in 2008 and onwards, the expected capitalised value of 

the deferred tax assets is expected to be used within a few years for the relevant subsidiaries.     
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2006
Intangible	assets	 (1,464)	 (8)	 0	 (32)	 0	 (1,504)

Tangible assets 301 2 0 406 0 709

Other	short-term	assets	 569	 (9)	 0	 (64)	 0	 496

Provisions	 263	 0	 0	 (60)	 0	 203

Other	items	 (107)	 0	 0	 279	 0	 172

Share-based payments 908 0 0 1 2,045 2,954

Retaxation	balances	subsidiaries		 (2,957)	 (1)	 0	 1,947	 0	 (1,011)

Tax	loss	carry-forwards	 7,565	 (97)	 0	 (1,005)	 0	 6,463

	 5,078	 (113)	 0	 1,472	 2,045	 8,482
 

2007
Intangible	assets	 (1,504)	 18	 0	 427	 (374)	 (1,433)

Tangible	assets	 709	 (4)	 (114)	 (86)	 0	 505

Other	short-term	assets	 496	 (14)	 0	 (487)	 0	 (5)

Provisions 203 0 0 96 0 299

Other items 172 0 0 74 0 246

Share-based	payments	 2,954	 0	 0	 (165)	 (2,439)	 350

Retaxation	balances	subsidiaries		 (1,011)	 0	 0	 1,011	 0	 0

Tax	loss	carry-forwards	 6,463	 (98)	 (1,494)	 (531)	 0	 4,340

	 8,482	 (98)	 (1,608)	 339	 (2,813)	 4,302

Balance

31 December

Other

adjustments

Recognised

 in profit 

and loss

Included in

 discontinued

operations

Foreign

 exchange 

adjustment

Balance

	1	January

EUR’000

GROUP

CHANGES	IN	TEMPORARY	DIFFERENCES	DURING	THE	YEAR		

a

b

a

a)	Recognised	in	equity	

b)	Recognised	in	acquired	assets	

NOTES
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

18    RECEIVABLES

 
  4,192 7,248 Receivables from customers 33,323 30,194

  8,374 1,830 Receivables from subsidiaries  –  –
 
  16 16 Receivables from associates 16 16

  220 0 Income tax receivable 455 459

  985 4,735 Other receivables 5,280 11,234
       

  13,787 13,829 Total receivables at 31 December 39,074 41,903

    Impairment, included above, has developed as follows:  
      
	 	 0	 0	 Balance	at	1	January	 19	 25

  0 0 Addition during the year  7  108

	 	 0	 0	 Loss	recognised		 (1)	 (4)

	 	 0	 0	 Disposal,	discontinued	operations		 0	 (18)

       
  0 0 Balance at 31 December 25 111

Other receivables consist mainly of accrued revenue.  
   
     
No security has been received with respect to trade receivables.  
   
     
The need for impairment was based on an individual assessment of each receivable.    
   
     
The Group’s exposure to currency and credit risk for trade receivables is disclosed in note 29.  
  

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

19    BONDS

 
    Listed bonds are recognised in the balance sheet as follows:  

	 	 26,824	 26,822	 Current	assets,	DKK-denominated	bonds	 26,824	 26,822

  26,824 26,822 Carrying amount at 31 December 26,824 26,822

	 	 2.0	 4.0	 Yield	(%)	 2.0	 4.0

	 	 0.0	 0.0	 Average	duration	(years)	 0.0	 0.0

The	portfolio	of	listed	bonds	consists	of	Danish	mortgage	bonds	maturing	on	2	January	2008,	having	a	nominal	value	equal	to	the	market	

value	and	carrying	a	coupon	of	4%	(2006:	2%).		 	 	 	 	 	

       

The	parent	company	and	the	Group	have	chosen	to	measure	the	short-term	bond	portfolio	at	fair	value	with	value	adjustment	through	profit	

and loss, as the portfolio serves as a cash reserve in accordance with the Group’s risk and investment strategy. The bond portfolio comprises 

listed Danish bonds regularly monitored and reported at fair value.
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EQUITY

At	1	January	 4,917,500	 4,925,000	 6,605	 6,616

Warrants exercised 7,500 0 11 0

At 31 December 4,925,000 4,925,000 6,616 6,616

20

Nominal value

EUR’000

2007

Nominal value

EUR’000

2006

Number

of shares

2007

Number

of shares

2006

Share capital

At	31	December	2007,	the	share	capital	amounted	to	DKK	49,250,000	divided	into	4,925,000	shares	of	DKK	10	nominal	value	each	 

(2006:	DKK	49,250,000	divided	into	4,925,000	shares	of	DKK	10	nominal	value	each).	No	shares	confer	any	special	rights	upon	any	share-

holder.	No	shares	are	subject	to	restrictions	on	transferability	or	voting	rights.	 	 	 	 	 	

     

The company issued 7,500 new shares in March 2006 in connection with the exercise of warrants. Total costs related to the share issues 

amounted	to	EUR	2.6	thousand	and	included	fees	to	banks,	legal	advisers	and	auditors.	These	costs	are	included	in	‘Retained	earnings’.	

          

The	share	capital	may	be	increased	in	one	or	more	issues	by	a	total	nominal	amount	of	up	to	DKK	15,000,000	(1,500,000	shares)	as	directed	

by the Board of Directors with respect to time and terms. This authority is valid for a period of five years, expiring on 30 March 2010, and may 

be extended by the shareholders at the general meeting for one or more periods of up to five years at a time. The increase may be effected 

for cash or other consideration. The capital increase may be effected without pre-emption rights to the company’s existing shareholders if the 

shares are issued at market price or as consideration for the company’s acquisition of an existing operation or specific assets of a value that 

equals the value of the shares issued. Except for the cases specified in the preceding period, the company’s existing shareholders shall have a 

right to subscribe new shares proportionately to their existing holdings. The new shares shall be negotiable instruments, and no restrictions 

shall apply to the transferability of the shares. No shareholders shall be under an obligation to have their shares redeemed in full or in part  

by the company or any other party.          

 

During the period ending on 1 April 2009, the Board of Directors is authorised to increase the company’s share capital in one or more issues 

by	a	total	nominal	amount	of	up	to	DKK	900,000	(90,000	shares	of	DKK	10	each)	by	cash	payment	at	a	price	to	be	determined	by	the	com-

pany’s Board of Directors, and which may be at a discount to the market price, by subscription among the employees of the company and its 

subsidiaries and without pre-emption rights to the company’s existing shareholders. All other terms and conditions governing the subscription 

for shares shall be determined by the Board of Directors.        

   

The new shares shall have the same rights as the existing shares according to the articles of association, including that the new shares shall be 

negotiable instruments, shall be issued to bearer, but may be registered in the name of the holder in the company’s Register of Shareholders, 

that there shall be no duty of redemption, that no restrictions shall apply to the transferability of the new shares and that no new share shall 

confer any special rights upon the holder. The new shares shall rank for dividend as from the date of subscription.   

        

Unless	Danish	legislation	provides	for	a	greater	majority	or	unanimity,	the	adoption	of	resolutions	regarding	amendments	to	the	company’s	

articles	of	association	and	the	company’s	dissolution	or	merger	with	another	company	requires	a	majority	of	not	less	than	two-thirds	of	all	the	

votes cast as well as of the voting share capital represented at the relevant general meeting, and that not less than 50% of the share capital is 

represented at the general meeting. In case less than 50% of the share capital is represented at the general meeting, and the resolution is ad-

opted by not less than two-thirds of the votes cast as well as of the voting share capital represented at the general meeting, another general 

meeting may be called within 14 days after the preceding general meeting. At the new general meeting, the resolution can be adopted by not 

less than two-thirds of the votes cast as well as of the voting share capital represented at the general meeting.

NOTES
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At	1	January	 124,780	 130,802	 5,726	 8,765	 2.5	 2.7

Purchases 28,500 168,100 3,262 26,939 0.6 3.4

Options	exercised	 (1,900)	 (4,700)	 (19)	 (47)	 0.0	 (0.1)

Sold	to	employees	 (20,578)	 (14,088)	 (204)	 (139)	 (0.4)	 (0.3)

At 31 December 130,802 280,114 8,765 35,518 2.7 5.7

Percent of

share capital

2007

Percent of

share capital

2006

Acquisition

value

EUR’000

2007

Treasury shares

The	market	value	of	treasury	shares	at	31	December	2007	was	EUR	37.9m	(2006:	EUR	24.4m).	The	shares	are	carried	at	EUR	0.0m	in	the	

financial statement. The Board of Directors has been authorised to let the company acquire treasury shares of up to a total nominal value of 

10% of the company’s share capital.         

  

SimCorp	A/S	has	acquired	treasury	shares	in	2007	for	an	aggregate	nominal	value	of	DKK	1,681,000	at	an	average	price	of	DKK	1,193.82	per	

share,	equal	to	an	aggregate	purchase	price	of	EUR	26.9m.	In	addition,	SimCorp	A/S	has	sold	treasury	shares	in	relation	to	the	sale	of	shares	

to	employees	under	the	employee	share	programme,	for	a	nominal	value	of	DKK	140,880	at	a	calculated	market	price	of	DKK	1,098.16	per	

share,	equal	to	a	calculated	selling	price	of	EUR	2.1m	and	by	exercise	of	options	for	a	nominal	value	of	DKK	47,000	calculated	at	an	average	

market	price	of	DKK	1,127.17	per	share,	equal	to	an	aggregate	selling	price	of	EUR	0.7.	Total	proceeds	were	EUR	1.1m.	 	 	

        

The company acquires treasury shares for the purpose of covering the Group’s incentive programmes, among other things.  

         

Capital management and dividend policy         

The	Board	of	Directors	regularly	assesses	the	need	for	adjusting	the	capital	structure,	including	the	requirement	for	cash,	credit	facilities	and	

equity.           

           

SimCorp	pursues	a	dividend	policy	to	the	effect	that,	when	cash	resources	exceed	10%	of	an	upcoming	year’s	projected	revenue,	the	com-

pany will pay around 75% of the profit for the year of continuing operations by way of dividend. In addition, the company will buy treasury 

shares provided it does not anticipate specific cash requirements.        

    

Distribution of dividends to shareholders has no tax consequences for the company.      

     

The	Board	of	Directors	intends	to	recommend	to	the	shareholders	at	the	annual	general	meeting	that	dividends	of	EUR	23.4m,	equal	to	DKK	

37.50 per share, be distributed and that the company be authorised to acquire treasury shares for up to 10% of the company’s share capital.  

          

The Board of Directors intends to ask the shareholders at the annual general meeting for an authorisation to decide to pay extraordinary 

dividends pursuant to section 109 a of the Danish Public Companies Act. 

Acquisition 

value

EUR’000

2006

Number

of shares

2007

Number

of shares

2006

PENSIONS AND SIMILAR LIABILITIES   

The	Danish	and	certain	foreign	companies’	pension	obligations	are	covered	by	insurance	(defined	contribution	plans).	 	 	

    

Foreign	companies’	pension	obligations	not	or	only	partly	covered	by	insurance	(defined	benefit	plans)	are	recognised	in	accordance	with	IAS	19. 

      

For	defined	contribution	plans,	the	employer	is	obliged	to	pay	a	defined	contribution	(for	example	a	fixed	percentage	of	an	employee’s	salary)	

to independent insurance companies or the like. For a defined contribution plan, the Group runs no risk in respect of future developments in 

interest rates, inflation, mortality or disability.       

       

Under	defined	benefit	plans,	the	employer	is	obliged	to	pay	a	defined	benefit	(for	example	a	fixed	percentage	of	an	employee’s	final	salary)	

to	the	employee	after	retirement.	Under	a	defined	benefit	plan,	the	Group	carries	the	risk	in	respect	of	future	developments	in	interest	rates,	

inflation, mortality or disability.       

      

Note

21
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     GROUP

     2006 2007
 
	 	 	 	 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

   Charged to the income statement
  Contributions for current financial year 533 687

  Defined benefit plans:   

  Expenses related to current financial year 112 170

  Interest expenses  34 52

	 	 Recognised	actuarial	gains	 	 (38)	 (53)

  Amortisation of accumulated actuarial gains/loss 2 11

     110 180

  Charged to the income statement, total 643 867

  Liability recognised in respect of defined benefit plans:  

	 	 At	1	January	 	 584	 1,209

	 	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	 (18)	 34

  Expensed in the income statement  112 170

  Interest expenses  34 52

  Actuarial loss  497 119

	 	 Payroll	taxes	 	 0	 (16)

	 	 Benefits	paid	 	 0	 (27)

  Liabilities at 31 December  1,209 1,541

  Recognised value of plan assets:   

	 	 At	1	January	 	 589	 965

	 	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	 (19)	 27

  Expected return of plan assets  38 53

	 	 Actuarial	gains/loss	 	 232	 (37)

  Employer contribution  125 115

	 	 Benefits	paid	 	 0	 (27)

  Assets at 31 December  965 1,096

  Specification of recognised net liabilities:  

  Present value of defined benefit plan 1,209 1,541

	 	 Fair	value	of	plan	assets	 	 (965)	 (1,096)

	 	 Unrecognised	actuarial	loss	 	 (357)	 (513)

	 	 Net	liability	before	limitation	of	assets	ceiling	 (113)	 (68)

  
  Net liability after limitation of asset ceiling	 (113)	 (68)

  Actual return on plan assets  270 15

  Average assumptions for actuarial calculations at the balance sheet day were as follows:  

   Average discount rate  4.4% 4.4%

  Expected return on plan assets  5.4% 5.4%

  Future salary increases  3.5% 6.0%

  Expected pension increases  3.0% 2.0%

  Increase in social benefit contributions 3.0% 3.0%

Actuarial	gains/losses	have	been	reduced	to	nil	at	1	January	2004.

NOTES
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     GROUP

     2006 2007
 
     EUR’000	 EUR’000

   Administrative expenses  130 83

  Research and development costs  34 42

  Cost of sales  298 639

  Sales and distribution costs  181 103

  
  Total  643 867

  Asset allocation at 31 December    

  Shares  27% 28%

  Bonds  29% 28%

  Mortgage bonds  28% 26%

  Property  10% 12%

  Other financial assets  6% 6%

  Total  100% 100%

The	Company’s	Norwegian	subsidiary	has	a	pension	plan	comprising	of	a	total	of	19	employees	(2006:	17).	The	plans	entitle	the	employees	to	

defined future benefits. These principally depend on the number of years of service, salary level at retirement age and the size of the national 

pension. The obligation is funded through an insurance company and actuarially calculated. 

       

The expense is recognised in the following income statement items:

The	expected	return	on	the	plan	has	been	calculated	by	Storebrand	Pensjonstjenester	AS	(Norway)	on	the	basis	of	standardised	assumptions,	

prepared	by	Forsikringsnæringens	Hovedorganisasjon	(Norway),	regarding	life	expectancy	and	other	demographic	factors.	Specifically	the	tariff	

K1963	has	been	applied.	 	 	

The	calculations	have	been	made	on	the	basis	of	excact	ages	and	employment	dates.	Up	to	the	age	of	51	years,	a	resignation	rate	of	8%	is	

assumed. After the age, the resignation rate is assumed to be 0%. 

      

The	Group	expects	to	pay	EUR	124	thousand	(2006:	EUR	115	thousand	for	the	year	2007)	to	the	defined	benefit	pension	plan	in	2008.		

        

The Group’s pension liability for the current and preceding financial years is as follows: 

     GROUP

     2005  2006 2007
 
        EUR’000	 	 EUR’000		 EUR’000
  

   Actuarial	calculation	of	pension	liabilities	 	 (584)	 (1,209)		 (1,541)
 
   Plan assets     589 965  1,096

	 	 	 Overfunding/underfunding	 	 	 	 5	 (244)		 (445)

	 	 	 Experience	adjustment,	assets	 	 	 	 (69)	 232		 (37)

  
	 	 	 Experience	adjustment,	liability	(actuarial	gain/loss)	 	 – –  – 
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PROVISIONS

PARENT COMPANY

2006
Liability	at	1	January	 	 596	 190	 993	 1,779

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	 0	 (1)	 21	 20

Reversal	of	unused	liabilities	 	 0	 (18)	 0	 (18)

Provisions for the year  61 44 118 223

     
Total provisions  657 215 1,132 2,004
     

Expected due dates for provisions:     

Falling due within 1 year  0 6 238 244

Falling due within 2 to 5 years  657 85 894 1,636

Falling due after 5 years  0 124 0 124

 
Total provisions   657 215 1,132 2,004
     

2007     

Liability	at	1	January	 	 657	 215	 1,132	 2,004

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 	 0	 0	 (12)	 (12)

Used	during	the	year	 	 0	 (6)	 (1,120)	 (1,126)

Reversal	of	unused	liabilities	 	 0	 (15)	 0	 (15)

Provisions for the year  16 50 0 66
     

Total provisions  673 244 0 917
     

Expected due dates for provisions:     

Falling due within 1 year  673 0 0 673

Falling due within 2 to 5 years  0 105 0 105

Falling due after 5 years  0 139 0 139

Total provisions   673 244 0 917

Note

22

Total

Purchase 

option

Anniversary 

bonuses

Reestablisment

costs for

rented premises
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

23    TRADE	PAYABLES	AND	OTHER	PAYABLES

  3,125 3,613 Trade payables 5,710 7,563

  15,705 15,997 Debt to subsidiaries  –   – 

  3,775 4,454 Holiday pay 4,833 5,644

  2,643 3,686 Wages and commissions payable 6,893 7,595

  539 510 Personal income tax, VAT etc., payable 3,431 5,004

       
  25,787 28,260 Total trade payables and other payables 20,867 25,806

PROVISIONS

GROUP

2006
Liability	at	1	January	 760	 0	 190	 993	 1,943

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 3	 0	 (1)	 21	 23

Reversal	of	unused	liabilities	 0	 0	 (18)	 0	 (18)

Provisions for the year 64 385 44 118 611
     

Total provisions 827 385 215 1,132 2,559
     

Expected due dates for provisions:     

Falling due within 1 year 30 144 6 238 418

Falling due within 2 to 5 years 797 241 85 894 2,017

Falling due after 5 years 0 0 124 0 124

Total provisions  827 385 215 1,132 2,559
     

2007     

Liability	at	1	January	 827	 385	 215	 1,132	 2,559

Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (1)	 0	 0	 (12)	 (13)

Used	during	the	year	 (163)	 (167)	 (6)	 (1,120)	 (1,456)

Reversal	of	unused	liabilities	 0	 0	 (15)	 0	 (15)

Transferred,	discontinued	operations	 (31)	 0	 0	 0	 (31)

Provisions for the year 405 20 50 0 475
     

Total provisions 1,037 238 244 0 1,519
     

Expected due dates for provisions:     

Falling due within 1 year 673 23 0 0 696

Falling due within 2 to 5 years 161 215 105 0 481

Falling due after 5 years 203 0 139 0 342

Total provisions  1,037 238 244 0 1,519

Total

Purchase 

option

Anniversary 

bonusesRent

Reestablisment

costs for

rented premises

Liabilities cover the costs of restoring leasehold premises, rent of vacated premises and provisions for anniversary bonuses. The amount in 2006 

included the value of the obligation to purchase the remaining part of the share capital in Solutionforge Limited.  

    

When the Group has an obligation to restore leasehold premises on expiry of the lease, a provision corresponding to the present value of the 

expected future expenses is recognised. Costs of restoration in connection with SimCorp A/S’ relocation to new headquarters are expected to 

increase	by	EUR	0.7m	in	2008.

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk for trade payables and other payables is disclosed in note 29.
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

24    INCOME TAX  
  
 
	 	 1,199	 (220)	 Payable	at	1	January	 4,246	 4,171

	 	 4	 (1)	 Foreign	exchange	adjustment	 (25)	 (9)

	 	 (43)	 84	 Prior-year	adjustments	 (299)	 (166)

  4,586 3,962 Current tax on profit for the year 11,804 12,227

	 	 (635)	 (359)	 Tax	on	equity	items	 (635)	 (359)

	 	 (5,331)	 (2,765)	 Income	tax	paid	 (10,930)	 (9,970)

  – –	 Disposal,	discontinued	operations		 10	 (15)

 
	 	 (220)	 701	 Total income tax 4,171 5,879
       

    which is distributed as follows:   

  220 0 Income tax receivable 455 459

  0 701 Income tax payable 4,626 6,338

	 	 (220)	 701	 Total income tax 4,171 5,879

25    CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS 

    RELATING TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

    1,799 2,108 Sales value of contracts in progress 2,124 2,867

	 	 (1,083)	 (2,263)	 Payments	received	on	account	 (1,352)	 (3,063)

 
	 	 716	 (155)	 Contracts in progress	 772	 (196)

       
    which are recognised as follows:   

	 	 807	 0	 Contracts	in	progress	relating	to	professional	services	(assets)	 970	 204

	 	 (91)	 (155)	 Contracts	in	progress	relating	to	professional	services	(liabilities)	 (306)	 (580)

	 	 716	 (155)	 Contracts in progress	 664	 (376)

  0 0 Prepayments received from customers 108 180

26    OPERATING LEASES  

    Rent commitments   

  1,914 3,336 Payable within 1 year 4,311 5,808

  11,169 13,613 Payable within 2 to 5 years 17,277 21,404

  23,897 24,516 Payable after 5 years 26,592 26,718
       

  36,980 41,465 Rent commitments until expiry of minimum term of tenancy 48,180 53,930
       

    Other commitments   

  1,107 1,212 Payable within 1 year 1,348 1,413

  990 689 Payable within 2 to 5 years 1,227 1,054

  0 0 Payable after 5 years 0 0 
      

  2,097 1,901 Total other commitments 2,575 2,467
       

    Total commitments   

  3,021 4,548 Payable within 1 year 5,659 7,221

  12,159 14,302 Payable within 2 to 5 years 18,504 22,458
  
  23,897 24,516 Payable after 5 years 26,592 26,718
       

  39,077 43,366 Total commitments 50,755 56,397

The Group’s other liabilities comprise operating leases for computer equipment and operating equipment, generally with a lease period of 

between	two	and	five	years.	Amounts	of	EUR	7.5m	(2006:	EUR	5.8m)	relating	to	operating	leases	in	the	Group	and	EUR	3.9m	(2006:	EUR	

3.0m)	in	the	parent	company	have	been	recognised	in	the	income	statement	for	2007.	 	 	 	 	

  

In 2006, as part of the planned expansion, SimCorp A/S entered into a lease for new headquarters of approximately 12,400 sq.m. located at 

Amager Boulevard 6, Copenhagen. A supplementary lease for some additional 2,000 sq.m. was signed in 2007. The expected moving date is 

toward	the	end	of	2008.	The	lease	has	been	entered	into	on	market	terms	and	with	normal	rent	adjustment	clauses.	The	lease	is	non-terminable 

for a period of ten years, with an option to extend for up to 20 years from the commencement of the lease. In 2007, the subsidiaries in the 

UK,	Australia,	Germany	and	Belgium	moved	to	new,	larger	offices,	and	new	offices	were	established	in	Vienna,	Austria,	in	Kiev	in	the	Ukraine	

and	in	Los	Angeles,	USA.			 	 	 	 	 	 	

       

All	the	Group’s	leases	are	with	an	option	to	extend	and	are	made	on	market	terms	with	normal	rent	adjustment	clauses	and	no	right	of	first	

refusal.       
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CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

       

Contingent assets     

When	divesting	the	IT2	business,	SimCorp	A/S	signed	an	agreement	providing	for	a	fixed	purchase	price	paid	in	cash	in	July	2007	and	an	 

additional	amount	subject	to	revenue	growth	achieved	in	2007	and	2008	in	the	IT2	business.	If	IT2	business	revenue	increases	more	than	 

currently	estimated	by	management,	this	may	result	in	potential	additional	proceeds	of	up	to	EUR	0.8m.									 	 	

 

Contingent liabilities     

In some contracts, as part of building long-term customer relationships, the company has made a commitment to provide SimCorp Dimension 

product support for up to eight years from the date of the contract.     

     

SimCorp	A/S	has	issued	guarantees	for	its	subsidiaries’	delivery	commitments	to	customers	for	a	total	of	EUR	12.2m	(2006:	EUR	23.5m)	

    

The parent company has issued letters of comfort to certain subsidiaries.      

     

SimCorp	A/S	is	liable	for	tax,	VAT	and	excise	duties	payable	by	jointly	registered	Danish	companies.		 	 	 	

 

In connection with relocation to new headquarters, SimCorp A/S has entered into leasehold improvement contracts. The total investment 

related	to	relocation	is	expected	to	amount	to	close	to	EUR	6.0m	for	leasehold	improvements,	technical	equipment,	fixtures	and	fittings,	tools	

and equipment.      

     

Bank	guarantees	have	been	provided	for	rent	commitments	in	Germany	and	the	USA.

Note

27
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RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS	 	 	 	 	

SimCorp’s related parties exercising a significant influence comprise the company’s Board of Directors and Executive Management Board as 

well as relatives of these persons. Related parties also comprise companies in which the individuals mentioned above have material interests. 

      

For the parent company, related parties also comprise subsidiaries and associates, cf. notes 15 and 8, in which SimCorp A/S has a controlling 

or significant influence.        

       

The Group did not enter into any agreement, deals or other transactions in 2007 in which the parent company’s Board of Directors or Executive 

Management Board had a financial interest, except for transactions following from the employment relationship. See note 4.

Note

28

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

    Subsidiaries and associates

    Trading with subsidiaries and associates 

    has involved the following:  

  8,461 12,058 Purchases of services from subsidiaries – –

  64 529 Purchases of services from associates 137 612

  45,158 59,080 Sale of services to subsidiaries – –

Transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statement in accordance with the accounting policies applied. 

      

The	parent	company’s	outstanding	balance	with	subsidiaries	and	associates	is	specified	in	notes	15	and	8.	Loans	account	for	a	total	of	EUR	14.0m	

(2006:	EUR	12.2m)	of	the	outstanding	balances	with	subsidiaries.	The	loans	fall	due	for	payment	when	the	companies	have	excess	liquidity.	

      

In addition, balances with subsidiaries and associates comprise ordinary trade balances relating to the purchase and sale of services. 

Outstanding	balances	carry	interest	and	are	subject	to	terms	and	conditions	identical	to	those	made	with	the	parent	company’s	and	the	

Group’s customers and suppliers.       

       

Trading with subsidiaries and associates of the SimCorp Group is conducted on arm’s length terms. Ownership interests appear from notes 

15 and 8.       

       

Interest on outstanding balances with subsidiaries and associates is specified in notes 9 and 10.     

  

The	parent	company	has	received	dividend	of	EUR	18.1m	(2006:	EUR	20.4m)	from	subsidiaries.	 	 	 	 	

  

No dividend has been received from associates.       

       

The parent company has provided delivery bonds to certain customers of its subsidiaries, cf. note 27.

NOTES
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     GROUP

     2006 2007
 
     Total Total

  The interests in the company of members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board 

  are listed below:  

  Shareholdings by members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board:  

  Board of Directors:   

  Steen Rasborg  2,370 2,370

	 	 Jesper	Brandgaard	 	 566	 811

  Carl Christian Ægidius  2,100 650

	 	 Kim	S.	Andreasen	 	 8,637	 8,708

	 	 Jacob	Goltermann	 	 1,231	 1,330

  Board of Directors, total  14,904 13,869

  Executive Management Board:   

  Peter L. Ravn  21,420 22,013

  Peter Theill  7,250 8,314

  Torben Munch  8,467 9,581

  Executive Management Board, total 37,137 39,908

  Total shareholdings by members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board 52,041 53,777

   Stock options held by members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board:  

  Board of Directors:   

  Steen Rasborg  2,800 2,100

	 	 Jesper	Brandgaard	 	 – 600

  Susan Hakki-Haroun  1,400 1,300 

  Carl Christian Ægidius  1,400 1,150

	 	 Kim	S.	Andreasen	 	 1,400	 1,050

	 	 Jacob	Goltermann	 	 – 500

  Board of Directors, total  7,000 6,700

  Executive Management Board:   

  Peter L. Ravn  12,000 12,000

  Peter Theill  12,000 10,000

  Torben Munch  12,000 10,000

  Executive Management Board, total 36,000 32,000

  Total stock options held by members of the Board of Directors and the  43,000 38,700

  Executive Management Board

Key	Management	Personnel	(cf.	IAS	24)	consists	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board.

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board is disclosed in note 4.   

    

Except as set out above, no transactions were made during the year with members of the Board of Directors, Executive Management Board,  

major	shareholders	or	any	other	related	parties.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Members of the Board of Directors are elected by the shareholders at the annual general meeting for terms of one year. Members of the 

Board of Directors elected by the employees are elected among SimCorp A/S employees every four years.     

   

Candidates for Board membership may not have turned 70 years of age on the date of the general meeting at which the election takes place.
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Note  

29 FINANCIAL	INSTRUMENTS	AND	RISK	 	

Due to the nature of its operations, investments and financing, the Group is exposed to changes in exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s 

policy is to direct financial management towards the management of financial risks related to operations and finance. The Group’s financial 

risks are managed centrally by the Group’s Finance department according to policies committed to writing and approved by the Board of 

Directors. 

       

The scope and nature of the Group’s financial instruments appear from the income statement and the balance sheet in accordance with the 

accounting policies applied. Provided below is information about factors that may influence amounts, time of payment or reliability of future 

payments,	where	such	information	is	not	provided	directly	in	the	financial	statement	or	is	subject	to	customary	practise.	 	 	

     

Currency risk        

The Group’s foreign subsidiaries are not severely impacted by foreign exchange fluctuations, as both income and costs are generally settled in 

local currency.

        

The consolidated income statement is impacted by changes in exchange rates. The results of foreign subsidiaries are translated from their 

functional	currency	to	EUR	at	the	exchange	rate	ruling	on	the	transaction	date.	The	average	rate	of	exchange	for	the	month	is	used	to	reflect	

the transaction date’s exchange rate.

        

The Group’s foreign exchange policy is to balance incoming and outgoing payments in local currency as much as possible, and generally seek 

to	ensure	that	an	increasing	number	of	contracts	entered	into	are	EUR-denominated.	When	placing	surplus	funds,	the	Group	generally	seeks	

to minimise its net exposure in individual currencies. Currency positions have not been hedged at the balance sheet date.  

      

Currency	exposures	of	investments	in	subsidiaries	have	not	been	hedged.	Any	foreign	exchange	adjustments	are	recognised	directly	in	equity.

Currency

The parent company’s currency risks recognised  
 
in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006    
DKK		 	 26,607	 54,128	 9,251	 11,377	 78,609

SEK	 	 	 0	 0	 0	 882	 (882)

NOK		 	 0	 0	 0	 591	 (591)

EUR		 	 0	 51	 1,801	 6,608	 (4,756)

GBP   1,810 10 4,574 2,166 4,228

CHF		 	 0	 0	 0	 2,686	 (2,686)

USD		 	 7,684	 0	 1,134	 0	 8,818

AUD		 	 2,666	 0	 880	 0	 3,546

SGD		 	 0	 0	 0	 3,744	 (3,744)
   

   38,767 54,189 17,640 28,054 82,542

The parent company’s currency risks recognised 
in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007
DKK		 	 17,743	 39,425	 12,417	 13,583	 56,002

SEK	 	 	 0	 0	 0	 959	 (959)

NOK		 	 0	 1	 0	 2,191	 (2,190)

EUR		 	 0	 1,773	 4,916	 5,226	 1,463

GBP		 	 3,015	 3	 332	 3,502	 (152)

CHF		 	 0	 0	 0	 1,601	 (1,601)

USD		 	 10,972	 2	 1	 1,231	 9,744

AUD		 	 0	 0	 0	 92	 (92)

SGD		 	 0	 0	 0	 1,688	 (1,688)

  
   31,730 41,204 17,666 30,073 60,527

Net position

EUR’000

Debt

EUR’000

Receivables

EUR’000

Bonds and 

cash/equivalents

EUR’000

Investment in

subsidiaries

EUR’000
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SimCorp	A/S	has	investments	in	foreign	subsidiaries	for	which	translation	of	equity	into	EUR	entails	exchange	risk	exposure.	Such	exposure	is	

not hedged.         

         

Interest risk         

The Group’s and the parent company’s interest rate risks are generally related to its bond portfolio and bank deposits.    

      

At	31	December	2007,	the	Group’s	bond	portfolio	which	is	placed	with	the	parent	company	had	a	nominal	value	of	EUR	26.8m	and	a	market	

value	of	EUR	26.8m	(2006:	nominal	value	EUR	26.8m	and	market	value	EUR	26.8m).	The	portfolio	carries	a	fixed	interest	rate,	has	an	average 

duration	of	0	years	and	a	yield	of	4.0%	(2006:	average	duration	0	years	and	yield	2.0%).	 	 	 	 	

    

SimCorp	A/S	had	bank	deposits	of	EUR	14.4m	at	31	December	2007	(2006:	EUR	27.3m)	carrying	a	variable	interest	rate	based	on	the	money	

market rate. The effective interest rate varies with the currency and, made up at the balance sheet date, fluctuated between 2.0 and 4.5% in 

2007	(2006:	1.0	– 3.0%)	for	significant	deposits.

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’s currency exposure        
Over the past years, the exchange rates of the currencies in which SimCorp has the greatest exposure have fluctuated by up to 10% p.a.  

USD	and	GBP	have	seen	exchange	rate	fluctuations	in	the	range	of	8.6%	to	10.5%	while	AUD	has	fluctuated	by	up	to	3.5%.			 	

      

A	10.0%	strengthening	of	GBP	and	USD	and	a	4.0%	strengthening	of	AUD	against	EUR	would	impact	profit	and	equity	as	follows,	and	a	 

corresponding weakening would have an opposite effect:

PARENT COMPANY

Profit	for	the	year	 304	 102	 635	 (11)	 (3)	 731

Equity	 	 451	 102	 635	 140	 (3)	 731

GROUP        

Profit for the year 1,031 41 250 315 16 327

Equity	 	 2,139	 (42)	 (269)	 1,050	 56	 (200)

2007

EUR’000

USD

2007

EUR’000

AUD

2007

EUR’000

GBP

2006

EUR’000

USD

2006

EUR’000

AUD

2006

EUR’000

GBP

Exchange rate

fluctuations in:

Valuta

The Group’s currency risks recognised 
in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006
DKK		 	 0	 54,128	 9,253	 12,351	 51,030

SEK	 	 	 0	 896	 1,054	 866	 1,084

NOK		 	 0	 1,289	 1,602	 1,712	 1,179

EUR		 	 0	 2,047	 14,327	 10,059	 6,315

GBP   1,471 719 16,268 4,139 14,319

CHF   0 559 192 515 236

USD		 	 0	 13	 5,326	 1,867	 3,472

AUD		 	 0	 498	 1,508	 577	 1,429

SGD   0 627 1,470 1,029 1,068

   1,471 60,776 51,000 33,115 80,132

The Group’s currency risks recognised 
in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007
DKK		 	 0	 39,425	 12,447	 13,034	 38,838

SEK	 	 	 0	 695	 713	 895	 513

NOK		 	 0	 445	 1,112	 1,921	 (364)

EUR		 	 0	 4,042	 21,700	 11,489	 14,253

GBP   1,517 822 6,193 4,101 4,431

CHF   0 572 598 547 623

USD		 	 0	 178	 6,118	 1,687	 4,609

AUD		 	 0	 522	 1,845	 1,793	 574

SGD   0 203 604 660 147

   1,517 46,904 51,330 36,127 63,624

Net position

EUR’000

Debt

EUR’000

Receivables

EUR’000

Bonds and 

cash/equivalents

EUR’000

Investment in 

associates

EUR’000
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The	Group	had	bank	deposits	of	EUR	20.1m	at	31	December	2007	(2006:	EUR	34.0m)	carrying	a	variable	interest	rate	based	on	the	money	

market rate. The effective interest rate varies with the currency and, made up at the balance sheet date, fluctuated between 0.5 and 6.5% in 

2007	(2006:	0.5	– 4.5%)	for	significant	deposits.		 	 	 	 	 	

        

The Group had no long-term loans.        

        

The table below shows interest rate sensitivity based on quarterly cash deposits at the end of the quarter for 2007 and 2006. A one percentage 

point increase in interest rates would impact profit and equity as follows, and a corresponding fall would have an opposite effect: 

Liquidity risk        

It is SimCorp’s policy that cash resources must exceed 10% of the coming year’s expected revenue. 

The Group’s cash reserve comprises cash and cash equivalents, securities, treasury shares and unutilised credit facilities. The Group aims to 

have sufficient cash resources to allow it to continue to operate adequately in case of unforeseen fluctuations in cash. The Group have unused 

credit	facilities	in	banks	of	EUR	5.4m.	

        

The following table indicates when the current and non-current liablities per 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 are expected to 

become due:

PARENT COMPANY

Profit for the year     388 351

Equity      388 351

GROUP

Profit for the year     434 381

Equity      434 381

2007

EUR’000

1.0%

2006

EUR’000

1.0%

PARENT COMPANY

Prepayments from customers  0   195      256 0       0      0      0      0   

Trade payables  3,125   3,613    0      0      0      0      0      0   

Provisions   0      0     244  673    1,636  105    124   139 

Other payables  4,132   5,310   1,888  2,227    944  1,113     0      0   

Income tax and deferred tax   0     0     0  701       0      0      0      0   

Payables to subsidiaries  15,705   15,997    0      0      0      0      0      0   

Total   22,962   25,115   2,388  3,601    2,580  1,218    124   139 

GROUP         

Prepayments from customers  4,072   1,675   556  347    0    4      0      0   

Trade payables  5,491  7,480    127  12    92   62   0    9   

Provisions  141  16    277  680    2,017  481    124   342 

Other payables  11,747  14,303    2,257  2,652    1,156   1,175   4   113 

Income tax and deferred tax  1,321  766    2,380  4,640    1,353   1,370    0      0   

Total   22,772  24,240    5,597  8,331    4,618  3,092    128   464 

Later than

 5 years

2006

Later than

 5 years

2007

1 – 5

years

2007

1 – 5

years

2006

6 –12

months

2007

6 –12

months

2006

Within 6

months

2007

Within 6

months

2006

At 31 December

EUR’000

Current Non-current

The maturity profile of the Group’s operational leasing obligations appears from note 26. 

NOTES

To CONTENTS, Notes



F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T

Credit risk        

The	Group	is	not	exposed	to	significant	risks	concerning	individual	customers	or	business	partners.	Customers	are	generally	major	businesses	in	

the	financial	sector.	Under	the	Group’s	policy	for	assuming	credit	risk	all	major	customers	and	other	business	partners	are	assessed	prior	to	any	

contract being signed and a substantial amount is paid on entering into licence agreements.

The maximum exposure to credit risk was at 31 December:

PARENT COMPANY EUR	1.000		 EUR	1.000

Cash and cash equivalents     27,365  14,382 

Bonds      26,824  26,822 

Receivables     13,787  13,829

Maximum credit exposure     67,976  55,033

GROUP        

Cash and cash equivalents     33,952  20,082

Bonds      26,824  26,822

Receivables     39,074  41,903

Maximum credit exposure     99,850  88,807

20072006

Credit risk relating to cash funds comprising current account deposits and fixed term deposits is deemed to be immaterial as the accounts are 

held with selected recognised international banks with high external credit ratings. No security has been received.   

The	bonds	run	out	on	2	January	2008	at	nominal	value	of	100.		 	 	 	 	 	 	

The credit risk for trade receivables was at 31 December by geographic region:

       2006 2007

PARENT COMPANY EUR	1.000		 EUR	1.000

Europe      4,190  7,242

Other      2 6

Total       4,192  7,248

GROUP        

Europe      25,778  27,711

North America      1,185  800

Asia       1,485  197

Australia      356  1,185

Other      4,519  301

Total       33,323  30,194

The	Group’s	trade	receivables	at	31	December	2007	include	impairments	totalling	EUR	111	thousand	(2006:	25	thousand)	based	on	individual	

assessments, see note 18. Impairments relate to uncertainty with respect to payment of the receivable and are included in administrative 

expenses. 
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Note  

30 DISCONTINUED	OPERATIONS	 	

On 29 May 2007 SimCorp A/S announced its intended divestment of the IT2 business, and completion of the divestment was announced on  

16	July	2007.	The	divestment	was	part	of	the	efforts	to	focus	on	the	SimCorp	Dimension	enterprise	solution.			 	 	

        

The proceeds from the divestment depend on the revenue realised by the IT2 business for 2007 and 2008. Based on revenue realised in 2007 

and	expected	revenue	in	2008	for	the	IT2	business,	SimCorp	has	upgraded	its	forecast	for	the	total	sales	proceeds	from	EUR	12.5m	to	EUR	

13.4m.	The	2007	revenue	will	trigger	a	cash	payment	of	EUR	2.2m	in	addition	to	the	EUR	11.0m	received	on	closing	of	the	agreement.

     GROUP

     2006 2007
 
	 	 	 	 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

													 	 	 	 1	Jan.–	31	Dec.	 1	Jan.–	16	Jul.

Result of discontinued operations and other key figures    
     
 Revenue  6,918 3,729 
    
Cost  5,580 3,419

Profit before tax for the period, discontinued operations 1,338 310

Tax on profit for the period, discontinued operations 281 80
     
    
Profit for the period, discontinued operations 1,057 230
     
Gain on sale, discontinued operations  10,104
 

Profit for the period, discontinued operations 1,057 10,334
     
     
 Net cash from/used in operating activities 45 626

Net	cash	from/used	in	investment	activities	 (63)	 0

Net cash from/used in financing activities 0 0

Cash	flow,	discontinued	operations	 (18)	 626
     
     
 Property, plant and equipment  62  
  
Other non-current assets  1,614  

Receivables   3,073  

Cash and cash equivalents  347  

Assets, discontinued operations   5,096  

Trade payables  869  

Other payables  10  

Provisions  30  

Liabilities, discontinued operations  909  

Basic earnings per share, discontinued operations –	EPS	(EUR)	 0.22	 	2.20	

Diluted earnings per share, discontinued operations – EPS-D	(EUR)	 0.22	 	2.19

In	addition,	the	amount	includes	receivables	falling	due	as	follows	as	at	31	December,	but	not	subject	to	impairment:

The aging of trade receivables was at 31 December:

       2006 2007

PARENT COMPANY EUR	1.000		 EUR	1.000

Not due      3,535  5,696

Not more than 30 days     650 959

More than 30 days but not more than 90 days    7 566

More than 90 days     0 27

Total      4,192  7,248

GROUP        

Not due      24,089  20,645

Not more than 30 days     3,098  6,009

More than 30 days but not more than 90 days    5,524  2,705

More than 90 days     612  835

Total      33,323  30,194
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F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T

Note  

31 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Group
No material events have occurred after 31 December 2007 that have any consequences for the annual report 2007.   

     

32 NEW	ACCOUNTING	REGULATIONS

The following changes to existing and new standards and interpretations have not taken effect in the presentation of the 2007 financial state-

ments:		IAS	1.23	and	27,	IFRS	2,	3,	8	and	IFRIC	11	-	14.	EU	has	approved	IFRS	8	and	IFRIC	11.	The	new	standards	and	interpretations	will	be 

implemented when they are approved. 

When they take effect in connection with the presentation of the financial statement for 2008, 2009 and 2010, the standards and interpreta-

tions in question are not expected to affect the amounts in SimCorp’s financial results, assets and liabilities or equity.   

     

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2006 2007  2006 2007
 
  EUR’000	 EUR’000		 	 EUR’000	 EUR’000

33    ADJUSTMENTS,	CASH	FLOW

    
  878 866 Depreciation 2,689 3,015

  – –	 Share	of	profit	in	associates	 (152)	 (103)

	 	 (21,381)	 (26,224)	 Financial	income	 (2,447)	 (3,099)

  2,547 2,749 Financial expenses 1,281 1,175

  2,815 3,135 Tax on profit for the year 9,866 11,758

  1,572 2,402 Other 2,116 1,321
  
  
	 	 (13,569)	 (17,072)	 Total adjustments 13,353 14,067
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Steen Rasborg
Business address:

Dalsborgvej	13

3070 Snekkersten

Denmark

Personal background and education

Born	1940,	Danish	citizen,	HD(R),	PMD

(Harvard	Business	School).

Career

Privatbanken,	after	merger	Unibank	 

(now	Nordea),	went	from	trainee	to	Chief	

Executive Officer, retired in 1992, and since 

then Chairman of the Boards of Directors of 

several companies.

Directorships

Chairman of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 

since 1994. Besides Chairman of the Board of 

Directors of Bianco International A/S and  

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of  

Investeringsselskabet af 30/4 1992 A/S.

Relevant competences and experiences

Corporate governance, Danish listed  

companies and IR, risk management,  

strategy development and implementation, 

negotiations, finance, service management, 

and leadership development.

Carl Christian
Ægidius
Business address:

2	Rue	Jean	Engling

1466 Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Personal background and education

Born	1944,	Danish	citizen,	MSc	(Econ.).

Career

Employed with IBM for 35 years, of which  

13 abroad, seven years as Executive Vice  

President of IBM Nordic and three years as 

Chief Executive Officer of IBM Danmark A/S.

Directorships

Member of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 

since 2004. Besides member of the Board of 

Directors of Industriens Pension and  

M. Goldschmidt Holding A/S.

Relevant competences and experiences

Management of international company,  

implementation of international business 

procedures and methods, international sales 

channel strategies and product sales.

Susan Hakki-Haroun
Business address:

River House 

24	Upper	Mall

London W6 9TA 

United	Kingdom

Personal background and education

Born 1961, British citizen, BA in economics 

and French.

Career

Long career within investment management  

at	UBS	Brinson	and	Schroders	Investment	 

Management in London, most recently em-

ployed as Managing Director and Head  

of Institutional Investment.

Directorships

Member of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 

since 2004. 

Relevant competences and experiences

Overall experience from the investment 

management industry focusing on the English 

market, and expertise in managing teams of 

highly-qualified employees.

Kim S. Andreasen
Business address:

SimCorp A/S

Oslo Plads 12

2100 Copenhagen Ø

Denmark

Personal background and education

Born	1955,	Danish	citizen,	MSc	(Eng.).

Career

Consultant and partner in Beta-Plan ApS,  

director for I.P. Sharp ApS, consultant and 

partner in Insight Systems ApS. In SimCorp A/S 

since 1994, in both management positions and 

as system development consultant.

Directorships

Employee-elected member of SimCorp A/S’ 

Board of Directors since 2000 and re-elected 

2005. The election term ends in 2009. 

Relevant competences and experiences

28 years’ experience with system development 

and implementation in the finance industry. 

General management experience through  

both partnerships and actual management  

and directorships.

Jesper Brandgaard
Business address:

Novo Nordisk A/S

Novo Allé

2880 Bagsværd

Denmark

Personal background and education

Born	1963,	Danish	citizen,	MSc	(Econ.	and	

Audit.)	and	MBA	from	Copenhagen	Business	

School.

Career

Since 2000, Executive Vice President and CFO 

of Novo Nordisk A/S.

Directorships

Vice Chairman of SimCorp A/S’ Board of 

Directors since 2007. Besides Chairman of the 

Board of Directors of NNE Pharmaplan A/S and 

NNIT A/S.

Relevant competences and experiences

Group executive experience in a multinational 

corporation, including responsibility for  

strategy development and implementation, 

information technology and finance. 

Furthermore, involved in the development  

and governance of companies with IT and 

consultancy activities.  

Jacob Goltermann
Business address:

SimCorp A/S

Oslo Plads 12

2100 Copenhagen Ø

Denmark

Personal background and education

Born	1970,	Danish	citizen,	MSc	(Math.	and	

Econ.).

Career

Employed in SimCorp since 1996. Has worked 

with financial software and has had different 

management positions. Since 2001 Vice  

President. Current position as senior manager 

for the development department responsible 

for financial instruments in SimCorp  

Dimension.

Directorships

Employee-elected member of SimCorp A/S’ 

Board of Directors since 2007. 

Relevant competences and experiences

10 years’ experience with development of 

financial software. Strategic and technological 

management experience within application 

development of investment management 

systems. Management experience as an  

officer in the Danish army.

BOAR D OF DI R ECTORS as at  31 December
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ExECUTIVE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Peter L. Ravn
Born 1955

Chief Executive Officer

Present position held since 2001

Member of the Board of Directors 

of 7-Technologies A/S

Peter Theill
Born 1952

Executive Vice President

Present position held since 1995

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

of People ApS and Dyalog Ltd. and 

member of the Board of Directors 

of	Scanjour	A/S	and	Bindslev	A/S

Torben Munch
Born 1958

Executive Vice President

Present position held since 2001

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

of Equipos Ltd. and member of  

the Board of Directors of TIA  

Holding III A/S

MANAGEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES

Arnt Eilertsen
Born 1960

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp Norge AS,  

SimCorp Sverige AB

Present position held since 2001

Georg Hetrodt
Born 1966

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp GmbH

Present position held since 2001

Peter Hill
Born 1955

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd.

Present position held since 2006

Troels Philip Jensen
Born 1967

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp Benelux SA/NV

Present position held since 2000

Peter Sørensen
Born 1965

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp	USA	Inc.

Present position held since 2000

Piero Visani
Born 1952

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp Schweiz AG

Present position held since 2002

Lee Wright
Born 1969

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp Ltd.

Present position held since 2007

SENIOR MANAGERS

Lars Agerlin
Born 1964

Senior Vice President,  

IMS Development

Present position held since 2007

Michael H. Andersen
Born 1964

Senior Vice President,  

Market Support

Present position held since 2004

Niels Beck
Born 1962

Senior Vice President,  

Corporate HR

Present position held since 2001

Thomas Bry
Born 1955

Senior Vice President,  

Corporate Finance

Present position held since 1997

Michael Kristensen
Born 1959

Senior Vice President,  

Corporate IT

Present position held since 2002

Klaus Løie-Andersen
Born 1964

Senior Vice President,  

IMS Development

Present position held since 1996

Jochen Müller
Born 1966

Senior Vice President,  

SimCorp GmbH

Present position held since 2002

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT BOAR D AN D SEN IOR MANAGEMENT as at  31 December
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ANNOUNCEMENTS TO OMx NORDIC ExCHANGE COPENHAGEN

1 January 2007 – 31 December 2007

 1/2007 15 February 2007  QBE Australia has chosen SimCorp Dimension

 2/2007 27 February 2007  SimCorp’s annual report 2006

 3/2007 13 March 2007  Notice of Annual General Meeting in SimCorp A/S

 4/2007 29 March 2007  North American pension plan chooses SimCorp Dimension

 5/2007 30 March 2007  Business transacted at the annual general meeting held on 29 March 2007

 6/2007 13 April 2007  Notice of extraordinary annual general meeting in SimCorp A/S

 7/2007  1 May 2007  Extraordinary annual general meeting held on 1 May 2007

 8/2007 15 May 2007  SimCorp continues the positive trend

 9/2007 29 May 2007  SimCorp A/S sells the IT2 business

10/2007	 29	June	2007	 	 Victorian	Funds	Management	Corporation	chooses	SimCorp	Dimension

11/2007	 16	July	2007	 	 SimCorp	A/S’	sale	of	IT2	is	complete

12/2007	 25	July	2007	 	 SimCorp	GmbH	signs	large	European	finance	group

13/2007 21 August 2007  Highly satisfactory first half-year performance

14/2007	 	 1	October	2007	 	 Jyske	Invest	chooses	SimCorp	Dimension

15/2007 18 October 2007  German MEAG extends use of SimCorp Dimension

16/2007 13 November 2007  Strong growth in the first nine months of the year

17/2007 26 November 2007  SimCorp’s Financial calendar 2008

18/2007 20 December 2007  DekaBank chooses SimCorp Dimension

19/2007 21 December 2007  Vanguard Investments Australia licences SimCorp Dimension

After 31 December 2007

 1/2008 28 February 2008  SimCorp’s Annual Report 2007

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2008

 28 February 2008  Annual report 2007

 26 March 2008  Annual general meeting

 22 May 2008  Interim report as of 31 March 2008

	 21	August	2008	 	 Interim	report	as	of	30	June	2008

 20 November 2008  Interim report as of 30 September 2008
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Key ratios

EBIT margin Operating profit / Revenue x 100

ROIC  Operating profit / Average operating assets x 100

Debtor turnover ratio Revenue / Receivables at year-end

Equity ratio Equity at year-end / Total assets at year-end x 100

Return on equity Profit for the year /Average equity x 100

Per share data

Basic earnings per share – EPS Profit for the year / Average number of shares

Diluted earnings per share – EPS-D Profit for the year / Average number of diluted shares

Cash flow per share – CFPS Cash flow from operating activities / Average number of diluted shares

Book value per share – BVPS Equity at year-end / Average number of shares at year-end

Dividend	per	share	of	DKK	10	– DPS Dividends paid / Number of shares at year-end

Payout ratio Dividends / Profit for the year x 100

The key ratios have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33 and ‘Recommendations and Ratios 2005’ issued by  

the Danish Financial Analyst Association
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SimCorp A/S

Oslo Plads 12

2100 Copenhagen O

Denmark

Phone +45 35 44 88 00

Fax  +45 35 44 88 11

SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd.

Level 13, 68 Pitt Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Australia

Phone +61 2 9241 4222

Fax +61 2 9221 5100

SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd. 

Hong	Kong	Branch

Level 25, Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

CENTRAL

Hong	Kong

Phone +852 2521 2680

Fax +852 2887 2711

SimCorp Benelux SA/NV

Building Stéphanie 1

Avenue Louise 54

1050 Brussels

Belgium

Phone +32 2 213 30 00

Fax +32 2 213 30 01

SimCorp GmbH

Industriestraße 1

61352 Bad Homburg

Germany

Phone +49 6172 9240-0

Fax +49 6172 9240-40

SimCorp GmbH

Niederlassung München

Belgradstraße 9

80796 Munich

Germany

Phone +49 89 306592-0

Fax +49 89 306592-40

SimCorp Holland

Keizersgracht	62

Office B07

1015 CS Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Phone +32 2213 3000

SimCorp Ltd.

2nd floor

100 Wood Street

London EC2V 7AN

United	Kingdom

Phone +44 20 7260 1900

Fax +44 20 7260 1911

SimCorp Norge AS

Biskop Gunnerusgate 14A

0185 Oslo

Norway

Phone +47 23 10 41 00

Fax +47 23 10 41 49

SimCorp Schweiz AG 

Stampfenbachstrasse 131

8006 Zurich

Switzerland

Phone  +41 44 360 59 00

Fax +41 44 360 59 01

SimCorp Singapore Pte. Ltd.

#57-12, Republic Plaza

9 Raffles Place

Singapore 048619

Singapore

Phone +65 6823 1517

Fax +65 6823 1376

SimCorp Sverige AB

Sergelgatan 1

111 57 Stockholm

Sweden

Phone +46 8 528 015 00

Fax +46 8 528 015 15

SimCorp Ukraine LLC.

(established	January	2008)

Stusa 35-37

2nd floor

Kiev

Ukraine

SimCorp USA Inc.

17 State Street

New	York,	NY	10004

USA

Phone +1 212 994 9400 

Fax +1 212 994 8826

SimCorp Österreich GmbH

Wollzeile 16 

1010 Vienna

Austria

Phone +43 1 5120099

Fax  +43 1 5120183

Solutionforge Limited

Whitegates Business Center 

Alexander Lane, Shenfield

Essex CM15 8QF

United	Kingdom

Phone +44 1277 312300

Fax +44 1277 848727
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